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MESSAGE FROM THE

@ CHAIRMAN

On behalf of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment

Joint Stock Company (Stock code: HHV), | would like to
express our respectful greetings and sincere thanks to all
of our partners, shareholders and employees. Thank you
for your companionship and contribution over the years
to the development of Deo Ca brand as the foundation for
developing HHV today.

Established in 1974, with a 50-year history, HHV has practiced
focused growth strategy by enhancing its strengths and
expertise in three main areas: Investment, Construction, and
O&M of transportation infrastructure projects.

HHV has engaged in investment, construction, and
management of transportation infrastructure projects with
a total investment exceeding VND 50,000 billion such as the
Deo Ca, Co Ma, Cu Mong, Hai Van, and Phu Gia - Phuoc
Tuong tunnel systems. These projects, which demand high
technical requirements and substantial investments, have
been completed ahead of schedule, contributing to reducing
traffic accidents and facilitating the connection of the North-
South expressway. HHV has also participated in the “rescue”
efforts of stalled projects such as the Bac Giang - Lang Son
expressway in the North and the Trung Luong - My Thuan
expressway in the South.

HHV has also achieved significant results through
collaborative efforts with competent state authorities to
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address obstacles and difficulties related to project funding:
(i) Government capital of VND 1180 billion previously
withdrawn has now been allocated back to the Deo Ca
project according to the Prime Minister’s Decision No. 1738/
QD-TTg dated 29 December 2023, on the assignment and
supplementation of mid-term public investment plans
from the state budget for the 2021-2025 period; (i) The
Ministry of Transport has submitted Report No. 2451/TTr-
BGTVT dated 8 March 2024, to the Government proposing
a reimbursement of VND 2,280 billion to compensate for
the project enterprise’s loss of toll collection at the La Son
- Tuy Loan toll station; (iii) The Lang Son Provincial People’s
Committee has reported to the Government, requesting
the allocation of VND 5,600 billion from the state budget
to ensure financial arrangements and address difficulties
encountered by the Bac Giang - Lang Son expressway
project, as stated in Document No. 23/TTr-UBND dated
6 March 2024. HHV's persistent efforts to address
funding issues in these projects aim to foster sustainable
development for the company and increase benefits for
shareholders. The Board of Directors and Management of
HHV recognize this as one of the ongoing and essential
tasks, requiring the continued support and collaboration of
shareholders.

In tandem with addressing existing project inefficiencies
and challenges, HHV has vigorously engaged with state
agencies and relevant ministries to establish mechanisms
that attract investors to new projects development. Since
the enactment of the PPP Law, the National Assembly has,
for the first time, approved a pilot mechanism allowing state
capital participation exceeding 50% of the total investment,
as per Resolution No. 106/2023/QH15 dated 28 November
2023, on piloting certain special investment policies for
road construction projects. Under this resolution, the Dong
Dang - Tra Linh expressway project has been approved for
state capital participation of up to 70% of the total project
investment. This reaffirms the strategic direction of Deo Ca
Group and HHV in deeply investing in the PPP investment
model, which is entirely appropriate.

Recognizing the necessity of aligning with government
planning and ensuring that “Every road lead to a
destination”, HHV will continue to invest in nearly 400 km
of expressways from now until 2025. These projects include
Dong Dang - Tra Linh expressway project (Cao Bang
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province), Huu Nghi - Chi Lang expressway project (Lang Son
province), Tan Phu - Bao Loc expressway project (Lam Dong
province), Ho Chi Minh City - Chon Thanh expressway project,
and Ring Road 4 project — the section passing through Binh
Duong province, with a total investment of nearly VND 100
trillion. To enhance investment efficiency and consequently
increase shareholder benefits, the company is committed
to upgrading and implementing breakthrough cooperation
solutions, utilizing the PPP++ investment model.

(+) Removing ineffective mechanisms, policies, and
legal procedures;

(+) Connecting with partners and pooling resources
to participate in investing and constructing transportation

infrastructure projects.

Furthermore, to ensure a sustainable resource base in
terms of finance, human resources, and technology to meet
long-term objectives, the Company also identifies the task
of optimizing regular business operations to accumulate
capital, experience, and capabilities, and to upgrade and
develop human and technological factors, specifically:

- In construction activities: The Company is currently
organizing the construction of a series of public investment
projects with a total contract value of over VND 20,000
billion, such as the Quang Ngai - Hoai Nhon expressway,
the coastal road project of Binh Dinh province from Cat
Tien to Diem Van, and the coastal road connecting Lien
Chieu port - Da Nang and so on.

- In management and operation: HHV is managing
and operating, conducting regular maintenance to
ensure safety and smooth traffic flow for nearly 400 km
of expressways and national highways, 28 km of road
tunnels, and managing 15 BOT toll stations nationwide.
With its outstanding experience and existing strengths,
HHV is confident in expanding its scope to manage and
operate road and mountain tunnel projects on the North-
South expressway phase 2 when these projects are put into
operation in the near future.

Recognizing the prevailing inadequacies in policy
mechanisms, low unit prices and norms that do not
accurately reflect reality, which affect businesses operating
in the transportation infrastructure sector, HHV takes
proactive and serious steps to review and control internal
processes to optimize costs, maximize profits, and promote
transparency, safety, and efficiency in the company's
operations. Additionally, emphasis is placed on fostering
corporate culture, providing training in professional skills
and expertise to employees within the system, aiming
to enhance capabilities and awareness at every stage
of production activities, ensuring risk mitigation, and
improving operational efficiency.
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- In enhancing the quality of human resources and
advancing science and technology: To keep pace with the
ever-evolving technological advancements worldwide, HHV,
in collaboration with the Deo Ca Group, has partnered with
reputable enterprises and counterparts in major economies
(such as Germany, France, Japan, South Korea, China, etc).
to innovate construction methods, adopt and learn new
technologies in high-speed rail, metro systems, cable-
stayed bridges, suspension bridges, etc. Additionally, HHV
has proactively engaged with Dong A University to establish
the “Deo Ca - DPI Practical Training Institute,” aiming to
provide high-quality human resources training for both the
company and the transportation industry.

In addition to developing business operations, HHV
also emphasizes and strengthens the Party and mass
organizational activities within the company, considering it
as an extended arm to convey the direction and ideology of

the Board of Directors and the Party Committee.

HHYV is determined to maintain its position as a reputable
investor and leading infrastructure construction contractor
in the country, while accompanying Deo Ca Group in its
journey towards “international recognition”.

The leadership and employees of HHV are always striving
and determined to successfully deliver projects on time,
contributing to ensuring safety and prosperity for the people
and the nation of Vietnam.

Best regards!

Chairman of the Board of Directors

HO MINH HOANG
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.2 GENERAL INFORMATION

Company’s name (in Vietnamese)

Stock code

Abbreviated name

Company’s name (in English)

Logo

Headquarters

Tel

Fax

Email

Website

Business registration number

and tax code

Charter capital

Outstanding shares

The number of employees as of

31 December 2023

Legal representative
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Km11+500, Southern approach road to Hai Van tunnel, Hoa Hiep Bac ward,
Lien Chieu district, Da Nang city

0236 3730 574

0236 3842 713

info@hhv.com.vn

http://hhv.com.vn/

0400101965 issued by the Danang Department of Planning and Investment
for the first time on 24 June 2010 and registered for the 33rd amendment on
2 February 2024

VND 4,116,801,690,000

(In'words: Four trillion, one hundred sixteen billion, eight hundred and one
million, six hundred and ninety thousand Vietnamese Dong)

411,680,169 shares

1,073 employees

Mr. Nguyen Quang Huy — General Director
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FORMATION AND
® DEVELOPMENT

The company operates under a parent-subsidiary model with 03
subsidiary companies and 02 affiliated companies. It serves as an
investor in projects and undertakes the management and operation
of large-scale national infrastructure projects, notably including the
Deo Ca tunnel project, Hai Van tunnel, Phuoc Tuong - Phu Gia tunnel,
Mui Trau tunnel, Bac Giang - Lang Son expressway, Trung Luong - My
Thuan expressway, National Highway 1A section in Khanh Hoa province,
and others. Additionally, HHV is currently a construction contractor for
other projects such as the Quang Ngai - Hoai Nhon expressway, the
upgrade and expansion of the Prenn Pass, the coastal road in Binh Dinh
province, the Cam Lam - Vinh Hao expressway, the Mai Son - National
Highway 45 expressway, the coastal road connecting Lien Chieu port
(Da Nang city), and the Dong Dang - Tra Linh expressway, the Huu Nghi
- Chi Lang expressway... in the near future.

Completing the additional share issuance to existing shareholders
to increase charter capital to VND 3,078,044,500,000, with numerous
institutional and individual investors becoming significant shareholders
and strategic stakeholders of the company. The company consistently
won construction bids for major projects such as the East section of
the North-South expressway Phase 2 fromm Quang Ngai to Hoai Nhon,
the coastal road project in Binh Dinh province, and the upgrade and
expansion project of Prenn Pass...

>

Through multiple additional share issuances to increase capital, the
company'’s total charter capital reached VND 2,673,840,900,000. The
company became an investor and the parent company of several
project enterprises such as Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock Company,
Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT Joint Stock Company, Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia
BOT Joint Stock Company, and others.

>

Hai Van Tunnel Management and Operation Joint Stock Company
officially became a public company according to Document No.
1516/UBCK-QLPH dated 2 April 2015 issued by the State Securities
Commission. Subsequently, the company’s shares were approved for
initial trading registration on the UPCoM market on 24 November 2015,
under the stock code HHV; 18 December 2015 marked the first trading
day of HHV on the UPCoM.

>

After several name changes, changes in headquarters addresses,
alterations in business types, management structures, and operational
models, the enterprise transitioned into a state-owned company
named: Hai Van Tunnel Management and Operation Company Limited.

The company continued to increase its charter capital to VND 4,116,801,690,000
after completing the payment of dividends for 2022 in the form of shares and
successfully concluding the additional share offering to existing shareholders,
with a subscription rate of 99% of the offered shares being taken up by
shareholders and investors. Throughout the year, the company's business
operations continued to develop according to the established plan. At the end
of 2023 and the beginning of 2024, the consortium in which HHV participated
was selected as the investor for the construction project of the Dong Dang
(Lang Son province) - Tra Linh (Cao Bang province) expressway.

Overcoming the difficulties and challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic
and the general economic downturn, the company’s business operations
achieved many positive results. The HHV shares of the company were
approved for listing on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HoSE) according
to Decision No. 717/QD-SGDHCM dated 23 December 2021. 20 January 2022
marked the official first trading day of HHV shares on the HoSE with a
reference price of 25,660 Vietnamese Dong per share.

Hai Van Tunnel Management and Operation Joint Stock Company officially
changed its name to Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock
Company according to the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders
on 26 July, 2019; simultaneously, it approved the investment policy into
transportation infrastructure project enterprises.

Following the state-owned enterprise equitization plan according to Decision
No.3079/QD-BGTVT dated 4 October 2013, issued by the Ministry of Transport,
Hai Van Tunnel Management and Operation Company Limited transformed
into Hai Van Tunnel Management and Operation Joint Stock Company. Its
function remained the regular management, operation, and maintenance of
the Hai Van Tunnel, the longest road tunnel in Southeast Asia.

The predecessor of the Company was the Thong Nhat Workshop under
Construction Committee 67, according to Decision No. 574/QD-TC dated
10 May 1974. By 1975, it was renamed as the Thong Nhat Automobile Repair
Factory at Cup Bridge in Quang Binh province.
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BUSINESS LINES AND KEY
@ LOCATIONS

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

HHYV has registered a total of 87 business activities across various sectors of production and trade. Among
them, there are 03 main business sectors, which account for the majority of the company’s total revenue.

Investing in major transportation \

infrastructure projects:
The Deo Ca tunnel (including
the Deo Ca tunnel, Co Ma tunnel,
Cu Mong tunnel and Hai Van
tunnel), the Phuoc Tuong - Phu
Gia road tunnel, the Bac Giang
- Lang Son expressway, the Deo
Ca - Khanh Hoa expressway,

the Dong Dang - Tra Linh
expressway...

Constructing road
projects:

Public-Private Partnership
(PPP) projects such as the
Hai Van 2 tunnel project, the
Phuoc Tuong - Phu Gia tunnel
project, the Trung Luong - My
Thuan expressway project,
the Cam Lam - Vinh Hao
expressway project,.. and
public investment projects
such as the expansion of
the Prenn pass (Lam Dong
province), the Quang Ngai
- Hoai Nhon expressway
project, the construction of
the coastal road in Binh Dinh
Managing, operating and maintaining province, the construction. of
infrastructure projects: the coastal road connecting
the port of Lien Chieu - Da
including the Hai Van road tunnel, the Deo Nang city,...
Ca road tunnel, the Cu Mong road tunnel,...
as well as assigned expressways and national
highways; managing and operating toll
stations for projects such as the Bac Giang -
Lang Son expressway, the Trung Luong - My
Thuan expressway, the Hai Van tunnel, the
Deo Ca tunnel,...

In addition, other activities include: Providing shuttle services for people and vehicles through tunnels, Leasing
real estate, Manufacturing mechanical products, Repairing machinery and equipment, Bottling pure drinking
water,...

Construction competency certificates: HHV possesses extensive capabilities and experience, having been
granted Grade Il Bridge Construction, Grade Il Tunnel Construction, and Grade | Road Construction certificates
by the Ministry/Department of Construction. Currently, the company is in the process of applying for a Grade |1l
Railway Construction certificate.
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KEY LOCATIONS

The company currently operates 08 branches, which are enterprises engaged in management, operation,
construction, and service trading across various provinces nationwide, with a primary focus in Da Nang
city, Thua Thien Hue, Lang Son, Phu Yen, Ninh Thuan, Khanh Hoa, Tien Giang, and several other provinces
and cities.

Representative offices: The company currently has 02 representative offices in Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh
City.

Lang Son

Branches are enterprises that operate in
management, operation, construction,
and trade services

O Representative offices
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KEY PERFORMANCE
@ INDICATORS (KPIS)

REVENUE

INCREASED
FIVEFOLD 2,686
OVER 5 YEARS” 2,095
1,861

Despite the ongoing recovery
of the economy following the 1203
COVID-19 pandemic and global

. . 477
macroeconomic uncertainties,
HHV's business performance -
in 2023 still saw highly positive 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
developments. The company VND billion
continued to effectively

manage and maintain its road P Owner’s equity
tunnel operations, ensuring

stable toll collection at 7 toll

stations, while also advancing 8733
8,376 '

construction  activities on 6084 7384 7,676

various projects. i

In terms of financial results,

HHV's  consolidated gross

revenue for 2023 reached

VND 2,685.54 billion, marking

a 28.21% increase compared

to the same period, and 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
VND billion

surpassing the set target by
108.39%. Consolidated net

profit after tax amounted to
a growth rate of 2256%
compared to 2022 and

achieving 107% of the profit

364
291 297
target.
176
] I

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
VND billion
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12%

9.37% . ROE

8.97%
8.33% ’ B ro-
6.44%
0.99%
0.52% 0.54% 0.86% 0.83% 0
- - i [ ] [ ]
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

P Long-term assets

P capital structure

’ Long-term liabilities

‘ Fixed assets

. Long-term investments ‘ Short-term liabilities

‘ Other long-term assets ‘ Owner’s equity

P Short-term assets

. Cash and cash equivalents

‘ Short-term financial investments
. Short-term receivables

Inventories

‘ Other short-termassets
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THE 5-YEAR STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT
OBJECTIVES AND ORIENTATIONS FOR THE

® PERIOD 2021-2025

RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES

- Regarding costs: A series of concurrent
projects have led to a shortage of raw materials,
resulting in an increase in input material prices.
So far, localities have identified basic material
sources, but project approval procedures
remain sluggish. Additionally, obtaining
permits for new mining activities s
encountering issues related to land acquisition,
forest use conversion, and difficulties in
negotiating transfer prices.. => HHV s
collaborating with a large number of suppliers
of construction materials and machinery to
increase options and negotiation power
regarding prices. Before initiating a new
project, HHV will engage with material
suppliers through specific contractual terms
regarding supply and mutual support,
stabilizing prices in the event of price
fluctuations.

« Regarding policies: Institutions and policies
still harbor numerous contradictions and
shortcomings, with certain legal provisions
regarding the separation of land clearance
phases into independent projects remaining
entangled. Despite some mechanisms having
been revised, many issues are still under review,
impacting the disbursement progress, which
has not met the planned targets despite
significant improvements compared to 2022.

F 4

Regarding the macroeconomic situation: In
2024, potential risks of global political and
economic environments such as wars, inflation,
etc,, are still present, exerting negative impacts
on Vietnam's economic recovery prospects.
Domestic private investment remains wealk,
yet to rebound from external adversities, and
the domestic business environment is still
unfavorable. Large-scale PPP projects face
challenges in capital mobilization amid
economic downturns. HHV implements
appropriate policies and tools to control input
costs, enhance business operation efficiency,
and proactively manage capital sources, and
detailed planning before investment to
mitigate financial risks. For future projects, the
Company actively seeks funding from credit
institutions, conducts market research, and
meticulously assesses economic conditions
and legal frameworks before investment
decisions to ensure investment effectiveness.

DEOCA
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P Opportunities

« The 13th National Congress of the Communist

Party has set the national goal of having 3,000 km
of expressways by 2025 and 5000 km by 2030.
Alongside the development of expressway
infrastructure, the resolute research and
development of high-speed railway infrastructure
are also among the priority goals in the coming
period. The vision for 2050 includes 25 routes
spanning 6,354 km, with anticipated capital needs
exceeding USD 100 billion. The Government’s vision
and specific goals will generate a tremendous
amount of work forcompaniesin the road transport
infrastructure sector in general and HHV in
particular in the upcoming period.

Public investment remains at a high level: Against
the backdrop of an economy forecasted to continue
facing numerous difficulties and challenges, public
investment continues to play a pivotal role as a
primary driver stimulating overall societal
investment, providing crucial impetus to achieve
the economic growth target of 6% - 6.5% for this
year. The Prime Minister has issued Decision No.
1603/2023 on the allocation of the state budget
investment plan for 2024, with a total amount of
VND 677,349 billion, representing a 12% increase
compared to the implementation in 2023.

With the enactment of the PPP Law effective from
2021, PPP projects will have state budget capital
participation of up to 50% of the total project
investment, significantly. Moreover, at the end of
2023, the National Assembly passed a Resolution to
pilot certain specific investment policies for road
construction projects. Accordingly, the National
Assembly agreed to increase the state capital
participation ratio in investment projects through
the public-private partnership (PPP) model to up
to 70% of the total investment for 2 projects,
including the Dong Dang - Tra Linh expressway
project in which HHV participates in construction
investment. Continuing to increase the state
capital ratio is a significant step forward, enhancing
investment attractiveness for PPP projects by
shortening the payback period, improving
investment efficiency, and minimizing risks for
investors.

O1. GENERAL INFORMATION
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THE 5-YEAR STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT
OBJECTIVES AND ORIENTATIONS FOR THE
® PERIOD 2021-2025 (continued)

OBJECTIVES

Create real value - Enhance real value based on the operational principles of “Reputation - Quality -
Efficiency”.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

As part of the overarching strategy of “focused growth - within the circle of capabilities” of Deo Ca
Group, HHV remains steadfast in developing activities in its core area of investment, construction, and
management of transportation infrastructure with the goal of aiming for the “golden road to create
golden value,” maintaining its position as a leading Investor - Construction contractor - Operation
and maintenance contractor for transportation infrastructure projects “domestically premier and
internationally competitive”.

To implement the above strategy, HHV will continue to enhance its core business areas with the following
key tasks:

P Developing new projects

« During the 2024 - 2025 period, HHV continues to
propose investing in nearly 400 km of expressways,
including the Dong Dang - Tra Linh project (Cao
Bang), Huu Nghi - Chi Lang (Lang Son), Tan Phu - Bao
Loc (Lam Dong), Ho Chi Minh City - Chon Thanh, and
the Ring Road 4 - the segment passing through Binh
Duong province, with a total investment of nearly VND
100 trillion. Initially, the Company, together with its
consortium members, has won the bid to become the
Investor of the Dong Dang - Tra Linh expressway
project, commencing in January 2024.

+ High-quality human resource training, scientific
research and application, consulting, and technology
transfer to carry out projects, launching training
programs of railways and metro to prepare for the
large volume of work in developing railway
infrastructure in the upcoming period.

« In the context of an open economy, HHV continues to
innovate its technology, actively collaborating with
major enterprises in Europe, Japan, South Korea,
China, etc., to access new technologies in the fields of
railways, metro, cable-stayed bridges, suspension
bridges, etc, constantly enhancing its experience and
technical capabilities. Moreover, the Company seeks
investment opportunities for overseas projects, ready
to expand its international presence.

@ Annual report 2023
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generate short-term profits
from construction activities,
HHV employs new
technologies (such as LiDAR
equipment, Digital Twin
technology, BIM modeling,
etc.), utilizes new materials

and structures, and
manages schedules
efficiently to optimize
resources, applying a

delegation-supervision
mechanism in construction.

P Regular production and business operations

« To optimize production and « Continuously  enhancing

construction  capabilities,
operations management,
and diversifying project
participation to strengthen
industry position, expand
and develop production
and business activities,
ensuring sustainable
growth.

O1. GENERAL INFORMATION

« To anticipate upcoming

plans and opportunities,
the Company has allocated
investment capital for
potential projects, invested
in more modern machinery
and equipment, refined
and strengthened
processes, organizational
structures, and enhanced
the skills of its workforce to
ensure the quality of
construction works.

Deo Ca tunnel project
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o 8 KEY EVENTS

16 April 2022
Groundbreaking Ceremony for the Coastal Road project in Binh Dinh Province

« Mr. Nguyen Trong Nghia - Member of Commmunist Party of Vietnam Central Committee'’s
Secretariat, Head of the Communist Party of Vietham Central Committee’s Publicity and
Education Commission

« Mr. Ho Quoc Dung - Secretary of Binh Dinh Provincial Party Committee

« Mr. Nguyen Phi Long - Chairman of Binh Dinh Provincial People’s Committee

« The project has a total investment of over VND 2,263 billion, classified as a Group A road
transport project. The expected construction period is 32 months.

« The Binh Dinh coastal road project, from Cat Tien to Diem Van, begins at the intersection
of the Nhon Hoi Economic Zone extension road and the road leading to the Linh Phong
Pagoda in Cat Tien town, Phu Cat district. The project ends at the connection point with
the Dien Bien Phu road extend to the Diem Van urban area, Phuoc Thuan commune, Tuy
Phuoc district. The total length of the route is approximately 13.6 km, designed as a Class
IIl plain road with a design speed of 80 km/h, with a roadbed width of 20.5 m and an
asphalt concrete surface width of 17.5 m, including 2 lanes for motor vehicles and 2 lanes
for mixed traffic.

15) Annual report 2023 -
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1January 2023
Groundbreaking Ceremony for the Quang Ngai - Hoai Nhon expressway project

« Mr. Pham Minh Chinh - Prime Minister of the Socialist Republic of Viet Nam

« Government delegation

« Ms. Bui Thi Quynh Van - Secretary of Quang Ngai Provincial Party Committee
« Mr. Dang Van Minh - Chairman of Quang Ngai Provincial People's Committee

« Mr. Ho Quoc Dung - Secretary of Binh Dinh Provincial Party Committee

The Quang Ngai - Hoai Nhon expressway project has a total investment of VND 20,470 billion
with a total length of 88 km (60.3 km in Quang Ngai and 27.7 km in Binh Dinh). The starting
point of the project connects to the Da Nang - Quang Ngai expressway at Km127+720 (in
Nghia Ky commune, Tu Nghia district), and the endpoint intersects with Provincial Road 629
in Bong Son ward, Hoai Nhon town, Binh Dinh province. It passes through the districts of Tu
Nghia, Nghia Hanh, Mo Duc, Duc Pho town, Quang Ngai province, and Hoai Nhon town, Binh
Dinh province. The project is divided into 3 bidding packages:

« The first bidding package under the project is the XL1 package with a value of VND 3,862
billion, covering 30 km with a construction period of 34 months. It includes road
infrastructure at Level | and 31 bridge structures (4 Level Il bridges, 20 Level Il bridges, 7
Level IV bridges). The contractor assigned to implement the XL1 package is the consortium
of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company - Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint
Stock Company (HHYV) - Dacinco Construction Investment Company Limited.

« The XL2 package has a value of VND 4,130 billion, covering 27.2 km and is managed by the
consortium of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company - Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company (HHV) - Deo Ca Construction Joint Stock Company
(DCQ).

« The XL3 package has a value of VND 6,689 billion, covering 30.8 km and is managed by the
consortium of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company - Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company (HHV) - Deo Ca Construction Joint Stock Company

N (DC - Truong Long Joint Stock Company (Truong.Long JSC).

H . 4
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° 8 KEY EVENTS (continued)

10 February 2023
Groundbreaking Ceremony for the Prenn Pass Project, Lam Dong Province

4 S
/NI
e« Mr. Tran Duc Quan - Member of Communist Party of Viet Nam Central Committee,
Secretary of the Provincial Party Committee, Chairman of the Provincial People’'s Council

« Mr.Tran Dinh Van - Permanent Deputy Secretary of the Provincial Party Committee, Head
of the Provincial Delegation to the National Assembly of Lam Dong Province

« Mr. Tran Van Hiep - Deputy Secretary of the Provincial Party Committee, Chairman of the
Provincial People’'s Committee

« Members of the Standing Committee of the Provincial Party Committee, and
representatives from Vietnam Fatherland Front of Lam Dong Province

« The investment project to upgrade and expand Prenn Pass in Da Lat city has a total
investment of nearly VND 600 billion from local government budget. With a total length
of 7.4 km and 4 lanes, the route includes the design of a reinforced bridge at Km224+854,
along with 4 vehicle stopping points and 2 scenic overlooks.

8 September 2023
Groundbreaking Ceremony for the Coastal Road Construction project connecting
Lien Chieu port, Da Nang

« Total investment: over VND 1,203 billion (VND 500 billion from the central government
budget and VND 703 billion from the city budget)

« Project owner: Da Nang Management Board of Priority Infrastructure Investment Project

« Project contractor: Consortium consisting of DACINCO Construction Investment Company
Limited, Phu Vinh Construction Company Limited, Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company (HHV), Xuan Quang Construction Joint Stock Company,
Nhat Huy Construction and Trading Company Limited - Viet Anh Investment Joint Stock
Company

« The road section is nearly 3 km long, with a cross-section of 30 m, comprising 6 lanes,
designed for a speed of 60 km/h, with a road surface structure of Grade Al.

The project is expected to be put into operation in 2025, contributing to the development of
the northern area of Da Nang city according to the planning, creating a competitive advantage,
attracting investors, and ensuring the overall economic development of the coastal area and
the economic growth of Da Nang city in the future.
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1January 2024
Groundbreaking Ceremony for the Dong Dang - Tra Linh expressway project

« Mr. Pham Minh Chinh - Prime Minister of the Socialist Republic of Viet Nam
« Government delegation and central ministries and agencies

« Mr. Nguyen Van Thang - Minister of Transport

« Mr. Tran Hong Minh - Secretary of Cao Bang Provincial Party Committee

« Mr. Hoang Xuan Anh - Chairman of Cao Bang Province

The phase 1 of the Dong Dang - Tra Linh expressway project has a total investment of VND
14,331 billion, with a length of 93.35 km, starting at the Tan Thanh border gate intersection, Van
Lang district (Lang Son province), and ending at the intersection with National Highway 3 in
Chi Thao commune, Quang Hoa district (Cao Bang province). The expressway is designed
according to TCVN 5729-2012 standards, with a design speed of 80 km/h, and a cross-section
width of 17 m for regular sections and 13.5 m for complex sections. The total investment for
phase 1is VND 14,331 billion, expected to be completed in 2026, with an anticipated payback
period of 24 years and 10 months. The consortium consisting of Deo Ca Group, ICV Vietnam
Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company, Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment
Joint Stock Company (HHV), and 568 Construction Joint Stock Company is the project investor
under the PPP model, with a BOT contract according to Decision No. 1629/QD-UBND of the
Cao Bang Provincial People's Committee.

INC iH CAD BAN SMND H L#

“Nosoca LE KHOI CONG Nev.

. DU AN DAU TU XAY DUNG TUYEN cAD TOC
DONG DANG (TINH LANG SON) - TRA LINH (TINH CAD BANG)
THED HINH THUT DODI TAC CONE . TU (PPP)

Cao Bang, ngay 71 thang 01 nam 2024
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REPORT OF THE BOARD
@ OF MANAGEMENT

EVALUATE BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE

P Business performance in 2023

- Seperated business performance: Currency: VND billion

2023
Growth rate
Indicator 2022
Completion 2023/2022
Plan Results o
rate (%)

Total production 958.76 1,433.52 1,466.50 102.30% 152.96%
2 Total revenue 953.23 1,440.00 1,465.52 101.77% 53.74%
3 Total expenses 784.90 1,201.46 1,272.56 105.92% 62.13%
4 Profit before tax 200.52 238.54 216.72 90.85% 8.08%
5 Net profit after tax 167.40 190.84 173.92 91.13% 3.89%

Thanks to the determination to accelerate and disburse public investment capital in 2023, there has been
strong growth in business performance indicators in 2023 compared to the same period. Total revenue
in 2023 increased by VND 513 billion, representing a 53.74% growth compared to 2022. Both profit before
tax and net profit after tax in 2023 also saw respective increases of 8.08% and 3.89%. However, alongside
these achievements, 2023 also posed several challenges in the construction industry, notably the sharp
increase in prices of construction materials, particularly sand (average monthly price surge of 1.5% due to
supply shortages and high construction demand). Consequently, the company was significantly impacted
by these factors, leading to a VND 488 billion increase in total expenses, corresponding to a 62.13% rise
compared to 2022.

DEOCA 02. BUSINESS REPORT IN 2023

INFRASTRUCTURE

+ Consolidated business performance: Currency: VND billion

2023

Indicator _ Growth rate
Completion 2023/2022
Plan Results
rate (%)

1 Total production 2,10211 2,599.37 2,671.77 102.79% 27.10%
2 Total revenue 2,094.58 2,478.17 2,685.54 108.37% 28.21%
3 Total expenses 1,798.83 2,101.19 2,337.73 11.26% 29.96%
4 Profit before tax 353.93 389.44 42472 109.06% 20.00%
5 Net profit after tax 297.41 338.58 364.46 107.64% 22.54%

Net revenue in 2023 increased by over VND 590 billion (+28.21%) compared to 2022. Both profit before
tax and net profit after tax recorded growth rates of 20.00% and 22.54% respectively compared to 2022.
Revenue from toll collection activities of BOT projects still accounts for the largest proportion of total
consolidated revenue. Currently, the toll collection of ongoing projects remains stable, and revenue has
consistently shown growth in recent year.

P Business plan for 2024:

+ Seperated business plan:

Currency: VND billion

Total revenue 953.23 1,465.52 1,732.44
2 Total expenses 784.90 1,272.56 1,551.43
3 Net profit after tax 167.40 173.92 161.80

« Consolidated business plan: Currency: VND billion

Total revenue 2,094.58 2,685.54 3,146.41
2 Total expenses 1,798.83 2,337.73 2,753.84
3 Net profit after tax 297.41 364.46 404.10

Annual report 2023 @
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REPORT OF THE BOARD
® OF MANAGEMENT (continued)

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CASH FLOW

HHV is currently investing in 06 large-scale road infrastructure projects under the PPP model, with a
total investment of nearly VND 4,000 billion. Furthermore, the company is continuing to research and
implement new PPP projects in various sectors such as expressway projects, high-speed railway projects,
Metroline projects, etc.

To ensure funding for investment activities and regular business operations, in 2023, the company
implemented a plan to issue additional shares to the public for existing shareholders, raising over VND
800 billion.

At present, the company's charter capital stands at VND 4,116,801,690,000 fundamentally meeting the
current production and investment needs.

06 Participating capital
traffic infrastructure 3 ) ; 831

projects under the billion
PPP model

The company
has raised an 83
additional VND

830 billion crue
through a stock billion
offering

Current charter capital is

4,116,801,690,000 VND

@ Annual report 2023
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INVESTMENT STATUS AND PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

Total EahAS Revenue in Net profit after Concession

Project name investment pagg;ﬁzﬂon 2023 tax in 2023 start date

The projects in which HHV directly invests

Phuoc Tuong - Phu Gia tunnel 1,559 294 173 21 20716

National Highway 1 Expansion

project - Khanh Hoa province B ez S [C2 e

Deo Ca - Co Ma - Cu Mong - Hai 21,612 1,675 1,006 69 2018
Van tunnel system

Bac Giang Lang Son 12,188 1158 394 71 2020

expressway

Commitment

. Construction
to participate:

Dong Dang Tra Linh

14,331 - - commence in
expressway VND 2l January 2024
billion
HHV’s participation in the project is through business cooperation contracts
Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Scheduled for
expressway 8925 365 : : April 2024
Total 61,259 3,831 1,886 263

*Data updated as the first quarter of 2024.

Cam Lam - Vinh Hao expressway project

-
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REPORT OF THE BOARD
® OF MANAGEMENT (continued)

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, POLICY AND MANAGEMENT
IMPROVEMENTS

GENERAL ASSEMBLY
OF SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

INTERNAL AUDIT
DEPARTMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS INTERNAL CONTROL
OFFICE BOARD

REPRESENTATIVE SPECIALIZED SUBSIDIARY
OFFICES DEPARTMENTS ENTERPRISES

<“------ > _ > - -=-

Coordinating Directing Controlling

In 2023, the Company underwent organizational and operational adjustments within its Specialized
Departments to meet the requirements of its business development in the new context. Among these
adjustments was the establishment of the Internal Control Board as a subcommittee under the Board
of Directors. The Internal Control Board issued regulations on internal control within HHV and a charter
outlining its organization and operation. This laid the foundation for the committee to ensure compliance
with legal regulations and adapt to the company's actual circumstances. It aimed to enhance the
effectiveness of risk prevention and control through three lines of defense: “Pre-check - Post-check -
Re-check” and various control tools, all aimed at optimizing profits for the Company and its shareholders.

@ Annual report 2023
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE TO THE AUDIT OPINION:

The separate and consolidated financial statements of HHV for the year 2023 were audited by the Southern
Auditing and Accounting Financial Consulting Services Company Limited (AASCS) with unqualified
opinion.

REPORT RELATED TO SUSTAINABLE CAPITAL MARKET ACTIVITIES:

The green capital market is a fundamental infrastructure serving green investment, directing the
development of financial products. Regulations for green market operations aim to facilitate capital
mobilization for environmentally friendly programs, projects, and production and business activities. These
regulations also involve environmental protection measures and climate change adaptation. Additionally,
regulations for green market operations serve policy needs in directing capital flows toward green growth/
sustainable development objectives, contributing to investor awareness and providing clarity for issuers,
market intermediaries regarding responsibility and implementation of business operations in line with
green market trends.

Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Expressway Project
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EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
COMPANY'’S ACTIVITIES

The year 2023 was assessed as a year of mixed challenges and opportunities, directly impacting HHV's
production and business activities. Against this backdrop, the Board of Directors closely adhered to the
targets set by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2023. They provided specific planning
directions, ensuring timely and comprehensive implementation of governance solutions. They guided
operations based on the Management - Supervision mechanism throughout the company, with the
primary task of ensuring the company’'s financial situation, overcoming challenges to maintain and
develop production and business. This approach aimed to facilitate and maximize the proactivity and
flexibility in fulfilling the responsibilities of HHV's leadership, officers, employees, and workers. Specifically:

> The outcomes of implementing the resolutions of the G

Shareholders regarding the production and business plz

In compliance with the Annual General Meetingof Shareholders's Resolution No.01/2023/NQ-DHDCD
dated 24 April 2023, the Board of Directors provided guidance, closely monitored, and worked closely with
the Company's Executive Board to devise solutions to overcome challenges. The focus was on executing
the production and business plans endorsed by the General Assembly of Shareholders’s. The specific
outcomes are as follows:

Currency: VND billion

Parent company Results for Growth Rate Completion Rate of
. 20 Pl ifer 2028 2023 compared to 2022 the 2023 Plan
Net revenue 953.23 1,440.00 1,465.52 53.74% 101.77%

2 Net profit after tax 167.40 190.84 173.92 3.89% 91.13%

Currency: VND billion

Consolldated Results for Growth Rate Completion Rate of
. Eeze PR e 2025 2023 compared to 2022 the 2023 Plan
Net revenue 2,094.58 2,478.17 2,685.54 28.21% 108.37%

2 Net profit after tax 297.41 338.58 364.46 22.54% 107.64%

« The dividend payout ratio is 7% (shareholders owning 100 shares receive an additional 7 new shares),
achieving 100% of the plan;

« The average income of employees is 11,059,372 VND/person/month, an increase of 15.68% compared to
2022;

« HHV ensures absolute safety in all activities, with financial conditions being healthy and transparently
disclosed.

@ Annual report 2023
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Although the revenue and net profit after tax of the parent company HHV in 2023 were affected by the
economic downturn in the post-pandemic period, the overall difficulties facing the country, and various
other factors, positive and encouraging results have been achieved in the core areas of the Company’s
main activities, such as:

« Investment activities have been intensified through the continued increase in the capital contribution
ratio to operating project enterprises (such as Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock Company, Bac Giang -
Lang Son BOT Joint Stock Company, Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT Joint Stock Company) and capital
injection into new project enterprises (such as Dong Dang - Tra Linh Expressway Joint Stock Company)
to implement the construction investment project of Dong Dang - Tra Linh expressway;

« The construction and installation activities for contracts at ongoing projects such as the Cam Lam -
Vinh Hao expressway, the Quang Ngai - Hoai Nhon expressway, the upgrade and expansion of the
Prenn Pass (Lam Dong province), the coastal road section from Cat Tien to Diem Van in Binh Dinh
province, the construction project of the coastal road connecting Lien Chieu port - Da Nang city... have
been carried out to ensure compliance with the schedule and quality commitments;

« The management of operation, toll collection, and maintenance of transportation infrastructure
constructions (such as the Deo Ca tunnel, Cu Mong tunnel, Hai Van tunnel, Phuoc Tuong - Phu Gia
tunnel, Mui Trau tunnel, Bac Giang - Lang Son expressway, National Highway 1A section through Khanh
Hoa province, Trung Luong - My Thuan expressway, etc.) has been carried out to ensure compliance
with the established plans and contracts signed with the investors;

« The operations of subsidiary enterprises engaged in trading and services, mechanical processing, etc.,
have been consistently maintained, with stable revenue sources and high-quality products and services
(materials and mechanical equipment installed for various contracts, transportation services for people
and vehicles through the Hai Van tunnel, bottled purified drinking water products, etc.), continuously
improved,

« Furthermore, due to continued effortsin implementing cost-saving policies for enterprise management
and various other expenses compared to 2022, the proportion of expenses to revenue has not undergone
significant fluctuations.

The implementation results of other resolutions/decisio

Assembly of Shareholders in 2023

In 2023, the Company fully and earnestly implemented all resolutions/decisions of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders for the year 2023, specifically as follows:

« The company established a Reserve Fund for additional capital injection with an amount of VND
1,673,972,699; allocated funds for rewards and welfare with an amount of VND 5,021,918,096 and
completed the issuance of 21,545,901 shares for the distribution of dividends for the year 2022 according
to Resolution No.02/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 24 April 2023 of the General Assembly of Shareholders on
approving profit distribution, dividend payment for 2022 and profit distribution plan for 2023. Following
the additional share issuance to pay dividends for 2022, the company’s charter capital increased from
VND 3,078,044,500,000 to VND 3,293,503,510,000;

o Successfully completed the offering of the entire 82,329,818 newly issued shares to existing shareholders
and investors, increasing HHV'’s total charter capital from VND 3,293,503,510,000 to VND 4,116,801,690,000
in accordance with Resolution No0.03/2023/NQ-DHDCD and Resolution No.04/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated
24 April 2023 of the General Assembly of Shareholders. The completion of the additional share offering
for existing shareholders in 2023, with a nearly 100% success rate, not only enabled the Company to raise
capital forinvestmentactivities, production development,and business expansion butalsodemonstrated
the confidence of valued shareholders and investors in HHV's brand value and reputation in the current

market;
Annual report 2023 @
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REPORT OF THE BOARD
® OF DIRECTORS (continued)

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
COMPANY'’S ACTIVITIES (continued)

The implementation results of other resolution

General Assembly of Shareholders in 2023 (cont

« In 2023, the Company did not implement the plan to issue private placement shares as per Resolution
N0.05/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 24 April 2023 of the General Assembly of Shareholders due to the
extended timeline for the implementation of the additional share offering to existing shareholders in
2023 compared to the planned schedule. The Board of Directors will submit to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholdersin 2024 for consideration the cancellation of the plan toissue private placement
shares mentioned above and approve a new plan for issuing private placement shares in 2024 that is
more in line with the actual situation at HHYV;

« The company has selected and signed an auditing contract with Southern Auditing and Accounting
Financial Consulting Services Company Limited (AASCS) to conduct independent audits/reviews for
the financial statements issued in 2023, as per the resolution of the General Assembly of Shareholders
under Resolution No.01/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 24 April 2023. The signing of the auditing contract as
well as the audited/reviewed financial statements have been disclosed and reported to the relevant
state management authorities in compliance with current regulations;

« The company has completed the necessary procedures according to regulations to register additional
new business sectors and industries (other unclassified mining; sector code: 0899) into HHV's business
sector and industry portfolio as per the Resolution No0.08/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 24 April 2023 of the
General Assembly of Shareholders. The addition of new sectors and industries enables the company to
be more proactive and optimize existing resources to expand into various manufacturing and business
sectors;

« In compliance with Resolutions No0.06/2023/NQ-DHDCD and No.07/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 24 April
2023 of the General Assembly of Shareholders, the Board of Directors has directed relevant departments
to update, modify, and issue Regulationsand Chartersto ensure consistent implementation throughout
the Company.

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
COMPANY’S BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Through the implementation of management and supervision tasks in 2023, the Board of Directors
unanimously recognized and highly valued the sense of responsibility and efforts of the Board of
Management and the individual General Director in managing and directing the Company’'s operations.
During the year, the General Director, Deputy General Directors, and managerial staff developed specific
plans and proposed various measures to fully implement and synchronize the resolutions and decisions
of the General Assembly of Shareholders and the Board of Directors. Throughout the management
and operation process, Board of Management adhered well to the provisions of the Company’'s Charter,
corporate governance regulations, and other internal management regulations. The General Director
effectively fulfilled their role, authority, and responsibilities as the leader, proactively providing timely

@ Annual report 2023
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guidance and organizing the implementation of the directions and goals set by the General Assembly of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors. The management and operation of the Board of Management
ensured effectiveness and efficiency.

Overall, the Board of Management has successfully fulfilled its assigned tasks; HHV's production and
business activities have been consistently maintained and developed in line with the established direction,
contributing significantly to the achievement of the fundamental objectives approved by the General
Assembly of Shareholders. The financial reporting system in 2023 was established, audited, and disclosed
in compliance with the relevant accounting standards and regulations. The organizational structure,
management, and control system of the Company have been consistently maintained and continuously
improved, operating effectively and efficiently. The Company has performed well in shareholder relations
and information disclosure as required by regulations. The Board of Management has maintained strong
communication with shareholders, ensuring timely and comprehensive dissemination of important
information reflecting the Company's performance to its shareholders and investors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS'S PLANS AND
DIRECTIONS FOR THE NEXT YEAR

Entering 2024, despite persisting challenges, the economic and social landscape of Vietnam is anticipated
to continue its recovery and growth cycle. Aspires to maintain its position as a leading enterprise in Vietnam
and the region in investment, construction, training, and management of transportation infrastructure,
the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company outlines the
directional plan for activities in 2024 as follows:

P General operational orientat

Enhance corporate governance and operational
management; continue implementing solutions
to improve the quality of company management
based on preserving and leveraging the core
values of “Aspirations - Decisiveness -
Gratefulness”, flexibly and extensively applying
the management principle of “Manage people -
Manage tasks - Manage benefits” with the
management philosophy that “Every road lead to
a destination”, aiming to increase revenue, profit,
optimize costs, increase sustainable value, and
ensure and harmonize the interests of
shareholders and stakeholders.

Organize the implementation of directions,
resolutions, and development plans for
manufacturing and business activities, and
enhance investment in transportation
infrastructure projects approved by the General
Assembly of Shareholders, especially the North-
South East expressway phase 2, expressway
projects in Northern, Central Highlands, and
Southeastern provinces, and other key projects.

Leverage the role, authority, and responsibilities
of the Board of Directors in implementing

activities and tasks within its jurisdiction: Review,
enhance, and promote delegation and
decentralization to each member of the Board of
Directors towards autonomy and ensuring
independence, objectivity, and alignment with
expertise and experience; strengthen supervision
activities such as monitoring, urging primary
production and business activities, as well as
ongoing and future projects of HHV. Additionally,
inspection and supervision must be closely linked
with adjusting, supplementing, amending, and
perfecting internal regulations to conclusively
address existing limitations, mitigate risks, and
contribute to enhancing the effectiveness of
corporate governance and management.

Continue restructuring human resources to align
with the current situation and management
requirements by enhancing delegation and
empowerment for the Board of Management to
improve the organizational management system,
ensuring that management and operations are
conducted swiftly and effectively.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD
o OF DIRECTORS (continued)

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
COMPANY'S BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (continued)

P General operational orientation (continte

« Directing the continued implementation of
synchronized solutions to enhance the core
capabilities of HHV and its subsidiaries, coupled
with brand recognition. This includes focusing on
new investments and modernizing machinery,
equipment, and vehicles, as well as promoting
and facilitating the adoption of modern
technology, digital transformation, and
automation in processing and task resolution.
Emphasis is placed on conducting internal
training to continually improve the capabilities
and professional qualifications of managerial staff
at all levels and employees, and enhancing the
application of an effective job performance
evaluation system in personnel assessment at the
company.

« Directing the implementation of solutions to
enhance HHV's capital and financial capacity:
Deploying capital mobilization solutions following
the PPP++ model;organizing reviews and statistics
of major and regular expenses and proposing
effective cost-saving measures; continuing to

maximize the efficiency of short-term capital
utilization and diversifying financial instruments;
reporting and coordinating with the parent
company to explore medium and long-term
financial investment channels to effectively utilize
resources for the company's capital needs;
managing cash flow effectively, ensuring progress,
and efficiently utilizing capital in invested projects.

Coordinate and facilitate favorable conditions for
the Company's Board of Supervisors and
independent agencies, organizations, and
shareholders to participate in monitoring and
inspecting HHV's activities to ensure and enhance
transparency in the Company’s operations.

Continuing to uphold effective disclosure and
shareholder relations activities, the HHV’'s Board
of Directors recognizes that one of the crucial
factors for sustainable business development is
consistently adhering to legal regulations and
ensuring transparency and openness with state
regulatory authorities and shareholders.

P Production and business plan targets for 2024

DEOCA
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2 3 REPORTS FROM
@ SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Project Project

No. Total Investment

Name Company

Phuoc Tuzguopchu Total investment:
ey ond (24 VND 1,559 billion
9 - - Owner's equity:
1 Phu Gia Joint Stock VND 262 billion
tun.nel Compa'my - Borrowed capital:
project | (subsidiary - -y ym 1 597 billion
company) '

Collection Project Scale

Toll Proiect IR AAS
rojec Benefit

Period Location Ratio

Phuoc Tuong tunnel:
357 m, 2-way approach
road and bridge on a 4.1

19 years km route Thua Thien
(2016 - Hue 99.32%
2035) Phu Gia tunnel: 447m, province

2-way approach road
and bridge on a 2.6 km
route

Ba_chrljang Total investment:

Bac Giang - 9 VND 12,188 billion
Lang Son e B - Owner's equity:
9 Joint Stock quity:
expressway VND 1,645 billion
project eIy - Borrowed capital:
(subsidiary ’

VND 10,543 billion

company)

23 Bac Giang - Lang Son Bac Giang
VRIS U expressway: 63.86 km and Lan
months pressway: 5o. : 9 7036%
(2020 - National Highway 1 Sgn
2049) route: 110.2 km provinces

Subsidiary company:
PHUOC TUONG PHU GIA BOT

VND billion 3,146.41

In cash or shares, maximum 5% based on par value per share
but ensuring not higher than the retained earnings per the separate financial
statements of the parent company

@ Annual report 2023

Consolidated total revenue

Dividend payment

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

o Year of establishment: 12 June 2013.

« HHV Company holds 99.32% of the actual
contributed capital.

« Main products/services: Investing in the
construction and operation of the Phuoc Tuong -
Phu Gia tunnel project.
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REPORTS FROM
o SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (continued)

Subsidiary company:
PHUOC TUONG PHU GIA BOT JOINT
STOCK COMPANY (continued)

« Summary of business performance for the year:

%

Indicators Ta rgg; elg 2023 2022 Achievement G r(;\(/)vég/;%tzezfor
of Targets

Net revenue 202.63 173.19 203.66 85% -14.96%

Cost of goods sold 79.78 84.25 82.35 106% 2.31%
Gross profit 122.85 88.94 121.3] 72% -26.68%
Net profit before tax 32.31 23.32 30.57 72% -23.72%
Net profit after tax 29.58 21.10 27.87 71% -24.29%
Total assets 1,358.16 1,386.43 -2.04%

Assets structure Capital structure

B Long-term liabilities
B Short-term liabilities
B Owner’s equity

ﬂ B Short-term assets

B Long-term assets

Short-term assets Long-term assets

=

B Fixed assets
@ Other long-term assets
B Long-term receivables

B Cash and cash equivalents

B short-term receivables
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Subsidiary company:

DEO CA INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
« Establishment date: 5 April 2010
« The parent company holds 72.09% of the charter capital.

. Main products/services: Investment in construction and operation of road tunnel projects through Deo
Ca Pass (Including: Deo Ca tunnel, Co Ma tunnel, Cu Mong tunnel, and Hai Van tunnel).

« Summary of business performance for the year:

%
2023 2022 Achievement

Targets for Growth rate for

Indicators

2023 o Jerasie 2023/2022
Net revenue 959.03 1,005.70 994.09 105% 117%
Cost of goods sold 449.87 45254 464.71 101% -2.62%
Gross profit 509.16 553.16 529.38 109% 4.49%
Net profit before tax 67.15 88.09 64.76 131% 36.03%
Net profit after tax 6715 68.69 41.81 102% 64.29%
Total assets 19,864.70 19,515.42 1.79%
Assets structure Capital structure

99%

B Long-term liabilities

Short-term assets e

: Long-term assets @ Short-term liabilities
B Owner's equity

\

Short-term assets

B Cash and cash equivalents
B Short-term investments

Long-term assets

B Short-term receivables
B Other short-term assets

B Fixed assets
B Long-term investments
B Other long-term assets
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o SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (continued)

Subsidiary company:
BAC GIANG - LANG SON BOT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

« Establishment date: 11 September 2015

« The parent company holds 70.36% of the charter capital.

. Main products/services: Investment in construction and operation of the Bac Giang - Lang Son

expressway project.

« Summary of business performance for the year:

Indicators

Net revenue

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Net profit before tax

Net profit after tax

Total assets

Assets structure

99%

N\

Long-term assets

Targets for

5023 2023
330.00 393.75
211.35 199.66
118.65 194.09
12.90 71.49
12.90 71.49
13,433.84

B Short-term assets
B Long-term assets

B Fixed assets
@ Other long-term assets
B Long-term receivables

1%
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2022

286.35

144.48
141.87

49.54
49.54

12,758.19

Capital structure

Short-term assets

g

Achievement

%

Growth rate for

TS 2023/2022
119% 37.51%
94% 3819%
164% 36.81%
554% 44.31%
554% 44.31%

530%

B Long-term liabilities
B Short-term liabilities
B Owner’s equity

@ Cash and cash equivalents
B Short-term receivables

@ Other short-term assets

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

Affiliate company:
KHANH HOA DEO CA BOT INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

« Establishment date: Established on 22 April 2013.

02. BUSINESS REPORT IN 2023

« HHV company holds 50% of the charter capital (including HHV holding 40% and DCIC holding 10% of

the charter capital).

- Main products/services: Toll collection for the expansion project of National Highway 1 passing through

Khanh Hoa province.

« Summary of business performance for the year:

Indicators

Targets for

Achievement

o)
i Growth rate for

Net revenue

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Net profit before tax

Net profit after tax

Total assets

Assets structure

Long-term assets

85%

\

2023
301.17 313.33
99.83 106.47
201.34 206.86
103.85 106.94
98.65 101.60
1,794.75

B Short-term assets
B Long-term assets

B Fixed assets
B Other long-term assets
B Long-term receivables

of Targets 2023/2022
297.60 104% 5.29%
100.48 107% 5.96%
19712 103% 4.94%
105.78 103% 1.10%
100.49 103% 110%
1,841.23 -2.52%

Capital structure

B>

Short-term assets

W

B Long-term liabilities
B Short-term liabilities
B Owner’s equity

@ Cash and cash equivalents
B short-term receivables
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INFRASTRUCTURE

STOCK INFORMATION AND
® SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

STOCKINFORMATION

P As at 31 December 2023

Exchange HOSE

Par value 10,000 VND per share

Treasury stock O shares

Market capitalization*® VND 5,088,462,922,950

*Closing price and market capitalization are determined as at 29 December 2023 - the last
trading day of 2023 on the HOSE.

Stock information of HHV after the issuance to existing sharehold

in 2023

« As at 29 February 2024

Par value 10,000 VND per share

Treasury stock O shares

VND 6,319,290,594,150

Market capitalization

@ Annual report 2023

DEOCA 03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INFRASTRUCTURE

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

P As at 29 February 2024

. Based on the Shareholder List as at 29 February 2024 provided by VSDC

Total number of major shareholders: 01

Percentage of share

. Nationalit
ownership Y

Blockholder Type of shareholder

B.O.T Hai Thach Investment Joint Stock
Company

Founding shareholders
(domestic - foreign)

Organization 16.09% Vietnam

None

Preferred shareholders None

Annual report 2023 @



03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

STOCK INFORMATION AND
SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE (continued)

STOCK INFORMATION (continued)

P situation of change in charter capital

« In 2023, HHV conducted two public issuances of additional shares

First issuance — Issuance of shares to pay dividends for 2022

Start date
End date
Number of additional shares issued

Total value of shares issued at par value

Issuance ratio

Purpose

Number of shares outstanding after issuance

Charter capital after issuance:

23 May 2023

08 June 2023
21,546,312 shares
VND 215,463,120,000

100:7 (For every 100 shares owned, share-
holders received 7 additional shares)

Issuance to pay dividends for 2022
329,350,351 shares

VND 3,293,503,510,000

Second issuance — Offering shares to existing shareholders

Start date

End date

Number of shares successfully issued

Total value of shares issued at par value

Offer price

Issuance ratio

Purpose

Number of shares outstanding after issuance

Charter capital after issuance

@ Annual report 2023

13 November 2023
15 January 2023

82,329,818 shares - Achieved 99.99% of
the plan

VND 823,298,180,000

10,000 VND per share

4]

Supplementing the charter capital
to support the company's business
operations and investments.

411,680,169 shares

VND 4,116,801,690,000

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

3.2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INTRODUCTION OF THE
LEADERSHIP BOARD

« Year of birth: 1972
( ‘ « Nationality: Vietnamese

« Professional qualifications: Electrical Engineer, Master of Business Administration
« Work experience:
+ 04/2010 - 06/2019: General Director of Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock Company
+12/2017 - 01/2020: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock
Company
+ 05/2018 - 12/2023: Chairman of Deo Ca Capital Company Limited
+12/2013 to present: Capital-contributing member of Deo Ca Capital Company Limited
+06/2018 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+ 01/2019 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Trung Luong - My Thuan BOT Joint
Stock Company
+08/2019 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+02/2021 - 10/2021: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hung Thinh Incons Joint Stock
Company
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: 1,962,000 shares, accounting for 0.47% of the total voting shares
of the company.

Mr. HO MINH HOANG

Chairman of the Board of

—\Directo rs

« Positions held in other companies:
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors of Trung Luong - My Thuan BOT Joint Stock Company
+ Member of the Board of Members of Deo Ca Capital Company Limited.
+Thanh vién HDTV Céng ty TNHH Déo Ca Capital.

Year of birth: 1977
Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Civil Engineer, Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)

S

« Work experience:
+ 07/2016 - 01/2017: Member of the Board of Directors of Hai Van unnel Management and
Operation Joint Stock Company
+ 2013 - 2019: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock
Company
+ 06/2019 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT Joint
Stock Company
+07/2019 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Saigon - Phu Yen Bridges Construction
Investment Joint Stock Company
+2019 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+ 2019 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Trung Luong - My Thuan BOT
Joint Stock Company
+08/2019 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 08/2023 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors and General Director - The first legal
representative of Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Expressway Joint Stock Company.
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: 5,678,027 shares (representative ownership: 5,549,627 shares,
individual ownership: 128,400 shares), accounting for 1.38% of the total voting shares of the
company.

Mr. NGUYEN TAN DONG

Vice Chairman of the Board of

jDi rectors

« Positions held in other companies:
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Trung Luong - My Thuan BOT Joint Stock Company
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors of Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT Joint Stock Company

+ Member of the Board of Directors of Saigon - Phu Yen Bridges Construction Investment Joint
Stock Company

+ Chairman of the Board of Directors and General Director - The first legal representative of
Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Expressway Joint Stock Company.

Annual report 2023 @
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3.2

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

INTRODUCTION OF THE
LEADERSHIP BOARD (continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

, n

G

Mr. NGUYEN HUU HUNG

Vice Chairman of the Board of

_\Directors

@ Annual report 2023

« Year of birth: 1983
« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Accounting, Bachelor of Economics specializing in
management systems, Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
« Work experience:
+ 2016 - 2017: Deputy Head of Finance and Accounting Department of ICV Vietnam Investment
and Construction Joint Stock Company
+ 2017 - 2018: Deputy Head of Finance Division of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+ 2017 - 2018: Chief Accountant of ICV Vietnam Investment and Construction Joint Stock
Company
+ 2018 - 2019: Chief Accountant of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+02/2020 - 02/2022: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+12/2021 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock
Company
+ 02/2020 - 16/04/2024: Member of the Board of Directors of Ha Thanh International Trading
Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 08/2020 to present: Head of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Construction Joint Stock
Company
+10/2021 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Investment
Joint Stock Company
+10/2021 - 16/04/2024: Member of the Board of Directors of B.O.T Hai Thach Investment Joint
Stock Company
+ 04/2022 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+12/2022 - 02/2023: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation
and Maintenance Joint Stock Company
+ 12/2023 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Dong Dang - Tra Linh
Expressway Joint Stock Company
+17/04/2024 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT
Joint Stock Company
+ 17/04/2024 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Huu Nghi - Chi Lang
Expressway Joint Stock Company.
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies:
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+Member of the Board of Directors of Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Investment Joint Stock Company
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Dong Dang - Tra Linh Expressway Joint Stock
Company
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bac Giang — Lang Son BOT Joint Stock Company
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Huu Nghi — Chi Lang Expressway Joint Stock
Company
+ Head of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Construction Joint Stock Company.

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE
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™

-

P

Mr. VO THUY LINH

Member of the Board of
Directors

N\

. . e N

Mr. NGUYEN QUANG HUY

Member of the Board of
Directors, General Director

03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

« Year of birth: 1971
« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Electrical Engineer, Executive Master of Business Administration
(ExMBA)
« Work experience:
+ 2009 - 2015: General Director of Hai Thach Group Joint Stock Company
+ 03/2016 - 09/2016: Member of the Board of Directors, Deputy General Director of Hai Van
Tunnel Management and Operation Joint Stock Company
+ 07/2015 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 2018 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock
Company
+12/2009 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors, General Director of B.O.T Hai Thach
Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 03/2010 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock
Company
+ 06/2016 to 04/2022: Member of the Board of Supervisors of Hai Thach Group Joint Stock
Company
+12/2022 - 07/2023: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation
and Maintenance Joint Stock Company
+10/2023 to present: Head of the Board of Supervisors of Trung Luong - My Thuan BOT
Investment Joint Stock Company.
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: 66,233,000 shares (representative ownership: 66,233,000
shares, individual ownership: O shares), accounting for 16.09% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies:
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors, General Director of B.O.T Hai Thach Investment Joint
Stock Company
+ Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock Company
+Head of the Board of Supervisors of Trung Luong - My Thuan BOT Investment Joint Stock
Company.

« Year of birth: 1990
« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Civil Engineer specializing in transportation construction, Master
of Transport Construction Engineering, Executive Master of Business Administration (ExMBA)
« Work experience:
+12/2020 to present: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+06/2020 - 12/2020: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint
Stock Company
+12/2020 to present: General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock
Company
+ 11/2021 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+06/2019 - 03/2022: Member of the Board of Directors of HoanglLong Construction Consulting
Joint Stock Company
+ 10/2020 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of South Quang Ngai Urban
Development and Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 04/2021 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of VINALOG Investment Joint
Stock Company
+12/2022 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and
Maintenance Joint Stock Company.
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: 246,100 shares, accounting for 0.06% of the total voting shares
of the company.
« Positions held in other companies:
+ Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+Chairman of the Board of Directors of South Quang Ngai Urban Development and Investment
Joint Stock Company
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of VINALOG Investment Joint Stock Company
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and Maintenance Joint
Stock Company.
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DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

INTRODUCTION OF THE
LEADERSHIP BOARD (continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. TRAN CHUNG

Non-executive member of the
Board of Directors

i\

’ )

Mr. HOANG VAN HAI

Independent member of the

—\Board of Directors

@ Annual report 2023

« Year of birth: 1947
« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Associate Professor, Ph.D. in Construction, Civil Engineering.
« Work experience:
+ 2015 - 2019: Senior advisor of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+ 06/2020 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 01/2020 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock
Company
+ 05/2017 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT Joint
Stock Company
+ 03/2023 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of ICV Vietnam Investment and
Construction Joint Stock Company.
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies:
+ Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock Company
+ Member of the Board of Directors of Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT Joint Stock Company
+ Member of the Board of Directors of ICV Vietnam Investment and Construction Joint Stock
Company.

« Year of birth: 1966
« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Associate Professor, Ph.D. in Economics, Bachelor of Business
Economics
« Work experience:
+1989 - 1998: Lecturer at the Department of Corporate Management, Thuongmai University
+1998 - 2000: Deputy Head of Department of Corporate Accounting, Thuongmai University
+ 2000 - 2002: Deputy Head of Department of Corporate Management, Thuongmai University
+ 2002 - 2007: Head of Department of Corporate Management, Thuongmai University
+ 2007 - 02/2012: Deputy Head of Department of Business Administration, University of
Economics and Business - Vietnam National University, Hanoi
+ 02/2012 - 07/2016: Head of Department of Business Administration, University of Economics
and Business - Vietnam National University, Hanoi
+ 07/2016 to present: Director of the Institute of Business Administration, University of
Economics and Business - Vietnam National University, Hanoi
+ 06/2020 to present: Independent member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic
Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company.
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies: None.

DEOCA
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. J/

Mr. HO QUANG LOI

Independent member of the
Board of Directors

RN

03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

« Year of birth: 1956
« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Educational background: Bachelor's degree.
« Work experience:
+1980 - 2008: Colonel, Deputy Editor-in-Chief of People’'s Army Newspaper
+2008 - 2010: Editorial Director of “Hanoi moi” Newspaper
+ 2008 - 2010: Chairman of the Hanoi Journalists Association
+ 2010 - 2015: Member of the Standing Committee of the Municipal Party Committee, Head of
the Propaganda Department of the Hanoi Municipal Party Commmittee
+ 2015 - 2021: Permanent Vice Chairman, Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of the
Vietnam Journalists Association
+ 2021 to present: President of the Vietnam - Romania Friendship Association
+ 2022 to present: Vice President of the Vietnam Digital Communications Association
+ 04/2022 to present: Independent member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic
Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies: None.

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

( |

Mr. NGUYEN QUANG HUY

Member of Board of Directors,
General Director

RN

« Year of birth: 1990
« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Civil Engineer specializing in transportation construction, Master
of Transport Construction Engineering, Executive Master of Business Administration (ExMBA)
« Work experience:
+12/2020 to present: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+06/2020 - 12/2020: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint
Stock Company
+12/2020 to present: General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock
Company
+ 11/2021 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+06/2019 - 03/2022: Member of the Board of Directors of HoangLong Construction Consulting
Joint Stock Company
+ 10/2020 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of South Quang Ngai Urban
Development and Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 04/2021 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of VINALOG Investment Joint
Stock Company
+12/2022 to present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and
Maintenance Joint Stock Company.
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: 246,100 shares, accounting for 0.06% of the total voting shares
of the company.
« Positions held in other companies:
+ Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors of South Quang Ngai Urban Development and Investment
Joint Stock Company
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of VINALOG Investment Joint Stock Company
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and Maintenance Joint
Stock Company.

Annual report 2023 @



03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

3.2

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

INTRODUCTION OF THE
LEADERSHIP BOARD (continued)

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (continued)

N\

—

Mr. TRAN VAN CHI

Permanent Deputy General
Director

’ )

Mr. LE CHAU THANG

—\Deputy General Director

@ Annual report 2023

« Year of birth: 1976

Nationality: Vietnamese
Professional qualifications: Civil Engineer

Work experience:

+ 05/2004 - 02/2008: Technical staff, Chief Commander of Ha Viet Construction Consulting
Joint Stock Company

+03/2008 - 09/2013: Deputy Head of the Executive Board of VINACONEX E&C Company
+10/2013 - 02/2018: Head of the Executive Board of Hai Thach Group Joint Stock Company

+ 03/2018 - 01/2022: Deputy Director of Lam Viet Construction and Investment Company
Limited

+ 02/2022 to present: Permanent Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company

+ 01/2023 to present: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and
Maintenance Joint Stock Company.

« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies:
+ Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and Maintenance Joint Stock
Company

Year of birth: 1978
Nationality: Vietnamese
Professional qualifications: Electrical Engineer

Work experience:

+ 05/2003 - 12/2014: Employee of Hai Van Tunnel Management and Operation Joint Stock
Company

+ 01/2015 - 01/2022: Director of the Hai Van Road Tunnel, Deo Ca Road Tunnel, and Cu Mong
Road Tunnel Operation Management Enterprise under Hai Van Tunnel Management and
Operation Joint Stock Company (renamed to Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint
Stock Company)

+ 02/2022 to present: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment
Joint Stock Company

+ 03/2018 - 01/2022: Deputy Director of Lam Viet Construction and Investment Company
Limited

+03/2022 to present: General Director of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and Maintenance Joint
Stock Company.

« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: 2,755 shares, accounting for 0.0007% of the total voting shares
of the company.

« Positions held in other companies:

+ General Director of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and Maintenance Joint Stock Company.

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

Mr. VO NGOC TRUNG

ﬂDeputy General Director

Mr. TRAN VAN DUNG

jDeputy General Director

03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

« Year of birth: 1981

« Nationality: Vietnamese

« Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Telecommunications Engineering, Executive Master of

Business Administration (ExXMBA)

« Work experience:
+ 01/2005 - 03/2005: Staff Member of the Communication Team, Hai Van Tunnel Operation
Management Enterprise under the Hai Van Tunnel Management and Operation Joint Stock
Company
+ 04/2005 - 04/2006: Deputy Team Leader of the Communication Team, Hai Van Tunnel
Operation Management Enterprise under the Hai Van Tunnel Management and Operation
Joint Stock Company
+ 05/2006 - 05/2008: Specialist in the Traffic Engineering Department of the Hai Van Tunnel
Management and Operation Joint Stock Company
+ 01/2009 - 01/2010: Head of Electrical and Mechanical Engineering Department of Hai Van
Tunnel Management and Operation Joint Stock Company
+ 02/2010 - 03/2019: Head of Electrical and Mechanical Engineering Department, Deputy
Director of Hai Van Tunnel Operation Management Enterprise under the Hai Van Tunnel
Management and Operation Joint Stock Company
+04/2019 - 06/2020: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint
Stock Company
+08/2020 - 11/2020: Director of Hai Van anh Cu Mong Tunnel Operation Management Enterprise
under the Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company
+12/2020 to present: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint
Stock Company
+ 06/2023 - 10/2023: Deputy General Director of Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Expressway Joint Stock
Company

« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: 3,281 shares, accounting for 0.0008% of the total voting shares

of the company.

« Positions held in other companies: None.

« Year of birth: 1977

« Nationality: Vietnamese

« Professional qualifications: Civil Engineer

« Work experience:
+2012 - 04/2017: Deputy Head of Project Management Consulting and Supervision Consulting
Department, Road Engineering Center I
+04/2017 - 01/2021: Deputy Director, Head of Project Management Team, Project Management
Office for the Expansion of Hai Van Tunnel 2
+01/2021 to present: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint
Stock Company

« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the

company.

« Positions held in other companies: None.
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INTRODUCTION OF THE
LEADERSHIP BOARD (continued)

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ms. NGUYEN QUYNH MAI

—\Deputy General Director

Mr. NGUYEN VAN AN

j Chief Accountant

@ Annual report 2023

« Year of birth: 1993
Nationality: Vietnamese
Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Finance - Banking

Work experience:

+ 2016 - 2019: Credit Approval Officer of Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank For Industry
and Trade

+ 02/2020 - 02/2021: Deputy Head of Finance Department of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company

+03/2021 to present: Deputy General Director of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint
Stock Company

+12/2022 to present: Head of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and
Maintenance Joint Stock Company

Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.

« Positions held in other companies: Head of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Expressway
Operation and Maintenance Joint Stock Company.

« Year of birth: 1982
» Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Accounting - Academy Of Finance

« Work experience:
+12/2015 - 04/2019: Chief Accountant of Hai Van Tunnel Management and Operation Joint
Stock Company
+ 04/2019 - 01/2022: Member of the Board of Supervisors of Hung Phat BOT Joint Stock
Company
+ 08/2020 to present: Chief Accountant of South Quang Ngai Urban Development and
Investment Joint Stock Company
+06/2020 to present: Chief Accountant of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock
Company
+12/2022 to present: Member of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and
Maintenance Joint Stock Company
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies:
+Member of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and Maintenance Joint
Stock Company
+ Chief Accountant of South Quang Ngai Urban Development and Investment Joint Stock
Company
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

( N

~ ————————

Mr. NGUYEN MINH GIANG

—\Head of the Board of Supervisors

Ms. CAM THI MINH HAI
Member of the Board of

jSu pervisors

« Year of birth: 1980
« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Finance - Accounting, Executive Master of Business
Administration (ExXMBA)
« Work experience:
+ 04/2018 - 03/2023: Head of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock
Company
+11/2018 - 02/2024: Chairman of the Board of Members of COM.PT Auditing, Investment, Tax,
Financial, Accounting, Consultancy Company Limited
+04/2019 - 01/2022: Member of Board of Supervisors of Hung Phat BOT Joint Stock Company
+ 01/2019 - 10/2023: Head of Board of Supervisors of Trung Luong - My Thuan BOT Joint Stock
Company
+07/2021 - present: Chairman of the Board of Directors, General Director of Deo Ca Real Estate
Joint Stock Company
+ 08/2019 - 09/2021: Head of the Board of Supervisors of Northern Infrastructure Investment
Joint Stock Company
+05/2020 to present: Head of the Board of Supervisors of Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Investment
Joint Stock Company
+12/2020 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Security Joint Stock Company
+ 01/2021 to present: Member of the Board of Directors, General Director of South Quang Ngai
Urban Development and Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 01/2018 to present: Head of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 06/2022 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Saigon - Phu Yen Bridges
Construction Investment Joint Stock Company
+ 02/2022 to present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of BUSSIMED Investment and
Medical Services Joint Stock Company
+06/2023 to present: Member of the Board of Directors of Northern Infrastructure Investment
Joint Stock Company
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies:
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Real Estate Joint Stock Company
+Head of the Board of Supervisors of Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Investment Joint Stock Company
+ Member of the Board of Directors of Deo Ca Security Joint Stock Company
+Member of the Board of Directors, General Director of South Quang Ngai Urban Development
and Investment Joint Stock Company
+Member of the Board of Directors of Saigon - Phu Yen Bridges Construction Investment Joint
Stock Company
+Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of BUSSIMED Investment and Medical Services Joint
Stock Company.

« Year of birth: 1984
« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Bachelor of Corporate Accounting
« Work experience:
+02/2020 - 05/2021: Chief Accountant of Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company
+ 06/2020 to present: Member of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+01/2022 - 03/2023: Chief Accountant of Deo Ca Construction Joint Stock Company.
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies: None.
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3 2 INTRODUCTION OF THE
® LEADERSHIP BOARD (continued)

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (continued)

- ﬂ
« Year of birth: 1989

« Nationality: Vietnamese
« Professional qualifications: Lawyer

« Work experience:
+ 05/2018 to present: Member of the Board of Supervisors of Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Joint
Stock Company
+12/2018 - 06/2022: Member of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Expressway Operation and
Maintenance Joint Stock Company
+08/2019 - 04/2022: Member of the Board of Supervisors of A2Z Construction Consulting Joint
Stock Company
+ 04/2021 to present: Member of the Board of Supervisors of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company
+01/2022 to present: Head of the Board of Supervisors of Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT Joint Stock
Company
« Ownership ratio of HHV shares: O shares, accounting for 0% of the total voting shares of the
company.
« Positions held in other companies:
+ Member of the Board of Supervisors of Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Joint Stock Company
+ Head of the Board of Supervisors of Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT Joint Stock Company

Ms. PHAN THI MAI

Member of the Board of

_\Su pervisors

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD
® OF DIRECTORS

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
SHAREHOLDERS'S RESOLUTIONS

Activities of the Board of Directors in 2023 have achieve

many significant results, as follows:

« The Company’s organizational, managerial, and control system is comprehensive and has enhanced
operational capabilities. In 2023, the Board of Directors continued to focus on restructuring the
organizational model and personnel under its jurisdiction: restructuring the organizational
structure, reallocating tasks, and authorities of some Specialized Departments/Divisions (separating
the Internal Control - Legal Board to establish a Legal Department directly under the Executive
Board and the Internal Control Board as a subcommittee under the Board of Directors); directing
the Executive Board to actively review and implement plans for the use and deployment of human
resources with appropriate professional qualifications and experience to effectively meet the
objectives of expanding scale, developing HHV's strengths in investment activities, construction
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and installation, and management and
operation of major transportation infrastructure
projects domestically and orienting
international cooperation; establishing “3 lines
of defense” for the internal control system
according to COSO.

Directed the preparation and successful
organization of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2023 to approve objectives,
plans, and matters within the authority of the
General Meeting, providing a foundation for
HHV's operations in 2023. After the General
Meeting, the Board of Directors instructed the
Executive Board to immediately implement the
necessary tasks and important work to
implement the resolutions of the General
Assembly of Shareholders, including two
important contents: (1) reviewing to assist the
Board of Directorsinissuing internal regulations
of the Company and (2) devising plans and
strategies for the development of production
and business activities in each field (investment,
construction, management and operation, etc.)
to efficiently and safely exploit and utilize
resources.

Setting annual targets and providing directives,
urging the Board of Management to implement
projects, investment activities, and business
production plans for 2023. Continuing to
strengthen the Delegation - Management
mechanism, decentralization - empowerment
for the Executive Board to maximize autonomy

03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

and proactivity in carrying out tasks and
resolving issues of the leadership team while
still ensuring the regular oversight and
supervision mechanismm of the Board of
Directors. Maintaining strict adherence to the
regular (and ad-hoc) reporting regime of the
Executive Board on the operating status of the
parent company HHV and its subsidiaries
company, subsidiaries enterprises, associates
and joint ventures.

Proactively convening meetings to discuss,
devise, and direct the implementation of
practical plans and solutions to ensure capital
and financial conditions effectively serve the
business operations of HHV, including the
PPP++ investment model: In addition to state
budget capital (P1), equity capital (P2), and
credit capital (P3), the capital structure under
the PPP++ model involves the participation of
resources from project construction profits,
stock issuance, bond issuance, signing and
executing business cooperation contracts (BCC
contracts), etc. With the PPP++ model, the
capital structure is more diversified than the
basic PPP model, contributing to mobilizing all
resources to diversify legal capital sources,
thereby enhancing mobilization efficiency and
minimizing risks throughout the project
implementation process.

Directed the implementation of information
disclosure activities and shareholder relations
inacomplete and serious mannerinaccordance

Annual report 2023 @
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ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD
o OF DIRECTORS (continued)

with regulations. The requests, inquiries,
exchanges, and suggestions from shareholders
sent to the company (such as providing
information; issuing share ownership
certificates, depository services, answering
questions related to share offerings, dividend
payments, etc.) have been received, categorized,
addressed, and responded to promptly,
accurately focusing on the core content and
objectives required by the shareholders.

The Board of Directors's supervision over the
company’s activities in 2023 was conducted
regularly and comprehensively across all areas
through methods such as: assigning Board
members to attend regular, ad-hoc, and other
important meetings of the Executive Board to
examine and evaluate the Executive Board’'s
performance, as well as to exchange views,
provide guidance, and offer constructive
criticism to enable the Executive Board to
timely adjust operational plans and address
existing difficulties and obstacles to achieve the
set targets and plans; monitoring through the
activities of  subcommittees, positions
established/appointed by the Board of Directors

¥
k-
L
-

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
SHAREHOLDERS’S RESOLUTIONS (continued)

such as the Internal Control Board, Internal
Audit Department, Company's Governance
Officer;.. Investment activities, transactions,
purchases, sales, and liquidation of assets
between the company and partners or related
parties are all reported to the Board of Directors
for review and approval according to their
authority before execution.

Activities of independent member of the Board
of Directors: In 2022, independent members of
the Board of Directors exercised their authority
and responsibilities properly, participating fully
in  meetings and providing independent
opinions and votes on matters within the Board
of Directors’ jurisdiction, especially decisions
regarding transactions between HHV and
related parties to ensure legality, transparency,
and conflict avoidance to protect the interests
of the Company and shareholders. Additionally,
they engaged in monitoring the activities of the
Company’'s Board of Management to provide
appropriate guidance and management
solutions alongside the Board of Directors.

DEOCA 03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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DECISIONS/RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING
THE YEAR

In 2023, under the chairing of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, HHV's Board of Directors organized 27
meetings combining in-person and online formats to discuss and decide on matters within its jurisdiction. The
Board meetings were conducted in compliance with prescribed procedures, with complete meeting minutes
prepared and resolutions passed in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Regulations, and legal
requirements. Resolutions of the Board of Directors that require information disclosure were promptly and fully
disclosed within the prescribed timeframe.

The members of the Board of Directors attended meetings promptly as notified by the Chairman of the Board
of Directors, reflecting the collective commitment of HHV’'s Board of Directors as a whole and the individual
dedication of each member to fulfilling their roles and responsibilities in the management and governance of
the Company’s operations. Information regarding the attendance of Board of Directors members at HHV's Board

meetings in 2023 is as follows:

Resolution Date Content

Approval of delegation to attend and vote at the extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 of Bac Giang - Lang Son - Huu Nghi BOT
Joint Stock Company

25 January

No0.01/2023/NQ-HDQT 5023

. 13 February Approval of the principle of signing and implementing contracts/
N©.03/2023/NQ-HDQT 2023 transactions with related parties
10 March . . .
N0.05/2023/NQ-HDQT 2023 Approval of the operation management contract with related parties
14 March Approval of contracts/transactions for capital contributions/deposits for
N©.07/2023/NQ-HDQT 2023 capital contributions of HHV and its subsidiaries

Approval of proposal to supplement content, participation, and voting at the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 of Deo Ca Investment Joint
Stock Company

17 March

No0.09/2023/NQ-HDQT 5023

Approval of meeting agenda and entire documentation for the Annual

No.10A/2023/NQ-HDQT 01 April 2023 General Meeting of Shareholders in 2023

Approval of supplementary meeting agenda, updating documentation for

NoT1/2023/NQ-HDQT 17 April 2023 the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2023
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ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD
® OF DIRECTORS (continued)

No0.12/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.13/2023/NQ-HDQT

N0.14/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.15/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.16/2023/NQ-HDQT

N0.17/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.18/2023/NQ-HDQT

N0.19/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.20/2023/NQ-HDQT

N0.21/2023/NQ-HDQT

No. 22/2023/NQ-HDQT

No.22A/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.23/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.24/2023/NQ-HDQT

N0.24A/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.24B/2023/NQ-HDQT

@ Annual report 2023

25 April 2023

25 April 2023

25 April 2023

25 April 2023

28 April 2023

10 May 2023

10 May 2023

23 May 2023

21 June 2023

04 July 2023

26 July 2023

10 August
2023

15 August 2023

15 August
2023

01 September
2023

01 September
2023

DECISIONS/RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING
THE YEAR (continued)

Approval of contract/transaction with related party Deo Ca Group Joint
Stock Company at Quang Ngai - Hoai Nhon project

Approval of contract/transaction with related party Deo Ca Construction
Joint Stock Company at Quang Ngai - Hoai Nhon project

Approval of contract/transaction with related party ICV Vietnam
Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company at Quang Ngai - Hoai
Nhon project

Approval of changing the authorized representative managing the
capital at ICV Vietnam Investment and Construction Joint Stock
Company

Approval of detailed plan for issuing shares to pay dividends for 2022

Approval of participation and voting at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2023 of ICV Viethnam Investment and Construction Joint
Stock Company

Approval of consolidation of the Internal Audit Department's personnel
structure

Approval of the last registration date to exercise rights to receive
dividends for 2022 in shares

Approval of results of issuing shares to pay dividends for 2022 in shares

Amendment to charter capital and amendments to the Company's
Charter after the issuance of shares to pay dividends

Regarding participation and voting at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 of Bac Giang - Lang Son - Huu Nghi
BOT Joint Stock Company

Regarding participation and voting at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 of ICV Vietnam Investment and
Construction Joint Stock Company

Approval of detailed plan for additional share issuance to existing
shareholders

Approval of registration dossier for public share issuance in 2023

Adjustment of organizational structure of Company's Specialized
Departments

Issuance of internal control regulations at the Company

DEOCA
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N0.24C/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.25/2023/NQ-HDQT

N0.26/2023/NQ-HDQT

No.27/2023/NQ-HDQT

No.28/2023/NQ-HDQT

No0.29/2023/NQ-HDQT

No.29A/2023/NQ-HDQT

N0.30/2023/NQ-HDQT

No.31/2023/NQ-HDQT

N0.32/2023/NQ-HDQT

01 September
2023

16 September
2023

16 September
2023

20 September
2023

13 November
2023

15 November
2023

2 December
2023

12 December
2023

14 December
2023

14 December
2023

Issuance of Organizational and Operational Regulations of Internal
Control Board

Change of authorized representative managing the capital of HHV at
Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT Joint Stock Company

Regarding participation and voting at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 of Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT Joint
Stock Company

Approval of signing/implementing business cooperation contract with
Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Expressway Joint Stock Company

Approval of selecting the last registration date to finalize the list of
shareholders exercising the right to purchase additional shares from the
offering to existing shareholders

Regarding participation and voting at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 of Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT Joint
Stock Company

Regarding participation and voting at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 of Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT Joint
Stock Company

Approval for participation in investment, construction, and operational
management at the Dong Dang (Lang Son) - Tra Linh (Cao Bang)
expressway construction investment project

Approval for the change of the Company's capital management
representative at Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT Joint Stock Company

Approval for the nomination of candidates and participation in the
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 of Bac Giang -
Lang Son BOT Joint Stock Company

OVERSIGHT ACTIVITIES OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
THROUGHOUT THE YEAR

From the beginning of the year and on a quarterly basis
throughout 2023, the Board of Directors held regular
meetings with the Board of Management, the Chief
Accountant, subcommittees of the Board of Directors,
and invited representatives from the Company’s Board
of Supervisors to review and summarize the Company’s
operations, outline key tasks for the upcoming period,
and propose solutions to address challenges, timely
supporting the Executive Board effectively implementing
production and business activities according to the annual
plan. The oversight activities of the Board of Directors

over the Board of Management in 2023 are as follows:

Monitored and

implemented
measures and directives to ensure that the Board
of Management complies with applicable laws,
the Company's Articles of Association, internal
governance regulations, and the current legal

provisions and policies of the State.

governance

» Provided guidance, oversight, and urged the Board
of Management to implement investment
activities, construction projects, operational
management, and other significant production
and business activities of HHV according to the
established plans.  Additionally, = enhanced
supervision of the production and business
activities of subsidiary companies and subsidiary

59)
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ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD
® OF DIRECTORS (continued)

enterprises of the Company to ensure alignment
with the objectives, plans, and actual conditions of
each unit. Required the Board of Management to
strictly adhere to the regular and ad-hoc reporting
regime regarding the Company's operations,
especially reports and explanations related to the
management and utilization of capital raised from
share offerings to support HHV’'s development
activities.

Provided and closely monitored the organization,
auditing, issuance, and disclosure of the 2022
financial statements, quarterly and semi-annual
financial reports, and the 2023 financial reports of
the Company, as well as the 2022 annual report
and other significant reports of the Company.
Directed the Board of Management to seek and
propose qualified and reputable auditing firms for
submission to the General Assembly of
Shareholders for approval of selection to audit the
financial statements and other reports of the
Company to ensure compliance with regulations
and accurately reflect the substance of HHV's
production and business activities.

Provided and monitored the preparation and
organization of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2023 and other shareholder
relations activities. Regularly monitored and
examined information disclosure activities and
shareholder relations of the Board of Management.
Quarterly, the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management organized meetings to meet,
exchange, and candidly respond to questions and
concerns of shareholders and strategic investors
related to HHV's activities, contributing to
enhancing the transparency of the Company’s
information.

Directed and monitored the organization and
restructuring of the executive apparatus and
personnel of the Board of Management and in the
Specialized Departments and units of the
Company to continuously enhance the
management and operational capacity of the
Board of Management, effectively meeting the
goal of expanding the scale and developing HHV’s
core operational areas.

Oversight was conducted through the activities of
the Internal Audit Derpartment, the Internal

0) Annual report 2023

A

P W WV W W

s r o

6. % T W W TUYA T

OVERSIGHT ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH THE BOARD
OF MANAGEMENT THROUGHOUT THE YEAR (continued)

Control Board (subcommittees under the Board of
Directors), and the Company’s Governance Officer.
This helped enhance corporate governance
activities, internal control, and risk management,
enabling timely directives and decisionsto improve
the effectiveness and efficiency of the Company’s
management and operations.

777 D N

Through monitoring, the Board of Directors
assessed that over the past year, the Board of
Management had effectively implemented
synchronized and decisive plans and solutions
regarding finance, human resources, and other
resources, leading to a new development phase
in HHV's business operations in 2023, in line with
the approved plans by the General Assembly
of Shareholders. The Company maintained
a dynamic, modern, and scientific working
environment with a focus on developing high-
quality human resources, ensuring timely and
complete payment of salaries, benefits, and
caring for the well-being of all employees and
laborers. The Company's financial reports for
the year were prepared, audited, and disclosed
in accordance with the law. The Company’s
organizational, managerial, and control systems
were continuously maintained and improved,
operating effectively, with enhanced awareness
of control, risk alertness, and prevention. Good
shareholder relations and information disclosure
practices were implemented as required;
important information reflecting the Company’s
performance was fully and timely disclosed
to shareholders and investors. The Board of
Management vigorously applied advanced
and modern technologies (such as blockchain
technology, live streaming, etc.) to successfully
organize the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2023 and other important events
of the Company, ensuring accuracy, objectivity,
and honesty, and promptly meeting the
legitimate needs and rights of shareholders.

1i
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CHANGES IN THE COMPOSITION
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DURING THE YEAR

HHV'’s Board of Directors currently consists of 08
members, including 02 independent members
of the Board of Directors. In 2023, the personnel
situation of HHV’s Board of Directors remained
stable, with no fluctuations or changes.

03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ACTIVITIES OF THE INTERNAL
AUDIT DEPARTMENT UNDER THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2023, the Internal Audit
Department comprises 04 personnel, including:
01 head of the department, O1 deputy head and 02
members, detailed as follows:

Name Position

Head of Internal Audit

Mr. Nguyen Huu Hung Department

Deputy Head of Internal

DV WL DA Audit Department

Member of Internal Audit

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Hai Department

Member of Internal Audit

Mr. Nguyen Manh Cuong Department

In 2023, the Internal Audit Department carried out
the following main activities:

« Conducted internal audits according to the
approved audit plan by the Company’s Board of
Directors, reported audit results, supervised,
and evaluated corrective  actions  at
Departments/Divisions Subsidiary
enterprises.

and

« Reviewed regulations, rules, and operational
procedures of audited Departments/Divisions.
Additionally, provided recommendations for
amendments and adjustments to align with
current legal requirements and the actual
operational situation at Departments/Divisions
and Subsidiary enterprises.
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ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD
® OF DIRECTORS (continued)

OVERSIGHT ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH THE
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT THROUGHOUT THE YEAR (continued)

P Personnel changes in the subcommittee

In 2023, there were personnel changes within the Internal Audit Department subcommittee as follows:

Head of Internal Audit

Mr. Nguyen Huu Hung Department

Appointed on 10 May 2023

Head of Internal Audit
Department

Appointed on 29 April 2022

U UL Resigned on 10 May 2023

Deputy Head of Internal Audit

Ms. Vi Thi Mai Department

Appointed on 26 June 2023

Member of Internal Audit

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Hai Department

Appointed on 29 April 2022

Member of Internal Audit
Department

Mr. Nguyen Manh Cuong Appointed on 27 June 2022

Bac Giang - Lang Son expressway project
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INTERNAL CONTROL BOARD ACTIVITIES UNDER

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

P Subcommittee structur

As of 31 December, 2023, the Internal Control Board
comprises 8 personnel, including: 1 head of the
board, 1 deputy head and 6 specialists, specifically
as follows:

Head of Internal Control

Ms. Pham Le Thu Board

Deputy Head of Internal

Mr. Hoang Duc Chau Control Board

Mr. Pham Hong Hai Internal Control Specialist

Mr. Bui Trong Quang Internal Control Specialist

Ms. Nguyen Thi Viet

Phuong Internal Control Specialist

Mr. Nguyen Viet Quoc Internal Control Specialist
Ms. Pham Thi Thanh Vinh  Internal Control Specialist

Ms. Ngo Van Anh Internal Control Specialist

P Main activities in the yea

In 2023, the Internal Control Board conducted the
following main activities:

Participated in drafting and issuing Internal
Audit Rulesand Procedures to be implemented
at the Company in line with the direction of the
Board of Directors.

Conducted internal audit and supervision
according to the approved audit plan by the
Company’s Board of Directors, reported audit
and supervision results, and evaluated remedial
activities in  Departments/Divisions and
Subsidiary enterprises.

Provided independent advice on issues related
to challenges and difficulties in the Company's
regularoperationstothe Company’'s Leadership
and Specialized Departments/Divisions.

Reviewed regulations, rules, and operational
procedures of Departments/Divisions/
Subsidiary  enterprises under  audit.
Additionally, proposed amendments and
adjustments to ensure compliance with legal
regulations and the guiding principles set forth
by the Board of Directors in line with the actual
operationalsituation in Departments/Divisions/
Subsidiary enterprises.

Hai Van tunnel project
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ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF
® SUPERVISORS

SUPERVISION ACTIVITIES IN THE YEAR REGARDING TO THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors monitored the ac

Company’s Board of Directors through:

« Assigning Supervisors to attend and express « Regularly monitoring and reviewing the list of
opinions at meetings organized by the Board of major shareholders, related parties of Board of
Directors; Directors's Members, Board of Supervisors's

Members, Board of Management's Members, and
other internal personnel of the Company to verify
the transparency of contracts and transactions
between HHV and related parties subject to
approval by the General Assembly of Shareholders
or the Board of Directors as stipulated by the
company’s charter and legal regulations;

« Regularly monitoring and supervising the Board
of Directors’s activities in implementing the
resolutions of the General Assembly of
Shareholders.  Additionally, receiving and
reviewing, providing feedback on the resolutions
of the Board of Directors in its governance
activities to examine the reasonableness, legality,
truthfulness, and prudence in the management « Continuously  monitoring, evaluating the
work of the Board of Directors; effectiveness, and level of compliance of the

internal control system, internal audit, internal
governance regulations, reporting mechanismes,
and risk management and early warning
mechanisms of the Company; conduct high-level
supervision over the activities of committees
under the Board of Directors.

« Assigning personnel to examine the compliance,
consistency, reasonableness, validity, and legality
of the accounting, statistical, and financial
reporting work, as well as the business
performance reports of the Company. Monitoring
and evaluating the independence and objectivity
of the company’s auditors and the effectiveness
of the audit process of the Company’s financial
reports;

@ Annual report 2023
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The Board of Directors has coordinated and facilitated
favorable conditions for the Board of Supervisors to
fulfill its duties and functions in inspecting and
supervising the activities of the Board of Directors.
The monitoring results of the Board of Supervisors in
2023 regarding the Board of Directors are as follows:

« The Board of Supervisors assesses that the
collective Board of Directors as a whole and each
individual member of the Board of Directors has
fully performed their duties, functions, and
authorities in accordance with legal regulations
and the Company’s charter. The Board of Directors
has provided both strategic direction and close,
timely support to the Board of Management in
operational management, organizing production
and businessactivities, resulting in high efficiency;

« The resolutions and decisions of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 have
been fully and promptly implemented under the
direction of the Board of Directors. Under the
supervision of the Board of Supervisors, the Board
of Directors has directed the Executive Board to
implement productionand businessdevelopment
activities in 2023 according to the plan approved
by the General Assembly of Shareholders,
including the successful implementation of the
stock offering plan to existing shareholders to
raise significant capital for the Company's core
business activities;

03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

All meetings of the Board of Directors and other
company meetings in 2023 were duly announced
and relevant documents were sent to the Board of
Supervisors to ensure completeness and
timeliness in accordance with the Company’s
regulations. For critical and strategic matters
impacting the company’s development, the
Board of Directors sought input from the Board of
Supervisors before making decisions within its
authority. Depending on the nature and extent of
the meetings, the Board of Supervisors appointed
representatives with appropriate expertise to
attend to fulfill the Board of Supervisors' functions
and duties.

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors
highly appreciated the serious,
candid, and independent work spirit
of the Board of Directors members.
Resolutions and decisions of the
Board of Directors were passed in
accordance with the prescribed
procedures and were consistent with
the actual situation, as they were
based on the high-level professional
discussions and careful consideration
of all aspects by the Board of
Directors members.
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SUPERVISION ACTIVITIES
IN THE YEAR REGARDING
SHAREHOLDERS

SUMMARY OF THE MEETINGS OF

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

® SUPERVISORS (continued)

Throughout the year, the Board of Supervisors
convened 02 meetings to align on the contents of
the supervisory work and develop a six-month/once-
a-month supervisory plan to promptly detect any
errors (if any) by the Board of Directors or the Board
of Management, as well as address any deficiencies
in the supervisory work to safeguard the interests
of shareholders/investors. All members of the Board
of Supervisors attended these meetings fully and
seriously, fulfilling their assigned roles responsibly.

Throughout the past year, contracts and transactions
between the Company and shareholders or related
parties of shareholders were subject to prior approval
by the competent authority in accordance with legal
regulations and the Company’s charter.

SUPERVISION ACTIVITIES IN THE YEAR RELATING
TO THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

In the first quarter of 2023, the Board of Directors, Board of Management, and the Board of Supervisors
organized a working session to discuss the working methods, controls, and control content plan of the
Board of Supervisors for 2023 to achieve consensus in coordinating efforts towards effective governance,
compliance with legal regulations, and company regulations. Through inspection and supervision, the Board

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors did not receive any
complaints or opinions from shareholders regarding
the company’s operations, the Board of Directors, or

of Supervisors evaluated as follows:

« The Board of Management has diligently
implemented all resolutions/decisions of the
General Assembly of Shareholders and the Board
of Directors;

« Proactive and flexible in assigning, decentralizing,
and delegating authority to management
personneltoimplementassigned tasks; maintains
regular periodic meetings to evaluate various
aspects of the Board of Supervisors' activities for
the Board of Management to provide timely
guidance for handling and resolving issues to
ensure the Company's production and business
activities are continuous, legally compliant, safe,
and effective;

+ The General Director and members of the Board
of Management have faithfully carried out their

in the management, organization, and execution
of investment, production, and business activities;

Investment activities, significant transactions
directly impacting the Company's financial
situation, contracts with related parties, and other
important matters are all reported by the Board
of Management to the General Assembly of
Shareholders or the Board of Directors for
approval before implementation, ensuring
principles of prudence, honesty, and conflict of
interest avoidance in corporate governance
activities;

The Board of Management has diligently and
promptly adhered to principles of coordination
with the Board of Supervisors; it has provided
necessary and comprehensive conditions for the

the Executive Board.

3.9

Members of the Board of Supervisors operated
independently in line with the agreed-upon general
principles and for the common goal.

TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

SALARIES, BONUSES, REMUNERATIONS AND BENEFITS

\[e) Name

Position

Remuneration
Received (VND/
month)

Number of Remuneration in
Months 2023 (VND)

assigned functions, duties, and authorities, Board of Supervisors to carry out its duties and Board of Directors 1,740,000,000
ensuring strict compliance with legal provisions, authorities in examining and supervising the
aswell asthe Company’s Charter and Regulations, Company's activities and other assigned tasks 1 Mr. Ho Minh Hoang Chairman 30,000,000 12 360,000,000
according to the Company's Charter and legal
regulations. Essential and important matters Vice
. 2 Mr. Nguyen Tan Dong . 20,000,000 12 240,000,000
have been promptly communicated, complete Chairman
The production and business results Qo;umentatlon has THECSIENEIC e . Vice
of ts are the clearest evidence IDVItaHEHg tONETEnd Board ofgiiEii 4 Mr. Nguyen Huu Hung chairman 20,000,000 12 240,000,000
supporting the effectiveness of the meetings have been extended to the Board of
Board of Management’s activities as Supervisors as a basis for evaluating the Board of .
W) o= the policies of the Board of L TR e provifl‘i‘rgg_ fimely 5 Mr. Vo Thuy Linh Member 15,000,000 12 180,000,000
Directors and the General Assembly of recommendations;
SRECHECTS. 6 Mr. Tran Chung Member 15,000,000 12 180,000,000
7 Mr. Nguyen Quang Huy Member 15,000,000 12 180,000,000
9 Mr. Hoang Van Hai ielefe el 15,000,000 12 180,000,000
member
10 Mr. Ho Quang Loi Independent 15,000,000 12 180,000,000
member
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3 5 TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE
® BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (continued)

SALARIES, BONUSES, REMUNERATIONS AND BENEFITS (continued)

Remuneration

.. . Number of Remuneration in
Name Position Received (VND/ Months 2023 (VND)
month)
Il Board of Supervisors 348,000,000
1 Mr. Nguyen Minh Giang Hegiao:;he 15,000,000 12 180,000,000
2 Ms. Cam Thi Minh Hai Member 7,000,000 12 84,000,000
3 Ms. Phan Thi Mai Member 7,000,000 12 84,000,000
Total remuneration for the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2023: 2,088,000,000

TRANSACTIONS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS'S SHARES

Information onsharetransactionsby membersofthe Board of Directors,membersofthe Board of Supervisors,
the Director (General Director), Chief Accountant, managers, Company Secretary, major shareholders, and
individuals related to the aforementioned entities.

Initial Shares Owned Final Shares Owned Reasons for
Increase or

Transaction Relationship with Decrease
Executor Internal Individual Number of Number of (Purchase, Sale,
Rate Rate :
SEIES SEIES Conversion,
Reward...)

Internal individual holding

] Mr. Ho Minh  the position ofChalrman 1,800,000 0.58% 1,926,000 0.58% D|V|c!end received
Hoang of the Board of Directors in shares
of HHV

Internal individual holding
the position of Member

2 g&a'\r'jg“gi” of the Board of Directors, 230,000 0.07% 246,100 0.07% D'V"’:ir‘si;‘fgf“’ed
9 y General Director, Legal
Representative of HHV
Internal individual holding
Mr. Nguyen the position of Vice o o Dividend received
Y Tan Dong Chairman of the Board of PAZRI00 Oen [PASi RO in shares
Directors of HHV
4 Mr. Vo Ngoc Deputy General Director 3067 0.00% 3281 0.001% D|V|dgnd received
Trung of HHV in shares
5 Mr. Le Chau Deputy General Director 2,000 0.00% 2204 0.0007% D|V|dphd received
Thang of HHV in shares
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Initial Shares Owned Final Shares Owned Reasons for
Increase or

Transaction Relationship with Decrease
Executor Internal Individual Number of ot Number of Rat (Purchase, Sale,
Shares ate Shares ate Conversion,
Reward...)

Internal individual
Ms. Phan Thi holding the position of
Mai Member of the Board of
Supervisors of HHV

4,000 0.00% (0] 0.00% Sold shares

Internal individual holding

7 Mr. Tran Tan the position of Company's 500 0.00% 0 0.00% Sold shares
Huy .
Governance Officer
H;‘lc:\'z;rlf:gnt Major shareholder and Sold shares and
8 Joint Stock related party of HHV’s 103,666,250 33.68% 66,233,000 20.11% received dividend
insider in shares
Company

Related individual of

Ms. Tran Thi Mr. Ho Minh Hoang - PUrEiEesel Shaltes

g Thu Hien Chairman of the Board of =00 eI el ezl di ?gd r(;lac;e|v§d
Directors of HHV lvidgend in shares
MF. Truohg Related individual of Mr.
10 Minh Don Tran Van Dung - Deputy 15,400 0.01% 0 0.00% Sold shares
General Director of HHV
Deo Ca Group Parent company and Received
n Joint Stock related party of HHV's 3,789,255 1.23% 4,054,502 1.23% L .
- dividend in shares
Company insider
Related individual of
Ms. NgUyen Mr. Hoang Van Hai - Purchased §hares
12 ThiTuyet Independent member of 0 0.00% 525 0.0002% and received
the Board of Directors of dividend in shares
HHV
Related individual of
T Mr. Hoang Van Hai - Purchased ;hares
13 Minh Duc Independent member of 0 0.00% 3,210 0.0010% and received
the Board of Directors of dividend in shares
HHV
Related individual of
M Mr. Hoang Van Hai - Purchased ;hares
14 Minh Kho Independent member of 0 0.00% 1,712 0.0005% and received
the Board of Directors of dividend in shares
HHV
Related individual of Mr.
Mr. Tran Viet  Tran Chung - Member of PUrEREse] Shsles
15 ’ . . 0 0.00% 4,000 0.0012% and received
Hai the Board of Directors of L :
Y dividend in shares
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INFRASTRUCTURE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND

3 5 TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE
® BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (continued)

TRANSACTIONS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS'S SHARES (continued)

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN DEO CA TRAFFIC INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
RELATED PARTIES; OR BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, INSIDERS, OR RELATED
PARTIES OF INSIDERS

. Related . . .
Organization/ . . Business Registration
Relationship

o " Headquarters/ Transaction Transaction Details, Quantity, Total
Individual . Certificate, Date of ) .

with the . ) Contact Address Time Transaction Value
Name issue, Place of issue

Company

Business registration

. + i °
caitifesie RURBER Interest expense incurred: VND

B.OT Major 4400740038 issued T e B 2.029,294,948 o
Hai Thach shareholder by the Department street, Ward 1, Tuy + HHV repays loan principal: VND
1 Investment and related of Planning and Hon c,ity Phuern 2023 58,111,400,000
Joint Stock party of Investment of Phu Yen ' + HHV repays loan interest: VND
Company HHV's insider province, registered PEIE= 23,642,753,053

12th amendment 28
December 2018

+ HHV receives loan funds: VND

14,950,000,000
+ HHV repays loan: VND 69,986,895,603
Business registration + Loan interest expense: VND
certificate number 635,545,500
P t 0313365915 i d
Deo Ca aren Issue 32 Thach Thi Thanh + HHV repays loan interest: VND
company and by the Department .
Investment X street, Tan Dinh 27,639,540,763
K related party of Planning and L 2023
Jg'nt Stock of HHV's Investment of Ho Chi wa(r:dh,. If/:StrkI\C(t:l Ho + HHV receives revenue from business
ompany finchdlar Minh City, registered tMinh City cooperation: VND 221,530,970,000
30th amendment on 1 + Profit from business cooperation:
June 2023 VND 9,113,116,478

+ Other income from providing
tools, equipment for projects: VND
2,866,425,049
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Business
Organization/ Related ; : : : . .
. . ) ) Registration Headquarters/ Transaction Transaction Details, Quantity, Total
Individual Relationship with o ) )
Certificate, Date of Contact Address Time Transaction Value
Name the Company ) )
issue, Place of issue
Business
registration
Bac Giang certificate number Tth Floor, Thang
- Lang 0108311466 issued  Long Office Building
5 Son - Huu Associates by the Department at 98A Nguyen Thi 5093 + Receipt of contributed capital: VND
Nghi B.O.T company of Planning and Dinh, Nhan Chinh 78,380,000,000
Joint Stock Investment of Hanoi  ward, Thanh Xuan
Company City, registered 9th district, Hanoi
amendmenton 5
April 2023

Business
registration
certificate number
Company along 4400951889 issued

Deo Ca L 32 Thach Thi Thanh
. with its parent by the Department . . .
Security company and of Planning and street, Tan Dinh 5023 + Payment for security service fees:
Joint Stock PR 2 ward, District 1, Ho VND 25/157,351185
Compan related party of Investment of Chi Minh Cit
pany HHV's insider Ho Chi Minh City, Yy

registered 16th
amendment on 20
December 2023

Business
registration
certificate number
Trung 0313222392 issued

32 Thach Thi Thanh

L -M by the D t t .
9 Tﬁzgg BO¥ Related party of Bgf PTani’iJ:r ;T:‘Zn street, Tan Dinh 2023 + Revenue from sales of goods and
R HHV's insider 9 ward, District 1, Ho services: VND 9,436,942,812
Joint Stock Investment of Chi Minh Cit
Company Ho Chi Minh City, Y

10th amendment
registered on 24
February 2023

Annual report 2023 o



03. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE Transactions between HHYV insiders and its subsidiaries or companies controlled by HHV
3 .5 BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND

Organization . Relationship wit Subsidiary, Company Transactionswith Subsidiaries,
con inue No e Position at HHV E1 i i elel . 1o St e[
' Individual Company Controlled by HHV Associates
,
TRANSACTIONS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS'S SHARES (continued) TanDong | O the Boarc T Joint remuneration; VND 60,000,000
Vice Chairman InEls QIR ESE Khanh Hoa Deo Ca
TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN DEO CA TRAFFIC INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY Mr. Nguyen oF = Bosi of member of Board BOT AvEsiremi Joimi Received Board of Directors's

Huu Hung . of Directors since 24 remuneration: VND 360,000,000
Directors April 2022 Stock Company

RELATED PARTIES; OR BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, INSIDERS, OR RELATED

PARTIES OF INSIDERS (continued)

Mr. Vo Thuy t;/l;gobaer:jogf Insider Deo Ca Investment Received Board of Directors's
Linh Joint Stock Company remuneration: VND 180,000,000

Transaction Details, Directors

Quantity, Total Transaction

Organization/ Related Business Registration

Headquarters/Contact Transaction

Individual Relationship with | Certificate, Date of i b )
ndividua elationship wi ertificate, Date of issue Address Time

Name the Company Place of issue Value Bac Giand - Lan
Son BOT J g S 9 K Received Board of Directors's
Business registration + Revenue from sales of Member of on olnt Stoc remuneration: VND 84,000,000
certificate number goods and services: VND the Board of Insider Company
Deo Ca 4400310620 issued by the 32 Thach Thi Thanh 24,467,907,817 Birecion DN — Breesived Boaid o Diieciores
- Cor?structlon Relateyd 'pa'rty of Department of Planmng' st'ree't, Tan Dmh'wa'rd, 2023 + Expenditure on Joint Stock Company remuneration: VND 180,000,000
Joint Stock HHV's insider and Investment of Ho Chi District 1, Ho Chi Minh procurement of goods
Company Minh City, 21st amendment City and services: VND Deo Ca Investment Received Board of Supervisors's
registered on 26 October AASENIEE A Head of the Joint Stock Company | remuneration: VND 57,000,000
2023 Mr. Nguyen .
Minh Giang SEEIlEOf L=l Khanh Hoa Deo Ca . .
+ Revenue from Supervisors BOT Investment Joint Received Board of Supervisors's
construction, installation, Stock Company remuneration: VND 180,000,000
Business registration and equipment rental: -
— certificate number VND 297,715,246,442 Bac Giang - Lang Received Board of SUpervisorss
am tanm 0316685416 issued by the Tra No hamlet, Phuoc p : Son BOT Joint Stock .
-Vl Hes Related party : + Business cooperation : Member of the remuneration: VND 56,666,667
L Department of Planning Ha commune, Thuan - VND Ms. Phan Thi X Company
12 Expressway of HHV's insider . o . 2023 expenses: . Board of Insider
Joint Stock ) 93 5023 and Investment of Ninh Nam district, Ninh Thuan 60.000.000 000 Mai 5
é"nt iees | Sinee D June Thuan province, 3rd province, Vietnam s 4 Supervisors Deo Ca Investment Received Board of Supervisors's
ompany e e + Profit fr_O"T? business Joint Stock Company [ remuneration: VND 120,000,000
14 July 2023 cooperation: VND
1,750,100,044
+ Total revenue from sales
Business registration of goods and services:
certificate number VND 13,373,697,054
Bac Giang - Subsidiary 0106987957 issued by‘the 16th‘FI§>or, Office Tower, + Capital contribution:
13 Lang Son BOT company and Department of Plannlng B'undlr?g No. 265 Cau 5023 VND 102,000,000,000
Joint Stock related party of and Investment of Hanoi Giay, Dich Vong ward, . .
Company HHV's insider City, 18th amendment Cau Giay district, Hanoi * DePOSIt‘fOF capital
registered 8 December contribution: VND
2023 12,300,000,000
Business registration + Total revenue from sales
certificate number of goods and services:
Deo Ca Subsidiary 0104567756 issued by the 32 Thach Thi Thanh VND 312,912,450,621
14 In\{estment company and Department of Planning. st.ree.t, Tan Dinh'wa?rd, 2023 - Bt o @il
Joint Stock related party of and Investment of Ho Chi District 1, Ho Chi Minh contribution: VND
Company HHV's insider Minh City, 23rd amendment City )
) 57,000,000,000
registered on 30 December
2022
+ Total revenue from sales
Business registration of goods and services:
certificate number VND 26,329,487,077
Phuoc Tuong Subsidiary 0106205342 issued by the Lot 4 BT1, Me Tri Ha . -
. . . + Interim dividend
Phu Gia BOT company and Department of Planning Urban area, Me Tri Ward,
15 . . . . 2023 payment: VND
Joint Stock related party of and Investment of Hanoi Nam Tu Liem district, £ 191643351
Company HHV's insider City, 10th amendment Hanoi T
registered on 29 September + Deposit for capital
2023 contribution: VND

9,724,000,000
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND

3 5 TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE
® BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (continued)

TRANSACTIONS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS'S SHARES (continued)

Transactions between insiders or related parties of HHV and its subsidiaries or companies controlled
by HHV

Subsidiary
Company,
Company
Controlled by
HHV

Transaction Transaction Transaction Value
Time Content (VND)

Transaction | Relationship with Position of insider at

Executor insider HHV

Mr. Vo Thuy Member of Board of

Linh Directors
Deo Ca MIF. T g Member of Board of P:UOC Tuong
Investment : Directors Phu Gia BOT Revenue
Joint Stock Joint Stock e sharing e
Company Company
Mr. Nguyen Head of the Board of
Minh Giang Supervisors

Profit

e Ty Blhuee distribution 19,759,545

lnt:::jitrl]onal Mr. Nguven Vice Chairman of Tuong Phu
o -Nguy the Board of Gia BOT Joint 2023
Investment Huu Hung Bifacions Stock Capital
Joint Stock : . 400,000,000
Company contribution
Company
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Subsidiary
. . . . . . Company, . . .
Transaction | Relationship with Position of insider at Compan Transaction Transaction Transaction Value
Executor insider HHV pany Time Content (VND)
Controlled by
HHV
Vice Chairman of
Phuoc Mr. Nguyen the Board of Deo Ca
e Piw Tan Dong © Poard o Investment Shared BOT
5 Gia BOT Directors . 2023 249,339,403,705
) . Joint Stock toll revenue
Joint Stock  Ms, Phan Thi Member of the Company
Company Mai Board of Directors

Mr. Ho Minh Chairman of the

Hoang Board of Directors
Mr. Nauven Vice Chairman of
Ta;n I?)o)r: the Board of
9 Directors
Deo Ca Mr. Vo Thuy Member of the DKQSZZ g(())?l'
Group Linh Board of Directors Investment 2023 Mooncake 2280875
ngnt Stock General Director, Joint Stock expenses
ompany Mr. Nguyen Member of the Company
Quang Huy Board of
Directors
Mr. Nauven Vice Chairman of
-Nguy the Board of
Huu Hung

Directors
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04. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

1‘!i. 'I ECONOMIC STANDARDS
O (GRI 200)

GRI 201: Economic Performance

P Created company value

e VVND 2,685,542

2023 .
million

P Allocated company value:

. Operational expenses:

1 Cost of goods sold 1,605,123
2 Interest expenses 662,436
3 Administration expenses 60,780
Including: Employee expenses 28,887
4 Other expenses 4,553
5 Corporate income tax expenses 60,263
Total expenses 2,393,155

« Breakdown of production and business expenses by factor

1 Raw material costs 514,647
2 Labor costs 340,610
3 Outsourced service costs 113,509
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P undistributed Company Value

Net profit after tax

million

Allocation to:

Company shareholders Non-controlling shareholders

VND 322,125 VND 42,334

million million

Accumulated undistributed net profit as of
Undistributed net profit for 2023 31 December 2023

VND 320,215 VND 921,899

million million

Welfare and retirement benefits: At HHV, employees upon retirement are entitled to retirement benefits
according to legal provisions.

Government incentives: Based on Article 16 of Decree No. 218/2013/ND-CP dated 26 December 2013,
regarding detailed regulations and guidance for the implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law,
HHV's project enterprises are eligible for a 4-year tax exemption and a 50% reduction in tax payable for
the following 9 years. The tax exemption and reduction period specified in this Article are calculated
continuously from the first year of taxable income from the project. In cases where there is no taxable
income in the first three years, the tax exemption and reduction period shall be calculated from the fourth
year onwards. As of now, HHV's project enterprises are still enjoying the tax incentives.
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INFRASTRUCTURE

4 'I ECONOMIC STANDARDS
o (GRl 200) (continued)

GRI 203: Indirect Economic Impacts

P INVESTMENTS IN INFRASTRUCTURE (MAIN PROJECTS)

HHV's Capital

Project Name Total Investment Commencement Year

Contribution*

HHV’s Investment Participation

1 Phuoc Tuong - Phu Gia tunnel VND 1,559 billion VND 294 billion 20716

Deo Ca - Co Ma - Cu Mong -
Hai Van Tunnel

Dong Dang - Tra Linh VND 14,331 billion Comrn‘ltment of VND
expressway 217 billion

VND 21,612 billion VND 1,675 billion 2018

Commencement in
January 2024, Operation
expected in 2026

HHYV is the construction contractor

Trung Luong - My Thuan

BOT Expressway. VND 12,668 billion 2022

Not participating in

- ) capital contribution
3 Coa;tal e i il DI VND 2,263 billion Under construction
Province

* Figures updated as of Q1/2024.
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> INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS ON

ENTERPRISES

+ Negative: « Positive:

As outlined in the Risk and Opportunity section + The downward adjustment of raw material

of the 5-year strategic objectives in this report . . o
>y 9 ) port, prices will have a positive impact on the Company

the negative impacts of the economy on HHV in

7 in the transportation infrastructure construction
2023, as well as most other companies in the same

sector. HHV, with its distinct advantages, will have

sector, include significantly increased raw material . L .
the opportunity to significantly increase revenue

prices, as well as macroeconomic fluctuations . . .
) ) ) ) and profits due to upcoming key projects.
both domestically and internationally, which may

pose challenges in capital mobilization for project + The government is planning to boost public
implementation. investment  this year through increased

disbursement packages for the infrastructure
investment sector.

GRI 206: Anti-competitive Behavior

No actions taken by the company during the past year have been identified as anti-competitive or in
violation of anti-monopoly laws recorded in 2023.

ENVIRONMENTAL
® STANDARDS (GRI 300)

GRI 307: Environmental Compliance

The company has not violated environmental laws and regulations and has not incurred any penalties.
Moreover, recognizing sustainable development goals linked to environmental protection for the nation’s
prosperous future, HHV has thoroughly embraced and rigorously implemented environmental protection
measures at its offices, headquarters, and projects. This includes adhering to regulations and guidelines
for energy and resource conservation (electricity, water, fuel, etc.) and directing strict implementation of
environmental protection measures at projects (dust shielding, noise reduction, etc.).

Compliance with the rules and regulations of projects. Projects executed by the Company always ensure
environmental protection criteria, labor safety, fire prevention, and explosion prevention, without impacting
the living environment of residents in project construction areas.




04. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT DEOCA

4 2 ENVIRONMENTAL
® STANDARDS (GR' 300) (continued)

GRI 305: Emissions

The company consistently prioritizes environmental protection efforts, entering into annual contracts
with specialized agencies to conduct environmental monitoring activities, with an average environmental
monitoring cost of VND 1 billion per year for every 3 tunnels. The monitoring results consistently fall within
permissible limits. At the company’s construction project sites, construction activities do not generate
hazardous waste for the surrounding environment. Equipment serving these activities is regularly
maintained to minimize noise levels, ensuring a safe and comfortable working environment for employees
and minimizing impacts on nearby communities.

« Regarding transportation: always equipped with modern transportation vehicles and tools, meeting
state emission standards and inspection requirements. Additionally, regular maintenance and repairs
of transportation vehicles are conducted to ensure safety and fuel efficiency. Every year, the quality of
vehicles across the company is reviewed and evaluated to promptly replace old vehicles that do not
meet standards.

« Regarding emissions from air conditioning systems and power generators: we always choose modern,
environmentally friendly equipment that meets the highest standards for emissions and noise.
Maintenance is carried out according to the schedule and techniques provided by the supplier to ensure
high performance, energy efficiency, minimize emissions, and promptly repair or replace old or faulty
equipment.

« For solid waste and hazardous waste primarily at road tunnel sites: The company has contracted with
specialized agencies to classify, collect, and have personnel process waste according to the correct
procedures. The amount of hazardous waste deposited in storage tanks during the operation
management of road tunnel projects averages 25 tons per year for every 3 tunnels. The average cost of
hazardous waste treatment is VND 210 million per year.

« For domestic wastewater: The company has a clean water production workshop for staff use. 100% of
the wastewater is collected through a treatment tank , which go through a settling tank. This method
has clear advantages in controlling environmental pollution, ensuring occupational safety. The
wastewater system is regularly inspected, evaluated, and monitored to prevent and detect risks during
operations.
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SOCIAL STANDARDS
° (GRI 400)

GRI 401: Employment

Basic salary is determined
based on job position and
responsibilities, not on
gender. The company
ensures equal treatment
between men and women.

In 2023, the company did not
encounter any cases of
discrimination.

The company has organized
grassroots trade unions and
departmental trade unions
in accordance with
regulations, with the trade
unions actively protecting
the legitimate rights and
interests of employees.

Employees of the company
have the right to freedom of
speech and to participate in
suitable groups/
organizations in compliance
with the law.

The company strictly
prohibits the use of child
labor and strongly opposes
any illegal use of child labor.

P Classification of labor structure according to specifi

Labor
qualifications

S

@ Bachelor's degree - 314 people

B College degree - 147 people

B intermediate degree - 111 people

@ Vocational certificate - 278 people

@ unskilled labor - 209 people
Master’'s degree - 14 people

B Male - 860 people
B Female - 213 people

C

@ uUnder 30 - 208 people
@ From 30 to 40 years old - 494 people
@ From 40 to 50 years old - 280 people

@ Over 50 years old - 91 people

N\

Management ﬂ

level

@ Ssenior level - 7 people
@ Middle level - 39 people
@ Basic level - 85 people
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4 3 SOCIAL STANDARDS
(GRl 400)(continued)

GRI 401: Employment (continued)

P Total number of new

» 515 people, categorized as follows

P Total number of resig

« 221 individuals, categorized into groups

By age Unit of measurement: Person By age Unit of measurement: Person
DT T
1 Under 30 201 1 Under 30 79
2 From 30 to 50 273 2 From 30 to 50 123
5 Over 50 41 3 Over 50 19
Total 515 Total 221
By gender Unit of measurement: Person By gender Unit of measurement: Person
DT T
1 Male 406 1 Male 147
2 Female 109 2 Female 74
Total 515 Total 221
By region Unit of measurement: Person By region Unit of measurement: Person
D T
1 Northern 63 1 Northern 46
2 Central 174 2 Central 104
3 Southern 278 3 Southern 71
Total 515 Total 221

» Employee Benefits for Full-time

The company fully participates in Social Insurance, Health Insurance, and Unemployment Insurance for
employees. Maternity leave, retirement benefits are handled in accordance with the Labor Law and Social
Insurance Law. The company provides full meals to employees to ensure health and food hygiene safety for
employees.
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» Maternity leave
““

Total employees entitled to maternity leave 3.36%
2 Total employees on maternity leave 43 3.36%
3 Total employees returned to work after maternity leave 43 100%

Total employees returning to work after maternity leave

O,
continue to work for more than 1year 43 100%

GRI 402: Labor/Management Relations

In the event of significant changes affecting employees, the Company always adheres to the provisions of
the Labor Code and agreements in the Labor Contract. Specifically, in the case of organizational changes,
the Company must provide advance notice to employees:

« At least 45 days for indefinite-term labor contracts;
« At least 30 days for fixed-term labor contracts with a duration from 12 to 36 months;

« At least 03 working days for fixed-term labor contracts with a duration of less than 12 months.

GRI 403: Occupational Health and Safety

« The representative unit for employees at HHV is the Labor Union, which acts as the primary protector of
employees’ rights working at the Company.

+ Regarding occupational health and safety, in 2023, HHV did not experience any occupational accidents.
HHV also consistently ensures strict compliance with regulations on compensation and allowances for
employees involved in occupational accidents, occupational diseases, as stipulated in current legal
documents:

+ Occupational Safety and Health Law;

+ Decree No. 88/2020/ND-CP dated 28 July 2020, detailing and guiding the implementation of some
provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Law regarding the regime for employees involved in
occupational accidents and occupational diseases;

+ Circular No. 28/2021/TT-BLDTBXH dated 28 December 2021, detailing and guiding the implementation
of some provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Law regarding the regime for employees
involved in occupational accidents and occupational diseases.

« In collective labor agreements, the Company also clearly stipulates the assurance of occupational safety
for its employees. Workers and staff working on-site are provided with personal protective equipment
such as masks, gloves, boots, and safety helmets. Personal protective equipment is provided at least 02
sets per year.

« The Company signs labor contracts in accordance with legal regulations and fully contributes monthly to
various types of insurance, including health insurance, social insurance, unemployment insurance, and
bodily injury insurance, for employees working at the Company according to current regulations.
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SOCIAL STANDARDS
® (GRl 400)(continued)

GRI 405: Diversity and Equal
Opportunity

Statistical data for the year 2023 of the workforce
at the Company shows a diversity in gender and
age, as well as equal opportunities for everyone in
employment being relatively ensured, creating a
characteristic of a fair working environment for all
employees.

Number of managerial staff:

e | Gtnin |ty | om |
1 95

Managerial staff 7.39%
2 Employees 1,190 92.60%
Total 1,285

Gender structure of managerial level:

o] i | i | o
1 69

Male 72.26%
2 Female 26 27.36%
Total 95

Cd cau nhém tudi cua cap quan ly:

n Classification [o]VE 151414

1 30 to 40 years old 10
2 40 to 50 years old 85
Total 95

At HHV, the basic salary is determined based on
the position and role, completely independent of
gender. The company consistently ensures equal
treatment between men and women throughout
the process of cultivating its corporate culture.

GRI 406: Non-discrimination

In 2022, as well as throughout the formation and
development of the organization, the Company did
not have any incidents of discrimination between
individuals in all management activities and
business operations.

@ Annual report 2023

GRI 407: Freedom to establish
association and collective
bargaining

« The company has established grassroots trade
unions and departmental trade unions in
accordance with regulations, always upholding
the role of protecting the legitimate rights and
interests of employees.

« Employees of the company have the right to
freedom of speech and freedom to participate
in appropriate groups/organizations in
accordance with the law.

GRI 408: Child labor

The company commits to completely refrain from
employing child labor and strongly opposes any
illegal use of child labor.

GRI 409: Forced or compulsory
labor

At HHYV, all employees are provided with conditions
to work voluntarily and willingly, ensuring no forced
labor.

GRI 411: Rights of indigenous
peoples

Throughout HHV’'s business history, given the
nature of executing infrastructure projects in
various regions with diverse cultural backgrounds,
the Company always ensures to respect the rights
of indigenous peoples.

GRI 412: Human rights assessment

Infrastructure projects such as bridges and roads,
invested by the Company, undergo environmental
and social impact assessments and are approved by
the government before implementation. Therefore,
human rights issues are ensured for each project
before being deployed.

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

GRI 410: Security practices

« Regarding security operations, HHV enters into
service contracts with third parties. Personnel
providing security services for HHV also undergo
training on HHV'’s corporate culture and values
to ensure a professional and courteous work
demeanor, and to be well-trained and familiar
with the corporate culture and code of conduct
of HHV.

« Specifically, some training requirements for
security staff include:

+ Knowledge of Vietnamese laws related to
security work;

+ Labor regulations and provisions regarding
security;

+ Communication skills, command demeanor;
+ Professional security techniques;

+ Techniques for management, control, and use
of supporting tools as per legal regulations;

+ Firefighting and rescue techniques;

+ HHV's corporate culture and values.

GRI 419: Compliance with economic
- social regulations

HHYV always complies with the law in this area.

The company has not been involved in litigation or
disputes. The company fulfills tax obligations and
obligations to partners, banks, and related parties
in full.

04. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

GRI 416: Customer health and safety

Bridge products have no impact on health or food
safety.

The company's transportation infrastructure
projects contribute to improving safety in traffic
participation and reducing travel time for residents.

GRI 418: Customer privacy

No complaints have arisen. The company always
emphasizes fulfilling the obligation to protect the
information of partners/customers. No incidents of
data loss or leakage have occurred.

GRI 413: Local community

« HHV provides infrastructure products that play
a significant role in regional economic
development and social welfare improvement:

+Infrastructure projects contribute to increased
regional connectivity, promoting economic
trade and services in areas where projects
pass through, especially in highland, remote,
and border areas, thereby creating more
employment opportunities and increasing
income for locals.

+ These projects also play a crucial role in
facilitating easier travel for locals, reducing
travel time, enhancing safety, and minimizing
traffic accidents and congestion.

« Additionally, HHV places a high value on
fulfilling responsibilities to the local commmunity,
regularly initiating charitable activities and
volunteer work, demonstrating corporate social
responsibility. Some notable social projects
include: Providing rapid test kitsto the Provincial
Department of Health in Quang Binh,
supporting the Vo Hong Son Center for Disabled
Children in Quang Ngai province, supporting
the construction of new rural areas in Huu Lung
district, Lang Son province, contributing to the
Fund for the Poor, supporting disadvantaged
families during the Lunar New Year, and
assisting workers injured in accidents.
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INFRASTRUCTURE

REPORT OF THE BOARD
OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company (the
“Company”) presents this report and the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023.

THE COMPANY

1. Form of ownership

Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company was established in accordance with the
Business Registration Certificate No. 0400101965 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment
of Da Nang City on 24 June 2010; register for the 32th amendment on 05 July 2023.

The Company's shares were approved for listing under Decision No. 717/QD-SCGDHCM dated 23 December
2021 and officially traded on 20 January 2022 on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange with the stock
symbol HHV. The number of listed securities as at 31/12/2023 is 329,350,351 shares.

Actual contributed capital as at 31/12/2023 is: VND 3,293,503,510,000

The head office is located at: Km11+500, Southern approach road to Hai Van tunnel, Hoa Hiep Bac Ward,
Lien Chieu District, Da Nang City, Viet Nam.

2. Business sectors

Trading, providing services, construction.

3. Principal activities

Directsupportservicesfor railand road transport: Management, exploitation and maintenance of Hai Van road
tunnels, Deo Ca road tunnel, Co Ma, Cu Mong road tunnel, Phuoc Tuong - Phu Gia road tunnel; management,
exploitation, maintenance of assigned national highways; ensure traffic when natural disasters occur in the
assigned area; toll collection service (Sector code: 5225); other road passenger transport; passenger transport
business on fixed routes, including: transporting motorcycles, motorbikes, bicycles with the operator of
such means and pedestrians through the road tunnel by specialized means of transport, use and trade
in passenger transport by bus (Sector code: 4932); freight transport by road, service activities incidental to
rail transportation (Sector code: 4933, 5221); cargo handling (Sector code: 5224); Building different kinds of
houses (Sector code: 4101, 4102); construction of railways, roads, electrical works, water supply and drainage
works, telecommunications and communication constructions, other utility projects, hydraulic structures,
mining and quarrying facilities, manufacturing facilities and other civil engineering projects (Sector code:
421, 4212, 4221, 4222, 4223, 4229, 4291, 4292, 4293, 4299); demolition, site preparation (Sector code: 4311, 4312);
quarrying of stone, sand, gravel and clay, mining and quarrying n.e.c (Sector code: 0810, 0899);

Printing and service activities related to printing (Sector code: 1811, 1812); Manufacture of non-alcoholic
beverages, and mineral waters, builders’ carpentry and joinery, refined petroleum product, plastics and
synthetic rubber in primary forms, clay building materials, concrete and articles of concrete, cement
and plaster, structural metal products, other fabricated metal products n.e.c., Electric power generation,
consumer electronics and other manufacturing n.e.c. (Sector code: 1104, 1622, 1920, 2013, 2392, 2395, 2511,
2599, 3511, 2640, 3290); Machining; treatment and coating of metals (Sector code: 2592)

Annual report 2023 @



05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

REPORT OF THE BOARD
OF MANAGEMENT (continued)

THE COMPANY (continued)

3. Principal activities (continued)

Repair of fabricated metal products, machinery and equipment, electrical equipment and other equipment
(Sector code: 3311, 3312, 3314, 3319); installation of industrial machinery and equipment, electrical installation,
plumbing, heat and air-conditioning installation, other construction installation (Sector code: 3320, 4321,
4322, 4329); building completion and finishing, other specialized construction activities (Sector code: 4330,
4390); wholesale ,maintenance and repair of motor vehicles and other motor vehicles, retail sale of small
cars, (Sector code: 4511, 4512, 4520); wholesale of computers, computer peripheral equipment and software,
electronic and telecommunications equipment and parts, other machinery and equipment, metals and
metal ores, construction materials and other installation supplies, other specialized wholesale n.e.c, other
retail sale of new goods in specialized stores (Sector code: 4651, 4652, 4659, 4662, 4663, 4669, 4773); short-
term accommodation activities (Sector code: 5510); restaurants and mobile food service activities (Sector
code: 5610); Motion picture projection activities, other telecommunications activities (Sector code: 5914,
6190); computer programming activities, computer consultancy and computer system management, other
information technology and computer service activities (Sector code: 6201, 6202, 6209); data processing,
hosting and related activities, web portals (Sector code: 6311, 6312); trading of own or rented property and land
use rights (Sector code: 6810); management consultancy activities, architectural and engineering activities
and related technical consultancy (Sector code: 7020, 7110); technical testing and analysis (Sector code: 7120);

Advertising (Sector code: 7310); other professional, scientific and technical activities n.e.c (Sector code: 7490);
renting and leasing of motor vehicles, renting and leasing of other machinery, equipment and tangible
goods without operator (Sector code: 7710, 7730); temporary employment agency activities, provision and
management of human resources (Sector code: 7820, 7830); activities of employment placement agencies
(Sector code: 7810); reservation service and related activities (Sector code: 7990); security systems service
activities (Sector code: 8020); combined facilities support activities (Sector code: 8110); industrial cleaning
activities and specialized cleaning activities for buildings (Sector code: 8129); combined office administrative
service activities, Photocopying, document preparation and other specialized office support activities (Sector
code: 8211, 8219); activities of call centres (Sector code: 8220); organization of conventions and trade shows
(Sector code: 8230); other remaining business support service activities n.e.c. (Sector code: 8299); other
education n.e.c. (Sector code: 8559); other human health activities n.e.c (Sector code: 8699); creative, arts and
entertainment activities (Sector code: 9000).

4. Company'’s structure

COEETTYS REAE % % Investment capital
pany Benefit | Voting right (VND)

Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT JSC 70.36% 70.36% 1,124,315,050,000
Deo Ca Investment JSC 72.09% 72.09% 1,566,373,980,000
Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT JSC 99.32% 99.32% 272,331,000,000
Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Investment JSC 47.21% 50.00% 122,000,000,000
Bac Giang - Lang Son - Huu Nghi BOT JSC 31.60% 31.60% 55,620,000,000
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List of dependent accounting affiliated units without legal status:

Construction Enterprise Hai Van tunnel, Hoa Hiep Bac ward,
Lien Chieu district, Da Nang City

Hai Van tunnel, Hoa Hiep Bac ward,
Lien Chieu district, Da Nang City

Hai Van Trading Service Production Enterprise

Hai Van tunnel, Hoa Hiep Bac ward,
Lien Chieu district, Da Nang City

Hai Van tunnel Management and Operation Enterprise

Hao Son hamlet, Hoa Xuan Nam commune,
Dong Hoa town, Phu Yen province

Deo Ca tunnel Management and Operation
Enterprise

Long Thanh Hamlet, Xuan Loc commune,
Song Cau town, Phu Yen province

Cu Mong tunnel Management and Operation
Enterprise

Kma81+140, Bac Giang - Lang Son expressway,
Ho Son commune, Huu Lung district, Lang Son province

Bac Giang - Lang Son Expressway Management and
Operation Enterprise

Tan Phong hamlet, Tan Hoi commune, Cai Lay town,
Tien Giang province

Trung Luong - My Thuan Expressway Management
and Operation Enterprise

16th Floor, 265 Cau Giay street, Dich Vong ward,
Cau Giay district, Hanoi city

32 Thach Thi Thanh street, Tan Dinh ward,
District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

Representative Office in Hanoi

Representative Office in Ho Chi Minh City

OPERATING RESULTS

The Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial position as at 31 December 2023 are
presented in the attached consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Company has amended its charter capital from VND 3,293,503,510,000 to VND 4,116,801,690,000
according to the Business Registration Certificate for the 33rd amendment issued by the Department of
Planning and Investment of Da Nang City on 2 February 2024.

On the date of preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Company completed its public
offering of shares to existing shareholders in 2023. All 82,329,818 shares offered were successfully registered
by the Viet Nam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (“VSDC") under Certificate No.107/2015/
GCNCP-VSDC-8, the 8th amendment on 16 February 2024. The Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange issued a
decision on the change of listing registration on 6 March 2024 which was effective from 8 March 2024.

From the consolidated financial statements closing date to the preparation date of these consolidated
financial statement, the Company made capital contributions to project enterprises: Deo Ca Investment
Joint Stock Company with an amount of VND 108,243,670,000, Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT Joint Stock
Company with an amount of VND 33,509,340,000, and Dong Dang - Tra Linh Expressway Joint Stock
Company with an amount of VND 7,500,000,000.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD
OF MANAGEMENT (continued)

EVENTS AFTER THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATE (continued)

On 22 February 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company issued Resolution No.09/2024/NQ- HDQT to
establish the Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Expressway Management and Operation Enterprise. This enterprise is
a non-corporate legal entity dependent unit and has been granted a branch operation certificate by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Ninh Thuan Province on 10 March 2024.

The Board of Management of the Company confirms that there have been no material events occurring
after 31 December 2023 up to the date of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that
have not been reviewed for adjustment or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE AND CHIEF
ACCOUNTANT

The Board of Directors:

Mr. Ho Minh Hoang Chairman 08/08/2019
Mr. Nguyen Tan Dong Vice Chairman 08/08/2019
Mr. Nguyen Huu Hung Member 24/04/2022
Vice Chairman 29/04/2022
Mr. Vo Thuy Linh Member 21/07/2015
Mr. Tran Chung Member 17/06/2020
Mr. Nguyen Quang Huy Member 01/11/2021
Mr. Hoang Van Hai Independent member 17/06/2020
Mr. Ho Quang Loi Independent member 24/04/2022

The Board of Management:

Mr. Nguyen Quang Huy General Director 21/12/2020
Mr. Tran Van Chi Permanent Deputy 14/02/2022
Mr. Vo Ngoc Trung Deputy General Director 10/12/2020
Mr. Tran Van Dung Deputy General Director 14/01/2021
Mrs. Nguyen Quynh Mai Deputy General Director 30/03/2021
Mr. Le Chau Thang Deputy General Director 14/02/2022
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The Board of Supervisors:

Mr. Nguyen Minh Giang Section head 16/04/2018
Mrs. Cam Thi Minh Hai Member 17/06/2020
Mrs. Phan Thi Mai Member 26/04/2021

Legal representative:

Mr. Nguyen Quang Huy General Director 21/12/2020

Chief Accountant:

Mr. Nguyen Van An 17/06/2020

AUDITOR

The auditor of the Company is Southern Auditing and Accounting Financial Consulting Services Company
Limited (AASCS).

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Management of the Company is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company and the
results of its operations and consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023. In preparing
those consolidated financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:

« Establish and maintain the internal control which The Board of Directors and The Board of Management
determines to be necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements to be free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

« Select appropriate accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
« Make reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates;

« Applicable accounting standards have been followed by the Company, and there are no material
misstatements in application needed to be disclosed and explained in these consolidated financial
statements;
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REPORT OF THE BOARD
OF MANAGEMENT (continued)

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

« Prepare and present consolidated financial statements on the basis of compliance with current
accounting standards, corporate accounting system and other applicable regulations;

« Prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business.

The Board of Management of the Company ensures that the accounting records are kept disclosing,
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and enable the consolidated
financial statements to comply with the current applicable regulations. The Board of Management is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps to prevent
and detect fraud or other irregularities.

OTHER ENGAGEMENT

The Board of Management engage that the Company has not broken obligation announcing information
on the stock exchange following the Circular No.96/2020/TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020 issued by the
Ministry of Finance.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We hereby, the Board of Management of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company
approve the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Da Nang, 20 March 2024

On behalf of the Board of Management
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT

No: 204/BCKT/TC/2024/AASCS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: The Shareholders, The Board of Directors, The Board of Management of

DEO CA TRAFFIC INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company, prepared on 20 March 2024 from pages 99 to 189, including consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2023, consolidated income statment, consolidated cash flows statment for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Board of Management’s responsibility

The Company's Board of Management is responsible for the fair preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese accounting standards, corporate
accounting system and applicable regulations on the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statementsandisresponsible for such internal control which the Board of Management determines
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements to be
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Auditing Standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'’
REPORT (continued)

Auditor opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements gave true and fair view in all material respects, of the
consolidated financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of the consolidated results
of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023 in accordance
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory
requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Ho Chi Minh, 20 March 2024
Southern Auditing and Accounting

Financial Consulting Services Co., Ltd (AASCS)

Deputy General Director Auditor

Le Van"Tuan

Dang Tung Hung
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 December 2023

31.12.2023 01.01.2023
ASSETS m VND

Certificate of Auditing Registration No.3611-2021-142-1

SHORT-TERM ASSETS 1,175,974,314,357 1,183,826,382,647
1o Cash and cash equivalents V.1 296,127,587,276 382,261,109,037
m Cash 70,617142,427 167,118,290,604
n2 Cash equivalents 225,510,444,849 215,142,818,433
120 Short-term investments 76,965,731,271 72,830,731,676
123 Investments held to maturity V.2a 76,965,731,271 72,830,731,676
130 Short-term receivables 690,013,292,765 456,607,687,667
131 Short-term trade accounts receivable V.3 399,951,959,341 204,928,657,469
132 Short-term prepayments to suppliers V.4a 130,232,280,739 59,725,675,369
135 Short-term lending V.5 - 1,000,000,000
136 Other short-term receivables V.6a 173,039,599,416 204,163,901,560
137 Provision for doubtful debts — short term V.7 (13,210,546,731) (13,210,546,737)
140 Inventories 77,290,414,338 160,745,755,816
141 Inventories V.8 77,290,414,338 160,745,755,816
150 Other short-term assets 35,577,288,707 111,381,098,451
151 Short-term prepaid expenses V.9a 25,335,939,260 25,508,020,223
152 Value Added Tax to be reclaimed 10,122,438,374 85,754,167,155
153 Tax and other receivables from the State Budget V.16 118,911,073 118,911,073
200 LONG-TERM ASSETS 35,604,180,474,526 34,469,406,101,860
210 Long-term receivables 404,737,676,91 558,366,332,674
212 Long-term prepayments to suppliers V.4b 205,909,761,114 200,877103,117
216 Other long-term receivables V.6b 198,827,915,797 357,489,229,557
220 Fixed assets 28,328,801,816,358 28,561,779,089,050
221 Tangible fixed assets V.10 28,308,715,534, 444 28,557,207,556,363
222 Historical cost 30,309,445,727,903 30,253,539,414,456
223 Accumulated depreciation (2,000,730,193,459) (1,696,331,858,093)
224 Finance lease fixed assets \VAll 16,187,449,195 -
225 Historical cost 17, 714,776,374 -
226 Accumulated depreciation (1,527,327,179) -
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31.12.2023 01.01.2023
REPORT (continued) ﬂ

Long-term advances from customers V.eb 289,211,817,160 -
333 Long-term accrued expenses V.18b 4.754,996,834,525 3,000,701,307,033
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)
as at 31 December 2023 336 Long-term unearned revenue V.19b 7764,764,056 8,800,000,000
337 Other long-term payables V.20b 53,484,473,182 53,450,748,994
338 Long-term borrowings and finance lease

liabilities V.22a 19,279,986,194,751 19,780,099,074,104
Intangible fixed assets 3,898,832.719 4571532,687 341 Deferred income tax liabilities V.22b 152,829,809,985 155,134,453,811

228 Historical cost 5,411,164,156 5,411,164,156

?

229 Accumulated amortisation (1,512,331,437) (839,631,469) 400 OWNER'’S EQUITY V.23 8,732,901,329,464 8,375,513,279,374
240 Long-term assets in progress 170,630,457 13,636,905,417 410 Capital and reserves 5,460,093,016,662 5,102,704,966,572
242 Construction in progress V13 170,630,457 13,636,905,417 411 Owner’s capital 3,293,503,510,000 3,078,044,500,000
411a - Ordinary shares with voting rights 3,293,503,510,000 3,078,044,500,000
252 Investments in associates, joint ventures V.2b 466,481,414,519 514,096,348,432 412 Share premium (876,900,000 (537,900,000
253 Investments in other entities V.2c 13,500,000,000 ) 418 Investment and development funds 8,822,456,079 748,483,380
255 Investments held to maturity V.2a 17,000,000,000 17,000,000,000 421 Undistributed earnings 921,898,501,789 820,521,267,159
421a - Undistributed post-tax profits of previous years 601,683,644,827 558,377,930,998
260 Other long-term assets 6,373,488,936,281 4,804,527,426,287 421b - Post-tax profits of current year 320,214,856,962 262,143,336,161
261 Long-term prepaid expenses V.9b 6,355,220,075,804 4,783,759,644,909 429 Non-controlling interests 1:236,745,448,794 1197,528,616,033

262 Deferred income tax assets V.22a 4,152,430,718 4,196,320,355
269 Goodwill Via 14.116,429,759 16,571,461,023 430 Budget sources and other funds 3,272,808,312,802 3,272,808,312,802
432 Funds that form fixed assets 3,272,808,312,802 3,272,808,312,802

270 TOTAL ASSETS 36,780,154,788,883 35,653,232,484,507
440 TOTAL RESOURCES 36,780,154,788,883 35,653,232,484,507

01.01.2023

3112.2023 Ol

300

310
3
312
313
314
315
318
319
320

322
330
331

LIABILITIES

Short-term liabilities
Short-term trade accounts payable
Short-term advances from customers
Tax and other payables to the State Budget
Payable to employees
Short-term accrued expenses
Short-term unearned revenue
Other short-term payables
Short-term borrowings and finance
lease liabilities
Bonus and welfare funds

Long-term liabilities

Long-term trade accounts payables
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V.15a
V.16a
V.17

V.18a

V19a

V.20a

V.21a

V.15b

28,047,253,459,419

3,143,895,667,433
1,105,886,042,898
4,619,425,163
81,464,116,868
12,836,810,688
439,427,348,028
100,000,000
488,231,593,491

1,004,158,155,482
6,172,174,815
24,903,357,791,986
365,083,898,327

27,277,719,205,133

3,857,252,850,108
1,094,900,651,814
111,933,245,928
65,914,466,869
13,722,454,189
1,111,635,262,121
100,000,000
583,828,767,646

872,603,704,822
1,614,296,719
23,420,466,355,025
422,280,771,083

Prepared by

DANG THI HUYEN

Da Nang, 20 March 2024

On behalf of the Board of Management

Chief Accountant

NGUYEN VAN AN

General Director

NGUYEN QUANG HUY
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023

and rendering of services

02 Less deductions

10 Net revenue from sales of goods and rendering
of services

n Cost of goods sold and services rendered

20 Gross profit from sales of goods and rendering
of services

21 Financial income

22 Financial expenses

23 - Including: Interest expenses

24 Profit from sales of goods and rendering of services

26 General and administration expenses

30 Net operating profit

31 Other income

32 Other expenses

40 Net other expenses

50 Net accounting profit before tax
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Year ended 31 December

Code 2023 2022
VND VND

Revenue from sales of goods

2,685,542,239,251

2,685,542,239,251

1,605,123,307,081

1.080.418.932.170

25,719,678,287
667,279,809,348
662,435,560,342
49,109,315,093
60,780,235,502

427,187,880,700
2,086,063,635
4,553,327,184

(2,467,263,549)

424,720,617,151

2,094,582,751,424

2,094,582,751,424

1,078,028,599,115

1.016.554.152.309

5,444,505,906
647,600,236,079
647,600,236,079
52,722,444,486
72,874,475153

354,246,391,469
12,438,456
327,869,704

(315,431,248)

353,930,960,221

52

60

62

70
7
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Business income tax - deferred

Net profit after tax
Attributable to:

Owners of the parent company

Non-controlling interests

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Prepared by

DANG THI HUYEN

Chief Accountant

NGUYEN VAN AN

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December

Code 2023 2022
VND VND

Business income tax - current

62,524,153,479 58,772,545,135
(2,260,754,189) (2,250,873,784)
364,457,217,861 297,409,288,870
322,122,856,962 264,050,336,161
42,334,360,899 33,358,952,709

V110 1,010 982
VI 678 929

Da Nang, 20 March 2024

On behalf of the Board of Management

General Director

NGUYEN QUANG HUY
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05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Indirect method)

Year ended 31 December

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Code 2023 2022
VND VND

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

31 Proceeds from issue of shares and capital contribution 61,000,000 403,873,700,000
33 Proceeds from borrowings 503,403,158,775 499,241,081,047
Year ended 31 December
34 Repayments of borrowings (886,294,034,961) (954,200,304,573)
code 2023 2022 35 Finance lease principal repayments (4,970,543,556) -
VND VND 40 Net cash outflows from financing activities (387,800,419,742) (51,085,523,526)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES . . .
. 50 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (86,133,521,761) 119,877,627,709
01 Net profit before tax 424,720,617,151 353,930,960,221
Adjustments for: . L.
o o 60 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year \A| 382,261,109,037 262,383,481,328
02 Depreciation and amortisation 310,893,451,005 283,718,402,007 ) )
) ) ) o 61 Effect of foreign exchange differences - -
05 Profits from investing activities (69,984,744,374) (58,166,950,392)
06 Interest expense 662,435,560,342 647,600,236,079 .
. . . . X 70 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year V.1 296,127,587,276 382,261,109,037
08 Operating profit before changes in working capital 1,328,064,884,124 1,227,082,647,915
09 Decrease in receivables 60,904,812,246 54,698,195,030
10 Decrease/(increase) in inventories 83,455,341,478 (122,462,046,710)
n Increase in payables [not including interest payables, Da Nang, 20 March 2024
CIT payables] 182,916,898,206 72,942,930,052
) ) ) On behalf of the Board of Management
12 Decrease/(increase) in prepaid expenses 1,470,706,357 (3,447,703,216)
14 Interest paid (1,202,050,1M1,622) (827,555,226,137)
15 Business income tax paid (61,361,424,724) (36,138,362,996)
20 Net cash inflows from operating activities 393,401,106,065 365,120,433,938 Prepared by Chief Accountant General Director
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 Purchases of fixed assets and other long-term assets (128,953,497,802) (196,901,788,609)
22 Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and
long-term assets 15,814,973,910 (2,700,000,000)
23 Loans granted, purchases of debt instruments of
other entities (6,634,999,595) -
24 Collection of loans, proceeds from sales of debt DANG THI HUYEN NGUYEN VAN AN NGUYEN QUANG HUY
instruments of other entities 3,500,000,000 -
25 Investments in other entities (79,024,000,000) -
26 Proceeds from divestment in other entities 78,380,000,000 -
27 Dividends and interest received 25,183,315,403 5,444 505,906
30 Net cash outflows from investing activities (91,734,208,084%) (194,157,282,703)
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05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

l. THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS CHARACTERISTICS

1. Form of ownership

Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company was established in accordance with the
Business Registration Certificate No. 0400101965 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment
of Da Nang City on 24 June 2010; register for the 32th amendment on 05 July 2023.

Actual contributed capital as at 31/12/2023 is: VND 3,293,503,510,000

The head office is located at: Km11+500, Southern approach road to Hai Van Tunnel, Hoa Hiep Bac Ward,
Lien Chieu District, Da Nang City, Viet Nam.

2. Business sectors
Trading, providing services, construction.
3. Business line

Direct support services for rail and road transport: Management, exploitation and maintenance of Hai
Van road tunnels, Deo Ca road tunnel, Co Ma, Cu Mong road tunnel, Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia road tunnel;
management, exploitation, maintenance of assigned national highways; ensure traffic when natural
disasters occur in the assigned area; toll collection service (Sector code: 5225); other road passenger
transport; passenger transport business on fixed routes, including: transporting motorcycles, motorbikes,
bicycles with the operator of such means and pedestrians through the road tunnel by specialized means
of transport, use and trade in passenger transport by bus (Sector code: 4932); freight transport by road,
service activities incidental to rail transportation (Sector code: 4933, 5221); cargo handling (Sector code:
5224); Building different kinds of houses (Sector code: 4101, 4102); construction of railways, roads, electrical
works, water supply and drainage works, telecommunications and communication constructions, other
utility projects, hydraulic structures, mining and quarrying facilities, manufacturing facilities and other
civil engineering projects (Sector code: 4211, 4212, 4221, 4222, 4223, 4229, 4291, 4292, 4293, 4299); demolition,
site preparation (Sector code: 4311, 4312); quarrying of stone, sand, gravel and clay, mining and quarrying
n.e.c (Sector code: 0810, 0899);

Printing and service activities related to printing (Sector code: 1811, 1812); Manufacture of non-alcoholic
beverages, and mineral waters, builders’ carpentry and joinery, refined petroleum product, plastics and
synthetic rubber in primary forms, clay building materials, concrete and articles of concrete, cement
and plaster, structural metal products, other fabricated metal products n.e.c., Electric power generation,
consumer electronics and other manufacturing n.e.c. (Sector code: 1104, 1622, 1920, 2013, 2392, 2395, 2511,
2599, 3511, 2640, 3290); Machining, treatment and coating of metals (Sector code: 2592);

Repair of fabricated metal products, machinery and equipment, electrical equipment and other equipment
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(Sector code: 3311, 3312, 3314, 3319); installation of industrial machinery and equipment, electrical installation,
plumbing, heat and air-conditioning installation, other construction installation (Sector code: 3320, 4321,
4322, 4329); building completion and finishing, other specialized construction activities (Sector code: 4330,
4390); wholesale ,maintenance and repairof motor vehicles and other motor vehicles, retail sale of small
cars,(Sector code: 4511, 4512, 4520); wholesale of computers, computer peripheral equipment and software,
electronic and telecommunications equipment and parts, other machinery and equipment, metals and
metal ores, construction materials and other installation supplies, other specialized wholesale n.e.c, other
retail sale of new goods in specialized stores (Sector code: 4651, 4652, 4659, 4662, 4663, 4669, 4773); short-
term accommodation activities (Sector code: 5510); restaurants and mobile food service activities (Sector
code: 5610); Motion picture projection activities, other telecommmunications activities (Sector code: 5914,
6190); computer programming activities, computer consultancy and computer system management, other
information technology and computer service activities (Sector code: 6201, 6202, 6209); data processing,
hosting and related activities, web portals (Sector code: 6311, 6312);trading of own or rented property and
land use rights (Sector code: 6810); management consultancy activities, architectural and engineering
activities and related technical consultancy (Sector code: 7020, 7110); technical testing and analysis (Sector
code: 7120);

Advertising (Sector code: 7310); other professional, scientific and technical activities n.e.c (Sector code: 7490);
renting and leasing of motor vehicles, renting and leasing of other machinery, equipment and tangible
goods without operator (Sector code: 7710, 7730); temporary employment agency activities, provision
and management of human resources (Sector code: 7820, 7830); activities of employment placement
agencies (Sector code: 7810); reservation service and related activities (Sector code: 7990); security systems
service activities (Sector code: 8020); combined facilities support activities (Sector code: 8110); industrial
cleaning activities and specialized cleaning activities for buildings (Sector code: 8129); combined office
administrative service activities, Photocopying, document preparation and other specialized office support
activities (Sector code: 8211, 8219); activities of call centres (Sector code: 8220); organization of conventions
and trade shows (Sector code: 8230); other remaining business support service activities n.e.c. (Sector
code: 8299); other education n.e.c. (Sector code: 8559); other human health activities n.e.c (Sector code:
8699); creative, arts and entertainment activities (Sector code: 9000).

4. Ordinary business cycle
The Company’'s normal production and business cycle is within 12 months.

5. Company’s structure

The list of subsidiary companies

% Benefit % Voting right
Bac Giang - Lang Son 16th Floor, Office Tower, 70.36% 68.34% 70.36% 68.34%
BOT JSC Building No. 265 Cau Giay,
Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay
district, Hanoi, Viethnam
2 Deo Ca Investment JSC 32 Thach Thi Thanh, Tan 72.09% 72.09% 72.09% 72.09%
Dinh ward, District 1,
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
3 Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia Lot 4 BT1, Me Tri Ha Urban 99.32% 99.47% 99.32% 99.47%
BOT JSC Area, Me Tri ward, Nam
Tu Liem district, Hanoi,
Vietnam

Annual report 2023 @



05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DEOCA
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

l. THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS CHARACTERISTICS (continued)

5. Company’s structure (continued)

The list of joint venture and associate companies

% Benefit % Voting right
ICV Vietnam Investment 32 Thach Thi Thanh, Tan 21% 21.95% 2.1% 21.95%
and Construction JSC Dinh ward, District 1,
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
2 Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT  16th Floor, Office Tower, 47.21% 47.21% 50.00% 50.00%
Investment JSC Building No. 265 Cau Giay,
Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay
district, Hanoi, Vietham
3 Bac Giang - Lang Son - 1th Floor, Thang Long 31.60% 31.60% 31.60% 31.60%

Huu Nghi BOT JSC Office Building at 98A
Nguy Nhu Kon Tum, Nhan
Chinh ward, Thanh Xuan
district, Hanoi, Vietham

Summary of Activities of Subsidiary and Associate Companies:

i. Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT JSC

The project company implementing BOT contract was established under the first in accordance with
the Business Registration Certificate No. 0106987957 dated 11 September 2015; 18th amendment on 08
December 2023 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment.

Investment registration certificate No.110/BKHDT-GNNDKDTTN issued on 29 March 2016, the first
amendment dated 19 October 20716 regarding the approval of investment projects:

Investment and construction project of Bac Giang - Lang Son city expressway section KM45+100 - KM
108 + 500 combined with strengthening National Highway 1 section Km1 + 800 - Km 106 + 500, Bac
Giang province and Lang Son province under BOT contract.

Scale, design frequency and standards of the Project (according to the BOT Investment Certificate).

Structure of investment capital according to the financial plan:

Equity: VND 1,645,470,000,000
Borrowings: VND 10,543,195,000,000
Total VND 12,188,665,000,000
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The company’s investment capital is implemented according to the project’s progress.

The project continues to be completed and is being verified and approved by the competent State
authorities.

Investors are entitled to 11.5% per year interest under the BOT contract throughout the project’s lifespan.
The remaining toll collection period according to the financial plan is 24 years and 8 months.

Actual contributed capital as at 31/12/2023 is: VND 1,597,847,400,000

ii. Deo Ca Investment JSC

The project company implementing BOT contract was established under the first in accordance with the
Business Registration Certificate No. 0104567756 dated 5 April 2010 issued by the Department of Planning
and Investment of Hanoi City. The Company is currently operating under the 23rd amended enterprise
registration certificate issued by the Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment on 30
December 2022.

Adjusted investment certificate No.47/BKHDT-GCNDKDTTN/DCI1 certified by the Ministry of Planning and
Investment on 20 June 2017:

« Deo Catunnel project (including Deo Ca and Co Ma tunnel, Cu Mong tunnel and Hai Van tunnel)

Decision No.400/QD-BGTVT dated 4 March 2019 on approving the adjustment of the financial plan of Deo
Ca tunnel project (including Deo Ca and Co Ma tunnel, Cu Mong tunnel and Hai Van tunnel);

The total project investment capital according to Appendix 09 of the Contract 26/HDXD-DEOCA with the
Ministry of Transport signed on 13 March 2019 is VND 21,612,000,000,000.

Structure of investment capital according to the financial plan:

« Owner’s equity: VND 1,749,864,583,000
« Other Capital VND 1,438,432,378,000
« Borrowings: VND 13,375,708,235,000
. State budget Capital VND 5,048,002,979,000
Total VND 21,612,008,175,000

The company’s investment capital is implemented according to the project’s progress.
The project is being verified and approved by a competent authority.

This BOT contract is guaranteed by a competent authority for the investor’s profit throughout the project's
lifespan:

« Deo Catunnel component: Investor profit under the contract is 9.15% per year throughout the project’s
lifespan. The remaining toll collection period according to the financial plan is 21 years and 5 months;

« An Dan Station component: Investor profit under the contract is 9.15% per year throughout the project’s
lifespan. The remaining toll collection period according to the financial plan is 21 years and 5 months;

« Cu Mong tunnel component: Investor profit under the contract is 9.15% per year throughout the
project’s lifespan. The remaining toll collection period according to the financial plan is 21 years and 5
months;

« HaiVantunnels1and Hai Van tunnels 2 component: Investor profit under the contract for both tunnels
Annual report 2023@
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

l. THE COMPANY'’S OPERATIONS CHARACTERISTICS (continued)

5. Company’s structure (continued)

Summary of Activities of Subsidiary and Associate Companies: (continued)

is11.5% per year. The remaining toll collection period according to the financial plan is 21 years and 5 months.

Actual contributed capital as at 31/12/2023 is: VND 2,172,792,730,000

iii. Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT JSC

The project company implementing BOT contract was established under the first in accordance with the
Business Registration Certificate No. 0106205342 dated 12 June 2013; amended for the 10th time by the
Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on 19 September 2023

Investment certificate No.62/BKHDT-GCNTTN dated 17 October 2013 issued by the Minister of Planning
and Investment; and the first amended dated 17 August 2015;

Investment project on construction of Phuoc Tuong and Phu Gia tunnel, National Highway 1A, Thua
Thien Hue Province;

Appendix to BOT Contract No.06/11378/HD.BOT-BGTVT dated 17/07/2019, Appendix BOT Contract
No0.07/11378/HD.BOT-BGTVT dated 23/04/2021 between the Ministry of Transport and Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia
Joint Venture (Investor) — Phuoc Tuong Phu Gia BOT Joint Stock Company on the construction of Phuoc
Tuong and Phu Gia tunnels, National Highway 1A, Thua Thien Hue Province;

Scale, design frequency and standards of the Project (according to the BOT Investment Certificate)
Structure of investment capital according to the financial plan: VND 1,559,231,104,000

Owner's equity: VND 262,000,000,000

Borrowings: VND 1,297,231,104,000
The company’'s investment capital is implemented according to the project’s progress.
The project is being verified and approved by a competent authority.

Investor profit throughout the project’s lifespan is 11.5% per year. The remaining toll collection period
according to the financial plan is 11 years and 10 months.

Actual contributed capital as at 31/12/2023 is: VND 274,186,000,000

iv. Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Investment JSC

The project company implementing BOT contract was established under the first in accordance with the
Business Registration Certificate No. 0106159826 dated 22 April 2013. The business registration certificate
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was amended for the 5th time by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on 27 May 2022.

Investment Certificate No.60/BKHDT-GCNDTN dated 25 September 2013:

« Investment and construction project of expanding National Highway 1 section Km1374+525 - Km1392 &
Km1405 - Km1425, Khanh Hoa province under BOT contract.

Decision 108/QD-BGTVT dated 13 January 2016 on the collection of tolls at Ninh An toll station Km1425+200
on National Highway 1 on paybacking the investment project for the expansion of National Route 1 section
Km1374+525 - Km1392 and Km1405 - Km1425+500, Khanh Hoa province under BOT contract:

« Scale, design frequency and standards of the project (according to the BOT Investment Certificate)

Structure of investment capital according to the financial plan: VND 2,644,478,000,000

« Owner’s equity: VND 339,447,800,000
« Borrowings: VND 2,305,030,200,000
The company's investment capital is implemented according to the project’s progress.

The project is being verified and approved by the competent State authorities.

Investor return throughout the project’s lifespan is 11.5% per year. The remaining toll collection period
according to the financial plan is 13 years and 8 months.

Actual contributed capital as at 31/12/2023 is: VND 305,000,000,000

V. Bac Giang - Lang Son - Huu Nghi BOT JSC

The project company implementing BOT contract was established under the first in accordance with the
Business Registration Certificate No. 0108311466 dated 5 June 2018. The business registration certificate
was amended for the 9th time by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on 5 April 2023.

« Investment and construction project component 2: Expressway from Huu Nghi - Chi Lang border gate
(Km1+800-Km44+749.67), Lang Son province

Huu Nghi - Chi Lang border gate expressway was invested and constructed under Decision No.1833/QD-
BGTVT dated 14 June 2016 of the Ministry of Transport. The People's Committee of Lang Son province
approved the adjustment and supplementation of the project according to the Decisions N0.1523/QD-
UBND dated 9 August 2018 and the Decision No.2018/QD-UBND dated 15 October 2018.

Decision No.645/QD-UBND dated 5 April 2019 of the People's Committee of Lang Son province approves the
adjustment of the financial plan of the component 2 of the Bac Giang - Lang Son expressway construction
investment project section Km1+800-Km108+500, combined with strengthening the road surface of
National Highway 1, section Km1+800-Km106+500, Bac Giang province and Lang Son province under BOT
contract.

« Scale, design frequency and standards of the Project (according to the BOT Investment Certificate)
Structure of investment capital according to the financial plan: VND 8,743,000,000,000

« Owner's equity: VND 1,749,000,000,000
« Borrowings: VND 6,994,000,000,000

The company’'s investment capital is implemented according to the project’s progress.

Actual contributed capital as at 31/12/2023 is: VND 176,000,000,000
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

l. THE COMPANY'’'S OPERATIONS CHARACTERISTICS (continued)

5. Company’s structure (continued)

List of dependent accounting affiliated units without legal status:

Construction Enterprise

Hai Van Trading Service Production Enterprise

Hai Van tunnel Management and Operation Enterprise
Deo Ca tunnel Management and Operation Enterprise
Cu Mong tunnel Management and Operation Enterprise

Bac Giang - Lang Son Expressway Management and Operation
Enterprise

Trung Luong - My Thuan Expressway Management and
Operation Enterprise

Representative Office in Hanoi

Representative Office in Ho Chi Minh City

6. Employees

At the end of the accounting period, the company had 1,073 employees working (the beginning of year

was 1,285 employees).

Hai Van tunnel, Hoa Hiep Bac ward,
Lien Chieu district, Da Nang City

Hai Van tunnel, Hoa Hiep Bac ward,
Lien Chieu district, Da Nang City

Hai Van tunnel, Hoa Hiep Bac ward,
Lien Chieu district, Da Nang City

Hao Son hamlet, Hoa Xuan Nam commune,
Dong Hoa Town, Phu Yen province

Long Thanh Hamlet, Xuan Loc commune,
Song Cau Town, Phu Yen province

Km81+140, Bac Giang - Lang Son Expressway,
Ho Son commune, Huu Lung district,
Lang Son province

Tan Phong hamlet, Tan Hoi commune,

Cai Lay Town, Tien Giang province

16th Floor, 265 Cau Giay Street,

Dich Vong ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi City

32 Thach Thi Thanh street, Tan Dinh ward,
District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

[I.  FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

The Company's fiscal year is from 1 January to 31 December.

The currency used in accounting records is Vietnam Dong (VND).

@ Annual report 2023

DEOCA 05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INFRASTRUCTURE

1.  ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

1. Accounting system

The Company applies the corporate accounting system issued under Circular No.200/2014/TT-BTC dated
22 December 2014, Circular No.202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance and
supplementary guiding documents.

2. Statement of Compliance with Accounting Standards and Accounting System

The Company applies Vietnamese Accounting Standards and supplement documents issued by the
State. The consolidated financial statements are prepared and presented in compliance with applicable
standard, circular guiding the implementation of the standard and the corporate accounting systems.

IV. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Types of exchange rates applied in accounting

a) Exchange rates for transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year

Actual exchange rate used in buying or selling foreign currencies (foreign exchange spot contracts, forward
contracts, futures contracts, options contracts, swap contracts): is the exchange rate signed in foreign
exchange contracts between the Company and the commercial banks;

If the contract does not specify the exchange rate, the Company shall recognize transactions in accordance
with the following principles:

« Actual exchange rate when contributing capital or receiving capital contribution: is buying exchange
rate of the bank where the enterprises opens an account to receive capital from the owners at the
transaction date;

« Actual exchange rate when recording receivables: is the buying exchange rate of the commercial bank
where the enterprises assigned customers to make the payment at the transaction date;

« Actual exchange rate when recording liabilities: is the selling exchange rate of the commercial bank
where the enterprises expect to conduct transactions at the transaction date;

« For purchasing of assets or expenses in foreign currencies (not through the accounts payables), the
exchange rate is the buying exchange rate of the commercial bank where the enterprises make
payments;

« Specificidentification real accounting book exchange rate:is exchange rate upon recovery of receivable,
deposit or settlement of debts payable in foreign currencies, determined according to the exchange
rate at the time of incurred transactions;

« Actual exchange rate differences arising during the year of monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are accounted for at actual exchange rates at the time of arising and are charged to financial
revenue or expenses in the financial year.

Annual report 2023 @



05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

IV.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1. Types of exchange rates applied in accounting (continued)

b) Exchange rate upon re-evaluated monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the consolidated balance sheet date

Actual exchange rate upon translating monetary assets denominated in foreign currencies: is the buying
exchange rate of the commercial bank where the company regularly trades at the balance sheet date.
Foreign currencies deposit in bank at the consolidated balance sheet date are translated at the buying
exchange rate of the commercial bank where the company opens foreign currency accounts;

Actual exchange rate upon translating monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies: is the selling
exchange rate of the commercial bank where the company regularly trades at the consolidated balance
sheet date;

The exchange rate difference resulting from the revaluation of the balances of foreign currency-
denominated itemsat the end of the yearisaccounted for using the actual exchange rate of the commmercial
bank where the enterprise regularly transacts, as disclosed at the time of preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Any remaining difference after offsetting the increases and decreases is recognized
as revenue from financial activities or financial expenses in the year.

The company is not allowed to distribute profits or pay dividends on the exchange rate gain or loss resulting
from the revaluation of the year-end foreign currency balance of foreign currency-denominated items.

2. Cash and cash equivalents

a) Cash

Cash includes: cash on hand, cash in bank and cash in transit.
b) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term investments with original maturity of three months or less which can be
able to convert to the amount of cash and there is no significant risk in the converting from the purchasing
date at the consolidated balance sheet date.
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3. Financial investment

Financial investment is the outside with the purpose of using capital reasonably and improving efficiency of
business operations such as investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates, securities investments
and other financial investments.

For the preparation of financial statements, the financial investment must be classified as bellows:
« Having maturity of less than 12 months or 01 normal production period are recorded as short-term.

« Having maturity over than 12 months or O1 normal production period are recorded as long-term.

a) Held-to-maturity investment

This investment does not reflect holdings of bonds and debt instruments for profit-making purposes.

Held-to-maturity investments include term deposits at banks (with the maturity of 3 months or more),
treasury bills, promissory notes, bonds and preferred shares obligatorily repurchased at a specified future
date, loans held to maturity with periodic interest earnings, and other held-to-maturity investments.

Provision for diminution in value of held-to-maturity investments: if provision has not been made under
statutory regulations, the company must assess the possibility of recovery. The provision for diminution in
value of held-to-maturity investment when there is evidence that the investment is uncollectible in whole
or in part. Changes in the provision balance during the fiscal year are recorded as an increase or decrease
in financial expenses. A reversal, if any, is made only to the extent the investment is restored to its original
cost. Where the amount of loss cannot be reliably determined, the decrease in investment will not be
recorded and the recoverability of the investment is disclosed in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

b) Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies to gain future benefits from their activities, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights.The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls the entity.Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the purchase of subsidiaries.The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued, and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus directly related acquisition costs.

Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in the business combination are measured
initially at fair values at the acquisition date, regardless of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Company’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwiill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognized directly in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

V. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. Financial investment (continued)

b) Investments in subsidiaries and associates (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

In a multi-phase acquisition, when determining goodwill or bargain purchase, the value of the investment
in the subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the total consideration on the date of acquiring control and
previous considerations remeasured to fair value on the date of control acquisition.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries are also adjusted if necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
currently applied by the Company.

The financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries are prepared for the same accounting period. If
there are differences in end dates, the gap must not exceed 3 months. Adjustments are made to reflect
the impacts of significant transactions and events occurring between the end dates of the subsidiaries’
accounting period and that of the Company’s. The length of the reporting period and differences in
reporting date must be consistent between periods.

Operations and interests of non-controlling shareholders

The Company applies policies for transactions involving non-controlling interests similarly to transactions
with external parties.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI") are determined based on their ownership percentage in the net assets
at the date of acquisition.

The divestment of the Company’sinterestin a subsidiary that does not resultin a loss of control isaccounted
for similarly to equity transactions. The difference between the change in the Company’s share of net
assets of the subsidiary and any amount paid or received from divestment of Company’s interest in the
subsidiary is recorded directly in the undistributed earnings under equity.

In a divestment of the Company’s interest in a subsidiary that results in a loss of control, the difference
between the Company’s share in the net assets of the subsidiary and the net proceeds from divestment is
recognized in the consolidated income statement. The reamaining interest in the entity will be accounted
for as either aninvestment in another entity or investment to be equity accounted for since the divestment
date.
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Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and initially recognized at cost. The Company'’s
investment in associates includes goodwill generated on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
losses.

The Company’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses are recognized in the consolidated
income statement. The accumulated post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Company's share of its losses equal or exceed its interest in the
associate, the Company does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Accounting policies of joint ventures and associates have been changed when necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Company.

Unrealized gains and losses on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Company’s interest in the associates.

c) Investments in other entities

Investing in other entities is an investment in different capital instruments without control or joint control
rights, or significant impact on the investee. These investments are initially recorded at cost. Subsequently,
the Board of Management review of all investments to recognize provisions at the end of the accounting
period.

A provision for impairment of investments in other entities is established at the end of the accounting
period when there is a decrease in the value of the investments. The difference between the provision
made at the end of this accounting period and the provision made at the end of the previous accounting
period is recognized as an increase or decrease in financial expenses for the year. The provision is reversed
but not exceeding the initial carrying amount.

4, Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Company’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is recognized as an asset and is amortized on the straight-line basis over its
estimated period of benefit but not exceed 10 years.

Goodwill on acquisitions of investments in associates is included in the carrying amount of the investments
at the date of acquisition. The Company does not amortize this goodwill.

On disposal of the investments in subsidiaries or associates, the attributable amount of unamortized
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on the disposal.

Goodwill is evaluated annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated amortization less
accumulated impairment losses. If there is evidence that the impairment during the period is higher than
the annual goodwill charge, the Company records the impairment immediately in the accounting period.
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

V. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5. Trade and other receivables

Receivables represent trade receivables from customers, including trade payables arising from sales of
goods and provision of services; and other non-trade receivables . Provision for doubtful receivablesis made
for each item for each receivable based on the overdue time of the original debt commitment (excluding
debt extension between parties), or based on the expected loss that is likely to occur. Receivables that are
determined to be irrecoverable will be written off.

Receivables are classified as short-term and long-term on the consolidated balance sheet based on the
remaining maturities of the receivables as at the date of the consolidated balance sheet.

6. Inventories

Inventories are valued at original cost. Where the net realizable value is lower than cost, inventories should
be measured at the net realizable value. The cost of inventories should comprise all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The value of inventories is determined by the weighted average method.
Inventories are recorded in line with perpetual method.

Provisions for inventories impairment: In the end of accounting period, if inventories do recover enough
at its historical value not because of damage, obsolescence, reduction of selling price, the provision for
inventories impairment is recognized. The provision for inventories impairment is the difference between
the historical value of inventories and its net realizable value.

7. Tangible and intangible fixed assets, finance lease fixed assets and investment
properties

Tangible fixed assets, intangible fixed assets are recorded at cost. During the utilization period, fixed assets
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization.

The historical cost of tangible fixed assets from construction includes: costs of compensation and site
clearance, construction costs, costs of tools and equipments, project management expenditures,
construction consulting expenditures, other expenses and capitalized borrowing costs according to
Accounting Standard No.16. Cost of forming the historical cost of fixed assets related to BOT and BT projects.

« Historical cost of fixed assets formed from BOT projects:

Fixed assets are temporarily recorded to increase their historical cost from the results of the State Council
for Acceptance Test on the notification of inspection results of the pre-acceptance work and put into
operation and use.
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The quality of basic items meets the approved design requirements, applicable standards and technical
instructions of the project, and is eligible for technical traffic to be put into operation and use.

The Company will adjust the recognition of the historical cost when completing the settlement of items
with the competent State authorities.

« Depreciation of fixed assets:

Tangible fixed assets (except for fixed assets formed from investment projects in the form of Build-Operate-
Transfer (B.O.T)) are depreciated using the straight-line method. The depreciation period is determined
in accordance with the provisions of Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013 of the Ministry of
Finance guiding on management, use and depreciation of fixed assets and Circular No. 28/2017/TT-BTC
dated 12 April 2017 and Circular 147/2016/TT-BTC dated 13 October 2016 on amending and supplementing a
number of articles of Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013 of the Ministry of Finance guiding on
management, use and depreciation of fixed assets.

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis for fixed assets not formed from BOT projects. The
estimated amortization period is as follows:

. Buildings, plants 10 - 50 years

. Machinery, equipment 03 - 20 years

. Transportation equipment, transmitters 06 - 30 years

. Office equipment and furniture 03 -10 years

. Land use rights indefinitely Not amortized
. Other fixed assets 10 years

Investment properties are stated at cost. Investment properties are applied the depreciation method in
line with other fixed assets of the company, except for the investment properties held for price appreciation
which are not depreciated but the value of loss due to decrease in value is determined.

Depreciation for assets formed from BOT, BT projects:

For investment projects in the form of Build - Operate - Transfer (B.O.T), the time of depreciation of
fixed assets is determined as the time of exploitation and investors return of investment in the project.
Depreciation of fixed assets formed from the project at the rate corresponding to the annual revenue in
line with the period of exploitation and collection of payback fees of the project (return of Investment is
calculated as total investment divided by break-even revenue under BOT contract). The determination of
the value of fixed assets formed from the project shall comply with the applicable regulations on capital
construction investment.
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

V. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

8. Cost of construction in progress

Construction in progress of the project is recognized at historical cost principle. This cost includes: cost of
compensation and site clearance, construction cost, cost of tools and equipment, project management
expenditure, construction consulting expenditures, other expenses and capitalized borrowing costs
according to Accounting Standard No. 16 - Actual interest expense incurred in the fiscal year and
recognized as accumulated since the Project is implemented in accordance with the decision of the
Ministry of Transport approving for The BOT project and the BOT contract are signed between the Ministry
of Transport and the project company.

9. Build-Operate-Transfer (B.O.T) contracts

Build-Transfer-Operate contract (hereinafter referred to as the B.O.T contract) is a form of investment
sighed between a competent State authorities and the investors to construct infrastructure works; after
the construction is completed, the investors and the project company are entitled to operate the facility
for a certain period of time; upon expiration, the investors or the project company shall transfer the
construction to the competent State authorities.

10. Business cooperation contract

A business cooperation contract (BCC) is a contract between the Company and other parties to carry
out specific business activities without establishing a new legal entity. The Company recorded liability
for the assets received from other entities under BCC, and not classify this as owner’s equity. BCC has the
following forms:

« BCC in the form of jointly controlled assets;
« BCC in the form of jointly controlled business activities;

« BCC according to profit sharing after tax.
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1. Deferred CIT

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the year the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, using the tax rates enacted at the balance sheet
date.

12. Prepaid expenses

Calculation and allocation of prepaid expenses is based on the nature and extent of each type of expense
to determine a reasonable and consistent method.

Prepaid expenses are tracked according to each prepaid period incurred, allocated to the cost objects of
each accounting period and the remaining amount has not been allocated to expenses.

Prepaid expense is reclassified as the following principles:

« Theamount paid in advance for the goods purchased or rendered services within a period not exceeding
12 months from the time of prepayment is classified as short-term.

« The amount paid in advance for the goods purchased or rendered services over a period of more than
12 months from the time of prepayment is classified as long-term.

13. Trade and other payables

Including trade payables, prepayments from buyers, internal payables, other payables, loans at the
reporting time, if:

« Having a maturity of no more than 12 months is classified as short-term debts.

« Having a maturity of 12 months or more is classified as long-term debts.

For foreign currency transactions arising during the period, the recorded exchange rate is the selling
exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Company intends to transact at the transaction date.

14. Borrowings and financial lease liabilities

Borrowings in the form of issuance of bonds or preference share with preferential terms required the
issuer to repurchase in the future shall not be reflected on this item.

Borrowings are monitored in detail by each object, each contract and each type of debt assets. Finance
lease liabilities are stated at the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the
leased asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

V. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

15. Borrowings and capitalization of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the borrowings are recognized as financial expenses
during the period, unless borrowing costs are directly attributable to the investment in construction or
production of the asset in progress, the value of that asset (capitalized) will be accounted for when all the
conditions specified in the Accounting Standard “Borrowing costs”.

16. Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses include liabilities for goods and services received in the year but not yet paid for due
to pending invoices or insufficient records and documents and payables to employees are recorded in
production and business expenses in the period to ensure that when the cost incurred will not cause a
sudden change in production and business costs on the basis of ensuring the principle of concordance
betweenrevenue and expenses. The accrued expenses must be calculated strictlyand must have reasonable
and reliable evidence. When such expenses are incurred, if there is a difference with the deducted amount,
the accountant shall record additional or decreasing expenses corresponding to the difference.

17. Unearned revenue

Unearned revenue mainly comprises the amounts that customers have paid in advance for one or many
accounting periods such as rental prepayment. The company recognizes unearned revenue corresponding
to the obligation that the company will have to fulfill in the future.

18. Capital

« Common shares
Common shares are stated at par value. The proceeds from the issuance of shares in excess of par value are

recognized as share premium. Expenses directly attributable to the issue of shares, excluding tax effects,
are deducted from the share premium.
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+ Repurchase and re-issuance of treasury shares

Common shares issued when acquired by the Company are classified as treasury shares in the equity
portion. The value of treasury shares recorded as a decrease in equity includes the redemption price and
costs directly related to the purchase of treasury shares.

When treasury shares are sold (re-issue of treasury shares), the cost of treasury shares is determined
according to the weighted average method. The difference between the selling price of treasury shares
and the cost of treasury shares is recorded in the Share premium account.

» Undistributed post-tax profits

Undistributed earnings are the profit of business operations after addition (+) or deduction (-) of regulated
items due to applying a change in accounting retrospectively or to make a retrospective restatement to
correct materiality in previous year.

Profit distribution must be complied with the current financial policies.

Parent Company distributes profit to owners which shall not exceed the undistributed post-tax profits on
the consolidated financial statements, including the impact of any gain recognized from bargain purchase
transactions. In case undistributed post-tax profits in the consolidated financial statements is higher than
its financial statements of the parent company, the parent company makes distribution after transferring
profits from subsidiary companies to the parent companies.

Subsidiaries shall advance the committed profit to Shareholders according to the approved financial plan
in the BOT contract based on the actual cash flow obtained instead of the undistributed after-tax profit.

Profit distribution should take account of non-monetary items in undistributed post-tax profits that may
affect cash flows and the dividend payment ability of the Company.

19. Revenues

a) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the following conditions are satisfied:
« The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred to the buyer;

« The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement as a neither owner nor effective
control over the goods sold;

« The amount of revenue can be measured;

« The economic benefits associated with the transaction of goods sold have flown or will flow to the
Company;

« The costsincurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction of goods sold can be measured reliably
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

V. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

19. Revenues (continued)
b) Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services should be recognised when all the following conditions have been
satisfied:

« The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
« Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;

« The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured
reliably

The completed service delivery task is determined by the method of evaluation of completed work.

c) Financial income

Financial income includes interest income, royalties, dividends, distributed profits and other financial
income. For interest received from lending, deferred payment and installment sales: revenue is recognized
when it is certain to be collectable and lending, receivables are not classified as overdue leading to the
provision. Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividends is established.

d) Construction contract revenue

Construction contract revenue is recognized in one of the following two cases:

« Construction contract stipulating contractor is paid according to the planned schedule: when the
contract results can be estimated reliably, revenue is recognized corresponding to the part of work
completed self-determined by the contractor at the balance sheet date;

« Construction contracts stipulating contractors are paid according to the volume of work: when the
contract results are reliably estimated and confirmed by the customer, revenue is recognized according
to percentage of completion confirmed by the customer.

When the contract results cannot be reliably estimated, revenue is recognized as equivalent to the costs
incurred for which it is probable that reimbursement will be made.
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e) Traffic fee revenue

Revenue from road traffic toll collection in the toll period is recognized based on the sales of road tickets,
road bridges and tunnels at the toll rates prescribed by the State and applied on each road route, road
tunnels and certain road bridges that the Company is allowed to collect to recover the investment capital
of BOT projects.

f) Income from interest

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportional basis based on the principal balance and the
applicable interest rate.

g) Income from dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividends is established.
h) Income from liquidation of short-term and long-term financial investments

Income from the disposal of short-termm and long-term financial investments is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer. Most of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer only upon
completion of the purchase or sale transaction (for listed securities) or completion of an asset transfer
agreement (for unlisted securities).

i) Other income

Other income includes income from other activities: disposal of asset; penalty receipt, compensation,
collection of bad debt which was write off, unknown payables, gift in cash or non cash form...

20. Revenue deductions

The decrease adjustment of revenue shall be as follows:

« The decrease adjustment of revenue in the incurring period if revenue deductions incurred in the same
period of consumption of products, goods and services;

« The decrease adjustment of revenue as follows if revenue deductions incurred in the continued period
of consumption of products, goods and services:

+ Adjustments to decrease in revenue in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the reporting
period if there are deductions for revenue before the issuance of the Consolidated Financial
Statements;
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

V. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

20. Revenue deductions (continued)

+ Adjustments to decrease in revenue in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the period after
the reporting period if there are deductions for revenue after the issuance of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Trade discount is the discount for customers who buy large quantity of goods.

Sales rebate is the deduction to the buyer because products, goods are bad, degraded or improper as
prescribed in contract.

Sales return are reflected the value of the products, goods which customer returns due to causes such as
violations of economic contracts, bad, degraded, wrong category or improper goods.

21 Costs of goods sold

Cost of good sold includes cost of finished goods, trade goods, services, property, construction unit sold in
the production period and expense related to real estate activities.

Damaged or lost value is allowed to record to the cost of goods sold after deduction of compensation (if
any).

For the used material over the normal production capacity, labor and general production cost is not allowed
to record to production cost but allowed to record to cost of good sold after deduction of compensation (if
any), even these finished goods are not sold.

22. Financial expenses

Items recorded into financial expenses consist of: expense or loss related to financial investment; lending
and borrowing expense; expense related to investment to joint venture, associates; loss from share transfer;
provision of share decrease or investment; loss on trading foreign currency.

For BOT projects, borrowing costs directly related to loans to finance BOT projects during the operating
period are allocated according to the ratio between fee revenue incurred during the period and revenue
under the financial plan of the BOT project, based on Official Letter No.2310/TCDN-VP dated 8 November
2021, of the Ministry of Finance, will be applied from the fiscal year 2020. The difference between incurred
borrowing costs and borrowing costs allocated to the income statement in the period will be recognized
in prepaid expenses, which are amortized to subsequent periods.

The formula for calculating interest expense directly related to loans to finance BOT projects in the period:
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Total interest expense according
to the financial plan
Interest expense for the period =

x Revenue in the period
Total revenue according to the
financial plan

23. Selling and general administration expenses

Selling expense is recorded in the period of selling finished goods, trade goods and providing service.

Administrative expense reflects the general expense of the company, including: labor cost; social and
health insurance, unemployment fund, union cost of management employee; office material expense,
tools, depreciation of assets using for management; land rental, business licence tax; bad debt provision;
outsourcing expense and other cash expenses.

24. Current and deferred income tax expense

Currentincometaxisatax calculated on taxable income. The difference in taxable income from accounting
profit is due to the adjustment of temporary differences between tax and accounting, non-deductible
expenses as well as adjustment of non-taxable income, losses moved.

Deferred tax is the income tax payable or refundable on the temporary difference between the carrying
amount of an asset and a liability for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.
Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at the balance sheet date and will be reduced to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to permit the benefit of part or
all deferred tax assets are used. Previously unrecognized deferred tax assets are reviewed at the balance
sheet date and recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the tax assets can be utilized. This unrecognized deferred entry.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in
which the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates in effect at financial year end
date. Deferred tax is recognized in the statement of income unless it is related to items recognized directly
in equity, where tax is recognized directly in equity.

The Company has not recognized a deferred tax asset for the deductible temporary difference when
determining taxable income in the statement of the company due to the inability to predict future profit
as well as the potential withheld for tax purposes in subsequent tax periods at the date of the consolidated
financial statements.
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V. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

25. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has capacity to control or has significant impact to other
party in the decision of financial and operation activities. All parties are recognized as related parties if
having the same control or significant impact.

In the review of related parties, nature of the relationship is considered more than legal form.
26. Segment reporting

Abusinesssegmentisaseparately identifiable part thatisengaged in the production or providing products
or services and has economic risks and rewards that are different from those of other business segments.

A geographical segment is a distinctly identifiable part that is engaged in the production or providing
product or service within a particular economic environment and that is subject to economic risks and
rewards different from business segments in other economic environments.

27. Financial instruments
a) Financial assets

According to the Circular No.210, the Company classifies financial assets as below:

« Financial assets which are classified at fair value through the Income Statement are the financial assets
held for trading or are classified at fair value group the result of the Income statement at the initial
recognition;

« Held-to-maturity investmentsare the non-derivative financial assets, including fixed or with determined
payments, and fixed maturity which the company has to be willing and able to hold till maturity date;

« Loans and receivables are the non-derivative financial assets, including fixed or with determined
payments, and non-listed in a listed market;

« Financial assets available for sale are the non-derivative financial assets which are determined as
available for sale or not classified in any of the other categories. These assets are measured at fair value
through the Income statement, including held-to-maturity investment, loans and receivables.
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The classification of financial assets depends on the purpose and nature of the financial assets and is
determined at the initial recognition.

The financial assets of the Company include cash and short-term deposits, accounts receivable, other
receivables, loans and listed and non-listed financial instruments.

These financial assets are recognized at the acquisition date and not recognized at the date of sale. All
financial assets are recognized initially at cost plus directly attributable transaction costs.

b) Financial liabilities and owner’s equity instruments

Financial Instruments are classified as Financial Liabilities or owner’s equity instruments at the initial
recognition and accordingly with its nature and definition.

According to the Circular No.210, the Company classifies financial liabilities as below:

« Financial liabilities which are recognized at fair value through the Income Statement are financial
liabilities held for trading or classified at fair value group through the result of the Income Statement
at the initial recognition;

« Other financial liabilities are determined by amortized cost is determined by the value of the initial
recognition of financial liabilities minus the repayment of principal, plus or minus the cumulative
allocation the actual interest rate method, the difference between the initial recognition value and
maturity value, subtract deductions (directly or through the use of a backup account) by reducing the
value or by irrevocable.

The classification of financial liabilities depends on the purpose and nature of the financial assets and is
determined at initial recognition.

The financial liabilities of the company include account payables, other payables, borrowings and debts.

The classification of financial liabilities depends on the purpose and nature of the financial assets and is
determined at the initial recognition.

Owner’s equity instruments: A contract demonstrates the remaining value of company’s assets after
deducting all obligations.

Offsetting of financial instruments: Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with each other and
the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

1. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Cash in transit
Cash equivalents

Total

2. INVESTMENTS

a) Held-to-maturity investments

31.12.2023

DEOCA
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DEOCA
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362,557,701,388
135,092,389,134
16,446,257,910

associates

NVD
47,917,596,392
(706,272,395)
1,897,991,096

ventures and
49,109,315,093 514,096,348,432

and losses from joint

VND

31.12.2023 01.01.2023

increase/
(decrease)

2,692,723,624 4,641,622,371
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(18,344,249,006)

(78,380,000,000)
(96,724,249,006)

67,261,309,803 162,239,568,233

663,109,000 237,100,000

225,510,444,849
296,127,587,276

215,142,818,433
382,261,109,037

Increased
investment
VND

As at 31.12.2023

VND
410,475,297,780
56,006,116,739
466,481,414,519

01.01.2023

Historical cost Book value Historical cost Book value
VND VND VND VND

76,965,731,271
76,965,731,271

Short-term 76,965,731,271
Term deposits (i) 76,965,731,271
Long-term 17,000,000,000
Term deposits (ii) 15,000,000,000
Bonds (jii) 2,000,000,000
Total 93,965,731,271

(i) The deposit has a term of 6 months at Vietinbank with an interest rate of 4.2% per year;
(ii) The deposit has a term at Vietinbank with an interest rate of 5.7% per year;

(iii) The investment includes 200 bonds with par value of VND 10,000,000, with a term of 10 years (2019 -
2029); interest rate: Reference interest rate + 1.2% per year; issued by Vietinbank. These bonds are currently
being used as collateral for credit agreements at Vietinbank.
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72,830,731,676
72,830,731,676

72,830,731,676
72,830,731,676

17,000,000,000
15,000,000,000
2,000,000,000

17,000,000,000
15,000,000,000
2,000,000,000

17,000,000,000
15,000,000,000
2,000,000,000

93,965,731,271 89,830,731,676 89,830,731,676
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(2) The ICV Vietnam Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company has increased its charter capital to VND 640,000,000,000 according to Resolution

N0.33/2023/NQ-HDQT dated 21 December 2023 and registered for the 15th amendment on 25 December 2023. HHV’s ownership interest in ICV Vietnam
Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company as of 31 December 2023 is 2.11%. Therefore, the company records this investment using the cost

procedures to reduce charter capital from VND 424,000,000,000 down to VND 176,000,000,000 as per the Certificate of Business Registration for the 9th
method.

(1) According to Resolution No.01/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 31January 2023, the Bac Giang - Lang Son - Huu Nghi BOT Joint Stock Company has completed
amendment on 5 April 2023 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment.

Bac Giang - Lang Son - Huu Nghi BOT JSC (1)
ICV Vietnam Investment and Construction JSC (2)

Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Investment JSC

b)
Total
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©® NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Annual report 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

V.

Investments in other entities

c)

01.01.2023

31.12.2023

Provision

Book value

)
")
[¢]
(3]
®
(3]
‘=
[e]
-
o
I

Book value Provision

Historical cost

VND

VND

VND

VND

13,500,000,000
13,500,000,000

ICV Vietham Investment and Construction JSC

Total

Because the shares of these companies have not been listed on stock markets, the fair value of such investment in these companies has not been evaluated

for disclosure in the Note to the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with Circular No.200/2014/TT-BTC 22 December 2014.

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

3. SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related parties

Deo Ca Group JSC

Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Expressway JSC

Deo Ca Construction JSC

BOT Trung Luong - My Thuan JSC

Khanh Hoa Deo Ca BOT Investment JSC

Saigon - Phu Yen Bridges Construction Investment JSC
Deo Ca Expressway Operation and Maintenance JSC
ICV Vietnam Investment and Construction JSC
Third parties

Project Management Unit - 2

Road and Bridge Construction JSC 19

Song Da No 10 JSC

Road Management Authority Il

DaklLak Road Management and Maintenance Single Member LLC

Lam Dong Provincial Traffic Project Management
Others
Total

4. PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

a) Short-term prepayments to suppliers

Third parties

Investment - Development City and Industrial Zone JSC
Dong A International Corporation

Asia Real Estate Investment Construction Corporation
Dong Khanh Construction Co., Ltd

Tay An Project Investment and Construction JSC

Khanh Son Company Limited

Duc Nhi Service and Trade Company Limited

Viet Nam Specialized Vehicles Auto Import Export JSC
Tan Hoang Long Construction Investment and Commercial JSC
Others

Total

31.12.2023 01.01.2023
VND VND
290,048,869,143 159,081,107,411
130,984,526,628 -
70,600,560,453 -
51,687,063,348 116,695,539,018
14,585,800,932 22,098,459,698
13,918,316,295 13,361,179,695
6,800,000,000 6,800,000,000
1,470,201,487 125,929,000
2,400,000 -
109,903,090,198 45,847,550,058
61,415,375,434 -
5,159,490,529 5,159,490,529
5,082,418,376 5,082,418,376
4,144,842,000 7,058,251,000
3,399,652,533 3,399,652,533
2,384,463,000 -
28,316,848,326 25147,737,620
399,951,959,341 204,928,657,469
31.12.2023 01.01.2023
VND VND
130,232,280,739 59,725,675,369
29,420,534,767 -
14,359,029,400 14,359,029,400
14,008,765,873 -
13,862,983,101 -
9,321,979,651 -
6,120,456,775 -
6,094,699,854 -
5,992,200,000 5,992,200,000
5,265,564,578 -
25,786,066,740 39,374,445,969
130,232,280,739 59,725,675,369
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

V.

PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS (continued)

4.
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Long-term prepayments to suppliers

b)

Third parties

Nang Ban Mai Investment Corporation

Underground Works Construction JSC
Minh Phat Co.,, Ltd

A2Z Construction Consulting JSC

Project Management Unit 85
Song Da No 10 JSC

9,381,606,667

9,381,606,667

Lang Son Province Construction Investment Project

8,575,350,000

8,575,350,000

Management Board

7176,702,514
22,349,674,452

7,176,702,514
27,382,332,449

Civil Engineering Construction Corporation 8

Others
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05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

12. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Computer
software
VND

Land use rights

VND

HISTORICAL COST

As at 1January 2023 618,292,634 4,609,468,050
Purchase during the year - -
As at 31 December 2023 618,292,634 4,609,468,050
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 77,322,313 619,940,556
As at 1January 2023

Depreciation during the year 12,881,088 623,138,184
As at 31 December 2023 90,203,401 1,243,078,740
NET BOOK VALUE

As at 1 January 2023 540,970,321 3,989,527,494
As at 31 December 2023 528,089,233 3,366,389,310

« Ending net book value of intangible fixed assets were pledged as collateral assets for

borrowings: VND 534,529,777

Other
assets
VND

183,403,472

183,403,472

142,368,600

36,680,696

179,049,296

41,034,872

4,354,176

Total
VND

5,411,164,156

5,411,164,156

839,631,469

672,699,968

1,512,331,437

4,571,532,687

3,898,832,719

« Historical cost of intangible fixed assets at the end of the year which have been fully depreciated but

are still in use: VND 314,500,850

13. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress (*)
Total

@ Annual report 2023

31.12.2023 01.01.2023
VND VND
170,630,457 13,636,905,417
170,630,457 13,636,905,417

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

« (*) Details of construction in progress costs are as follows:

Training Practice Center
Firefighting System
Transfer Station

Total

14. GOOD WILL

Opening balance year
Distribution in the year
Closing balance year

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.12.2023 01.01.2023
VND VND

- 13,636,905,417

93,357,730 -
77,272,727 -
170,630,457  13,636,905,417
31.12.2023 01.01.2023

VND VND
16,571,461,023  19,026,492,287
(2,455,031,264) (2,455,031,264)
14,116,429,759 16,571,461,023
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£ ¢ z IR IEIRC £ ¢ z IR
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16. ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS o2 NN Qoo - w @
T+ ISR B s S
8 P58 Yom & g
- M - 0
a) Short-term advances from customers = N N :17_. 5 S5
: I - : 5 3
— 0
31.12.2023 01.01.2023 < < S ©
VND VND '4r:0 42
O
Related parties - 73,032,991,055 -
Deo Ca Group JSC - 73,032,991,055 g
Third parties 4,619,425,163 38,900,254,873 E 7
=
Lung Lo Construction Corporation 2,475,005,925 2,475,005,925 = = 0 'g
Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Expressway JSC - 31,662,067,026 § @ g s8R A § S g §
L O n o N O =
Others 2,144,419,238 4,763,181,922 g % m ) u07 % lo\; g % =
9 w5 L o
Total 4,619,425163  111,933,245,928 3 TFay o 2 3 s, <
> o E% E: > o) = ) EE
B © 0SB o g 5 <
2 h © N - £ o
b) Long-term advances from customers - 3 - 3 g g
w £ £ x O
31.12.2023 01.01.2023 0 < < c 2
VND VND a v g
Third parties 289,211,817,160 - o 23
. . m 1 1 1 1
Project Management Unit - 2 (¥ 248,163,537,782 - E N @ Q 2 E E c £
A = A @
Da Nang Priority Infrastructure Investment Projects 5 g % ; g_ g g g =R
Management Unit (**) 41,048,279,378 - w m o §_ L\TO 'g g P g S
¥+ © - = = =
Total 289,211,817,160 - T 9 N @ Q y G ©
(2] n o 9} o 6 3]
o 3 4 g 8 o o
= m 0 ] 5
+ (*) Advance payment from Project Management Unit - 2 for the construction of the Quang Ngai - Hoai ‘Iﬂ 9 g g E
Nhon section of the North-Southeastern Expressway Component Project for the phase 2021-2025 a' g E _g’ g)
< o o o3,
« (**) Advance payment from Da Nang Priority Infrastructure Investment Projects Management Unit for E < u;' o § >
the construction of the coastal road connecting Lien Chieu port, Da Nang City. (a) ) 9 ﬁ o 'S
& o g £y S
- > = 3
£t 5% 3
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0 o i 5 0 =
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05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

18. ACCRUED EXPENSES

a) Short-term accrued expenses

Accrued interest expenses

Accrued expenses repairing and overhauling the Tunnel
Interest expense payable

Others

Total

b) Long-term accrued expenses

Accrued interest expenses
Interest expense payable
Others

Total

19. UNEARNED REVENUES
a) Short-term unearned revenues

Revenue received in advance
Total

b) Long-term unearned revenues

Revenue received in advance
Others
Total

@ Annual report 2023

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

31.12.2023 01.01.2023

VND VND
219,483,673,000 572,460,000,000
153193,675248  127,566,665,648
2,421,090,871 2,416,377,612
64328908909  409,192,218,861
439,427,348,028  1,111,635,262,121
31.12.2023 01.01.2023

VND VND
4,391,663,261974 2,965,790,122,589
38,654,100,276 34911184 444
324,679,472,275 -
4,754,996,834,525 3,000,701,307,033

31.12.2023 01.01.2023

VND VND
100,000,000 100,000,000
1,100,000,000 1,100,000,000
31.12.2023 01.01.2023

VND VND
7,700,000,000 8,800,000,000
64,764,056 -
7,764,764,056 8,800,000,000

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

20. OTHER PAYABLES

a) Short-term other payables

Payables to guarantee the warranty contract,
the volume awaiting settlement
Related parties
Deo Ca Construction JSC
Third parties
Song Da No 10 JSC
Lung Lo Construction Corporation
Sao Bac Dau Technology Corporation
Others
Others short-term payables
Related parties
Deo Ca Group JSC
B.O.T Hai Thach Investment JSC
Third parties
Northern Infrastructure Investment JSC
Others
Total

b) Long-term other payables

Tender package for National Highway 1- Warranty
pending settlement

Payables for secured contractors’ work

Others

Total

Overdue debts: None

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.12.2023 01.01.2023
VND VND
398,540,637,739 427,883,093,933
65,626,091,401 65,626,091,401
65,626,091,401 65,626,091,401
332,914,546,338 362,257,002,53
71,817,270,281 100,907,632,345
51,646,434,240 51,646,434,240
51,066,578,889 51,318,673,019
158,384,262,928  158,384,262,928
89,690,955,752 155,945,673,713
- 47,912,104,71
- 26,298,646,606
- 21,613,458,105
89,690,955,752 108,033,569,002
- 18,650,350,455
89,690,955,752 89,383,218,547
488,231,593,491 583,828,767,646
31.12.2023 01.01.2023
VND VND
32,449,235,354 37,449,235,354
10,584,963,184 10,920,222,126
10,450,274,644 5,081,291,514

53,484,473,182 53,450,748,994
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05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED

©

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

>

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

V.

nnual report 2023

OWNER’S EQUITY

23.

Change in owner’s equity

Investment

Budget sources

Non-controlling

T
[J]
-
3
]
‘=
-
&
T
c
=]

*)

VND

and other funds

interest
A\V/\[»)

earnings
VND

fund
VND

VND development

Share premium

VND

Owner’s capital

556,552,113,920 1,168,292,642,095 3,272,808,312,802 7,676,137,290,504

4,851,321,687

(208,000,000)

2,673,840,900,000

As at 01 January 2022

403,873,700,000
297,409,288,870

33,358,952,709

264,050,336,161

(329,900,000

404,203,600,000

Capital increase during the year

Profit during the year

Remuneration Board of Directors and

Board of Supervision

(1,907,000,000)

(1,907,000,000)

(2,297,161,693)

2,297,161,693

Deduction to development investment

fund

(4,122,978,771)

4,122,978,771

Other increase

1,197,528,616,033 3,272,808,312,802 8,375,513,279,374

820,521,267,159

7,148,483,380

(537,900,000)

3,078,044,500,000

As at 31 December 2022

1,197,528,616,033 3,272,808,312,802 8,375,513,279,374

7,148,483,380 820,521,267,159

(537,900,000)

3,078,044,500,000

As at 01 January 2023

(339,000,000)
364,457,217,861

(339,000,000)

Capital increase during the year

Profit during the year

42,334,360,899

322,122,856,962

Remuneration Board of Directors and

Board of Supervisors (1)

(1,908,000,000)

(1,908,000,000)

Deduction to development investment

fund (2)

(1,673,972,699)
(5,021,918,096)

1,673,972,699

(5,021,918,096)

Bonus and welfare funds appropriation

(3)

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

(215,459,010,000)

215,459,010,000 -

Paid stock dividend (4)

Change in non-controlling shareholder’s

interests

199,750,325

(3.117,528,138)

3,317,278,463

921,898,501,789 1,236,745,448,794 3,272,808,312,802 8,732,901,329,464

(876,900,000) 8,822,456,079

3,293,503,510,000

As at 31 December 2023

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE
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(*) This is the State budget capital allocated under Project Contract No.26/HDXD-DEOCA dated
08/11/2012 and the attached contract appendices, updated in the total investment of the Project in the
decision. No.400/QD-BGTVT 04/03/2019 on approving the adjustment of the financial plan of the road
tunnel project through Deo Ca (including Deo Ca and Co Ma tunnel, Cu Mong tunnel and Hai Van
tunnel); Accordingly, this capital is assigned to the project enterprise to implement the BOT project to
ensure the financial plan signed with the competent authority.

(1) According to Resolution No0.01/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 24 April 2023, the Board of Directors has
approved the payment of remuneration to the Board of Directors and Board of Supervision.

(2) According to Resolution No.02/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 24 April 2023, the Board of Directors has
approved development investment fund appropriation with ammount VND 1,673,972,699.

(3) According to Resolution No.02/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 24 April 2023, the Board of Directors has
approved bonus and welfare funds appropriation with ammount VND 5,021,918,096.

(4) According to Resolution N0.02/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated 24 April 2023, the Board of has approved the
profit distribution plan, dividend payment for the year 2022 in the form of stock dividends. The result of
issuingstockdividendsfortheyear2022 hasincreasedtheregistered capitalfromVND 3,078,044,500,000
to VND 3,293,503,510,000.

Details of contributed capital

31.12.2023 01.01.2023
VND % VND %
Deo Ca Group JSC (%) 40,545,020,000 1.23% 37,892,550,000 1.23%
Ho Minh Hoang 19,260,000,000 0.58% 18,000,000,000 0.58%
B.O.T Hai Thach Investment JSC 662,330,000,000 20.11% 1,036,662,500,000 33.68%
Others 2,571,368,490,000 78.08% 1,985,489,450,000 64.51%
Total 3,293,503,510,000 100.00% 3,078,044,500,000 100.00%

(*) Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company becomes the parent company of the Company through direct
and indirect ownership and voting rights in subsidiaries investing in Deo Ca Traffic Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company with the ratio of own and vote as follows:

Ratio of benefit Voting right

Direct Ownership 1.23% 1.23%
Ownership and indirect voting 20.06% 20.11%
B.O.T Hai Thach Investment JSC 20.06% 20.711%
Total 21.29% 21.34%

Currently, Deo Ca Group (DCG) holds a voting right of 21.34%. However, DCG is still the parent company
because it holds the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the business to obtain
economic benefits from the Company’s activities through holding the majority of members in the Board
of Directors.

Annual report 2023 @
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

23. OWNER'’S EQUITY (continued)

Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
VND VND
Owner’s capital:
- Capital contribution at the beginning of the year 3,078,044,500,000 2,673,840,900,000
- Contributed capital increased during the year 215,459,010,000 -
- Contributed capital decreased during the year - -
- Contributed capital at the end of the year 3,293,503,510,000 2,673,840,900,000
Dividends, distributed profits 215,459,010,000 -
Shares
31.12.2023 01.01.2023
Shares Shares
Number of shares registered for issuance 329,350,351 307,804,450
Number of shares issued 329,350,351 307,804,450
e Ordinary share 329,350,351 307,804,450
Number of shares repurchased (Treasury shares) - -
e Ordinary share - -
Number of shares outstanding 329,350,351 307,804,450
Ordinary share 329,350,351 307,804,450

Par value shares: 10,000 VND/share

VI. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

1. NET REVENUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
VND VND
Revenue from sales of goods
and rendering of services 2,685,542,239,251 2,094,582,751,424

Revenue from BOT toll stations
Revenue from construction activities

@ Annual report 2023

1,572,642,616,928
1,047,328,437,548

1,484,106,158,515
530,288,093,030

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

Revenue from maintenance and repair of tunnels
and roads

Revenue from transit provision

Other revenues

Revenue deductions

Net Revenue

In which, revenue from related parties
Revenue from construction activities

Revenue from maintenance and repair of tunnels
and roads

Other revenues

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29,063,439,057
20,915,838,636
15,591,907,082

2,685,542,239,251
848,198,579,841
829,711,961,943

11,606,171,330
6,880,446,568

2. COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

Cost of BOT toll stations
Cost of construction activities

Cost of maintenance and repair of tunnels and roads

Cost of transit provision
Other costs
Total

3. FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest income from deposits and loans
Profit from a Business Cooperation Contract
Total

4., FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest expenses

Holes from joint ventures and associates company

Total

41,129,862,721
17,921,779,967
21,136,857,191

2,094,582,751,424
224,506,208,652
179,609,025,970

29,755,784,943
15,141,397,739

Year ended 31 December

2023
VND

2022
VND

600,822,538,351
961,738,097,493
21,046,948,083
15,848,673,071
5,667,050,083
1,605,123,307,081

548,074,846,410
482,152,924,310
17,947,348,272
14,846,699,243
15,006,780,880
1,078,028,599,115

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

VND VND

16,606,561,809 5,444,505,906

9,113,116,478 -

25,719,678,287 5,444,505,906
Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

VND VND

662,435,560,342 647,600,236,079

4,844,249,006 -

667,279,809,348 647,600,236,079

Annual report 2023 @
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DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

VI. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

5. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Staff costs

Outside services expense
Allocation of goodwill
Depreciation

Others

Total

6. OTHER INCOME

Disposal of equipments and tools
Disposal of fixed assets

Others

Total

7. OTHER EXPENSES

Disposal of equipments and tools
Disposal of fixed assets

Others

Total

@ Annual report 2023

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

VND VND
28,887,387,912 29,933,411,408
14,193,106,216 22,253,982,069
2,455,031,264 2,455,031,264
1,210,635,271 1,271,480,239
14,034,074,839 16,960,570,173
60,780,235,502 72,874,475,153

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

VND VND
2,013,732,767 -
4,629,630 -
67,701,238 12,438,456
2,086,063,635 12,438,456

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
VND VND

1,406,114,063 -

20,091,579 -
3,127121,542 327,869,704
4,553,327,184 327,869,704

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

8. COST OF OPERATION BY FACTOR

Raw materials

Staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Outside service expenses

Others

Total

9. BUSINESS INCOME TAX

Business income tax expense calculated on taxable
income of the current year

Adjust the income tax expense of previous periods
to the current years

Total business income tax

10. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit after tax of the parent company
Bonus and welfare fund propriation
Profits distributed to shareholders parent
company owning common shares

The weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year

Basic earnings per share

1. DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December

2023
VND

514,646,830,681
340,609,507,539
310,893,451,005
113,508,607,978
296,294,709,177
1,575,953,106,380

2022
VND

431,205,077,480
290,434,361,409
283,718,402,007
157,541,546,456
104,302,618,164

1,267,202,005,516

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

VND VND
62,489,023,426 58,732174,175
35,130,053 40,370,960
62,524,153,479 58,772,545,135

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

VND VND
322,122,856,962 264,050,336,1601
322,122,856,962 264,050,336,161
318,843,035 268,823,719
1,010 982

The 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders approved the resolution No.04/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated
24 April 2023 regarding the project to offer additional shares to existing shareholders, the expected number

of shares to be issued is 82,337,691 shares.

The 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders approved the resolution N0.05/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated
24 April 2023 regarding the project to offer individual shares, the expected number of shares to be issued

is 74,103,922 shares.
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INFRASTRUCTURE

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

VI. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

1. DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
VND VND
Profit after tax of the parent company 322,122,856,962 264,050,336,161
Bonus and welfare fund propriation - -
Profits distributed to shareholders parent
company owning common shares 322,122,856,962 264,050,336,161
The weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year 318,843,035 268,823,719
Number of shares expected issued 156,441,613 15,390,223
Diluted earnings per share 678 929

VII. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

1. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS AFFECTING THE FUTURE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOWS STATEMENT: NONE

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD BY THE COMPANY WITHOUT USE: NONE

3. AMOUNT OF LOAN ACTUALLY WITHDRAWN DURING THE YEAR

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
VND VND
Proceeds from ordinary contract 503,403,158,775 499,241,081,047

@ Annual report 2023
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4. AMOUNT OF LOAN PRINCIPAL ACTUALLY PAID DURING THE YEAR

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
VND VND
Repayment of ordinary contract
normal borrowing contracts 891,264,578,517 954,200,304,573
VIill. OTHER INFORMATION
1. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL

INFORMATION: NONE
2. INFORMATION ON RELATED PARTIES: SEE APPENDIX 1

3. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER 31 DECEMBER 2023

The Company has amended its charter capital fromm VND 3,293,503,510,000 to VND 4,116,801,690,000
according to the Business Registration Certificate for the 33rd amendment issued by the Department of
Planning and Investment of Da Nang City on 2 February 2024.

On the date of preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Company completed its public
offering of shares to existing shareholders in 2023. All 82,329,818 shares offered were successfully registered
by the Viet Nam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (“VSDC") under Certificate No.107/2015/
GCNCP-VSDC-8, the 8th amendment on 16 February 2024. The Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange issued a
decision on the change of listing registration on 6 March 2024 which was effective from 8 March 2024.

From the consolidated financial statements closing date to the preparation date of these consolidated
financial statement, the Company made capital contributions to project enterprises: Deo Ca Investment
Joint Stock Company with an amount of VND 108,243,670,000, Bac Giang - Lang Son BOT Joint Stock
Company with an amount of VND 33,509,340,000, and Dong Dang - Tra Linh Expressway Joint Stock
Company with an amount of VND 7,500,000,000.

On 22 February 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company issued Resolution No.09/2024/NQ-HDQT to
establish the Cam Lam - Vinh Hao Expressway Management and Operation Enterprise. This enterprise is a
non-corporate legal entity dependent unit and has been granted a branch operation certificate by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Ninh Thuan Province on 10 March 2024.

The Board of Management of the Company confirms that there have been no material events occurring
after 31 December 2023 up to the date of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that
have not been reviewed for adjustment or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

Annual report 2023 @



(S00'15%'¢68'0L%)

(z08'L6%'$56'821)

L98'LIT LS 79E

68L'%5L'092'C

6./%'$S51'%725'29)

781425 '$SS"Y)

§$9'¢90'980'C

£60'SLS'60L'6Y

(8%£'608'6,2'1.99)

L8T'8LI'6LL'ST

899'969'859'610'L

(20S's£2'08L'09)

0LL'Z$6'81%7'080'L 666'958'776'6 716'06%'910'8
IsZ'6s2'TYS's89'C  280'L06'L6S'SL LS0'6£%'£90'62
1S2'652'7%5'589'C 780'L.06'165'SL LS0'65%'$90'6C

dNA

dNA adNA s|auuny

|eloL s192ylo JO ddueuajuiew
pue uoneisado

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

) (
(

Annual report 2023 @

sosuadxa pledaid wia1-BUO| JO UOIIEDO||Ee PUB UOI1EeZI1JO0Ule |10
S19SSE 1UaJIND-UOU J9Y10o PUE S19SSe Pax|4 JO Uollsinboe uo sesuadxs |e10)
xe} J9yje Hjoid

XE3 8WO0ooU| Ssaulsng paJiajed

XB1 8UWO0odU| SSaulsNg 1ua4inD

sosuadxs 1ay10

S2UI0odUl JaY10

S91E|00SSE pue saJnjuaA julof wouy Bulieys 1140.id

sasuadxa |ejoueul

SwIodUl [eIDUBUIH

yjoud Bunesado

siuawbaes 03 sesuadxa pa1ed0o||eun

§95'S91'L90'S SS0'0%£'065'S8 115'8L0'028'1L6 1Uswbas Ag sy nsai ssauisng
9£9'858'516'0C 8YS'LEY'8CE YOl 826'919'C%9'CLS L anuaAal 18U |e10L
9£9'8¢8'S16'0C 8%S'LeY'8CS (70l 8T6919THI'TLS'L S9|es |euIS1XS WO} dNusAsl 19N

dNA dNA
juswdiyssueiy SalIANOe

(a], VAN

92IAIDS uonRdNIISUOD suoness |03 LOd

€202 19quwiada( LS papus 1eak ayl

<z
2
o
W ?
a:
(,L00'20%'81L'e8T)
<z (609'88L'106'961)
O oLg'ssz's0v'L6T
mm 78L'$18'05C'C
0 & (Sel'sys'zLL'ss)
(+0.'698'L25)
2 95%'85%'2L
98Y' ' TTLTS
(6L0'952'009'/49)
906'505%'S
9S1'LLI'6LI'TY6
(gSl'SL7'918'2L)
60%'Z5155'910'L LL$'9L0'0%1'9 67v' 1S T8l'sT
YZTY'1SL'T8S'760'C 161'LS8'95L'1T lzL'zo8'ezl'ly
7Z¥'1SL'785Y60T  16L'L58'9¢%1'1T leL'zos'eelly
dNA
adNA dNA s|auun}
|jeyol SI9Yl0 JO adueuajuliew

pue uoneiddo

sasuadxe pledaid wia1-BuO| JO UOIIEDO||E PUE UOIIEZIIIOUJR [B10]
S19SSE 1UaJIND-UOU J9Y10 PUE S185Se pax|4 JO Uollisinboe uo sesuadxa |e10]
xe) 19yje Hjoid

XE3 8WO0oU| Ssaulsng paJiaed

XE1 8WO0dU| Ssaulsng 1uaJ4ind

sosuadxs 1ay10

S2WI0odUl JaY10

S9}E|00SSe pue saJNjuaA Julof woly Bulieys 1140.d

sasuadxa |ejoueul

SWIodUl [eIDUBUIH

yjoud Bunesado

s1uawbas 03 sesuadxae pai1edo|jeun

#21'080'SL0'E ozL'89l'sgl'sy SOLZIg'120'926 1uswibes Ag synsal ssauisng
L96'6LL1T6'LL 0£0'c60'882'0£S SLS‘8SL'90L'y8¥'L anuaAal 19U [e10]
L96'6LL1T6'LL 0£0'¢60'882'0%S S1S'8SL'90L'78%'L S9|ES |BUISIXS WOU) dNUdASI 18N

(a]\ 7N (a] /N
juswdiyssue.a saniAnoe
92IAI9S uoI3dNIISUOD

aNA
suoneis jjo3 109

2202 Jaqwiadaq LS papusa Jeak ayl

'SMO[|04 Se sem Bulplodoe 1iodal Juswbas oyl os ‘seale

ssauisng pue s1iun 1onpold-Ag o) pa1unoddke pue pabeuewl ‘paziuebio st Aueduwlo) syl ‘Aueduiod syl Jo asodind 1usuiabeuewd ayl 91e11|10e) 01 J9PJO U|

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10108S ssaulIsNg UO aseq uollewojul Jusuwbas (e

ONILdOd3d LININD3TS 4

(PenURUOd) NOILVINGOLANI 43IHLO A

¢£Z0Z loquiada |s papus Jeak oyl JoH

(Penuiuod) g NIINILVLS TVIONVNIL
a3ilvdalmosSNOD 3FH1 Ol 310N

Annual report 2023

®



05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(co8'L6%'$56'821) $1955€ 1Ua1IND-UOU J3Y310 pue
S19sSe paxl) JO uollsinboe uo sasuadxs |e10]
£88'88L%SI'08L'9E  #87'98L'1.69'8L 8%8'(77'SIL'e0T YL Cle'T66C9YILL  16S'1IT'8LT'6SS L LY78'6%5'828'cey gL s1esse 1uswbes
LST'65C'T75'589'C $ELTLLYLE'12S 815'Z88'leY'LLY'L SO0g'¥lev%8'e9 S80'886'c79'8C%  OLI'ly¥'L¥L's6S S92IAI8S Buliopual
pue spoob Jo sojes oI} SoNUSAaL 19N
aNA aNA aNA aNA aNA aNA
|elol s13Y10 BOH yuey)y ‘usp nyd |bueN ea anH uos 6ueT ‘Gueln oeg £20Z J2quisda( Ls papus Jesh syl
(609'88L'106'961) S19SSe 1uUaJJnd-uou Jaylo pue
s19sse paxi} Jo uolisinboe uo sasuadxs |e10]
L0S'%8%'792'959'5S 781'LL'0%6'820' %L 069'718'91L'8%Y'L. 8L8'1L60CYS'TIY' L  SSL'008'720'¢9LCL s19sse Juswibas
¥Z%'1SL'T85%60'C L59'6,5'60T'L0L ZeL'68l'9ST'CelL LLL'1S56'888'7Ss  0L6'8LL'8LE'CIT 887'S¥8'6%72'98¢ S90IAlSS Buliapual
pue spoob Jo sojes WO} SoNUSAaL 19N
dNA adNA adNA dNA adNA (@] 7,
|elol s13Y10 BOH yuey) ‘usp nyd | bueN eqa anH uos 6ueT ‘Bueln oeqg 220z 19qwiade( g papua Jeshk ayl
<t o1ydesboab uo paseq jodal Juswbas (g
2
of
O:¢
LU 2
Q:
A g
2
05
2
Ot
L 2
n: 6l¥'65%'¢SC'Lv0'8C SZL'ESY'60% 'L - 80%'090'5990C 6%2'7v6'9%6'y0T  LS1'S8S'0LE'Y86'9C sanljiqel| |eyol
08¢'81%'198'¢z8 sanljigel| paiedojjleun
620'1%0'762'¢CT'LT Sel'esv'e0%'el - 80%'090'599'0¢ 6v¢'T76'9%6%0C  LSL1'S8S'0LL¥86'9C saly|igel] Juswbes
£88'88LYS1'08L'9¢  Z0Z'£98'295'IZL 856'L95'v6L'8 LS0'Y0L'900'8Y 99%'885'820'CLS  L86'192'8%0'8%9'v ¢ 19sse |e10]
21Z'e0%"%0L'08S L s1855€ pa1edo|eun
0L9'58¢'0S¥'668'SE 202'$98'295 el 856',95'76.'8 LS0'%01'900'8% 99%'885'820'¢LS  L86'197'870'8%9v¢ sjesse uswbas
gcozells e sy
ge1'sOT'6LLLLT LT 7£8'960'609'CL - 08%'0L8'Ly0'LE Lel'Log'lgg'o6T 859'0%Z'SLL'66T'9T selujiqel| |eloL
996'689'296',.59 sanljigel| pa1edsojjieun
L9I'SIS'SSL'6£9'9T 798'960'609'CL - 08%'0l8'lY0'LE L61'L9%'l28'06C 859'0%C'LL'662'9T saly|igel| Juswbas
LOS'y8%'zeT'eS9'sE 887'859'6LT'66S ziz'oeL'sgg el £9¢'LY8'500'cgE L6T'700'89L'6%E  LLE'LIS'SE8'LSI'ES 19sse |ejo]
086'999'L5%'006 S1asse paledo|jjeun
LTS'LI8YLLTISLY S 887'859'6L7'66% z1z'o6L's8s el $5¢'/%8'500'2S L6T'00'89L'6%S  LLS'LIS'SE8'LSI'ESE siesse Juswbes
dNA
adNA dNA
dNA dNA S|uuni R
[Eisl SeUio juawdiyssueiy 40 soUBUSIUIEW sanliAnoe dNA ¢Z07’L0’L0 1e sv

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9JIAISS

pue uoneitado

uoiljonJjsuod

suonejs |jo} 1049

103109S ssaulsnq Uo aseq saljljigel] pue s}asse juswbas

(PeNURUOd) DONILYOdIY LNINWD3S Y

(Penunuod) NOILVINGOANI 43HLO ‘lIA

¢Z0Z loquwiada |s papus Jeak syl 1o

(Panunued) S NJWILVLS TVIONVNIAL

a3iilvalmosSNOD 3FH1 Ol 310N

Annual report 2023 @

Annual report 2023

®



05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED

VIIl. OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

@ Annual report 2023

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

5.

Financial assets

a)

Fair value

Book value

01.01.2023

31.12.2023

01.01.2023

Value
VND

31.12.2023

[a]
4
>
[a]
4
>

VND

c
2
g
>
)
B
a

Provision
VND

32
s>

382,261,109,037
193,892,764,987

296,127,587,276
388,916,066,859
334,840,421,440

382,261,109,037
204,928,657,469
260,602,778,486

[CEEY)
~ Y
N.OP‘}OO.
5 nh %
n O O
N
N ]
O O O
IR
N oM

Cash and cash equivalents

(11,035,892,482)

(11,035,892,482)

Trade receivables

259,301,158,073

(1,301,620,413)

(1,301,620,413)

Prepayments to suppliers

1,000,000,000
560,780,097,281

1,000,000,000

Lendings

561,653,131,117 (873,033,8306) 370,994,481,377
72,830,731,676

531,096,348,432
2,014,372,756,217

(873,033,836)

371,867,515,213

Other receivables

72,830,731,676
531,096,348,432
2,001,162,209,486

76,965,731,271
496,981,414,519
1,964,825,702,742

76,965,731,271
496,981,414,519

1,978,036,249,473

Short-term investment

Long-term investment

Total

(13,210,546,731)

(13,210,546,731)

Financial liabilities

b)

Fair value

Book value

01.01.2023

31.12.2023

01.01.2023

31.12.2023

a]
r4
>
[a]
r4
>

Provision
VND

Provision
VND

ER
s>
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1,517,181,422,897

1,470,969,941,225

1,517,181,422,897

Ln
N
N
G:
S
Q
©
o)
R
N

Trade payables

111,933,245,928
20,652,702,778,926

4,619,425,163
20,284,144,350,233

111,933,245,928
20,652,702,778,926

M M
O ™M
o
o
N
S
SN
© 3
¥
[e0)
N
o
[V}

Advances from customers

Borrowings

13,722,454,189
637,279,516,640
22,932,819,418,580

12,836,810,688
541,716,066,673

22,314,286,593,982

13,722,454,189
637,279,516,640
22,932,819,418,580

M
3 R
O O
y O
©©
@® O
O
0 &
Ny
)

o
©
o
M
o)
n
©
©
N
&
i
M
I\
N

Payables to employees

Other payables

Total
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The Company uses the following methods and assumptions to estimate fair value:

« Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, lendings, other receivables, borrowings,
trade payables, payables to employees, convertible shares and other short-term payables equivalent to
the book value (deducting provision for the probable uncollectible amount) of these accounts due to
their short maturities.

« Thefair value of ready-to-sale financial assets listed on the stock market is the listed price at the balance
sheet date. The Company has not performed a formal assessment of unlisted ready-to-sale financial
assets. However, the Board of Management believes that the fair value of these financial assets is not
significantly different from the book value.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT'S POLICY OF THE COMPANY
a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that partner will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss for company.

The Company is exposed to credit risks from its operating activities (mainly from trade receivables) and
financing activities (deposits at banks and other financial instruments).

- Trade receivables

The Company minimizes credit risk by only trading with customers with good financial ability and the
debt accountant regularly monitors receivables to urge recovery. Besides, the Company’s trade receivables
are related to many different customers, therefore the credit risk exposed from trade receivables is low.

o Cash in bank

Most of the Company’s bank deposits are deposited at large, reputable banks in Vietnam. The Company
recognizes that the credit risk on bank deposits is low.

Annual report 2023 @
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

VIII. OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

Annual report 2023

©® NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED

RISK MANAGEMENT'S POLICY OF THE COMPANY (continued)

6.

Liquidity risk

b)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations due to a lack of financial resources.

The Board of Management has the highest responsibility for liquidity risk management. The Company’s liquidity risk arises mainly from the fact that

its financial assets and financial liabilities have different maturities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate amount of cash and cash equivalents and borrowings at a level that the Board of

Management considers sufficient to meet the Company’s operating needs to minimize the impact of fluctuations in cash flows.

The below table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on expected cash payments according to the contractual

terms without discounting:

Total

Over 05 years

[
-
3
>
n
o
o
-
-
©
(]
>
—
o
£
o
e
L

Less than 01 year

VND

VND

VND

As at 31 December 2023

Trade payables

1,470,969,941,225

365,083,898,327

1,105,886,042,898

293,831,242,323
20,284,144,350,233

289,211,817,160
10,510,771,692,576
4,754,996,834,525

4,619,425,163
1,004,158,155,482

Advances from customers

8,769,214,502,175

Borrowings

A

5194,424,182,553

439,427,348,028

Accrued expenses

644,881,758,285
27,888,251,474,619

5,500,000,000
8,774,714,502,175

55,749,237,238
15,975,813,479,826

583,632,521,047
3,137,723,492,618

Other payables

Total

DEOCA
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The Company considers that the concentration on liquidity risk of loan payment is low. The Company has sufficient access to funds and loans

maturing within 12 months can be renewed with existing lenders.

DEOCA

INFRASTRUCTURE

05. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate with
changes in market prices. The market risk consists of 3 types: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, and
price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and debt, corporate bonds, deposits
and financial investments.

The sensitivity analyses presented below are made on the basis of the net liabilities value, the ratio between
fixed-rate debts and floating-rate debts is unchanged.

« Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
with changes in the exchange rate.

Since the Company was established and operates in Viet Nam with a reporting currency is Vietnam Dong,
the Company’'s main transactions currency is also Vietnam Dong. Therefore, the Company’s foreign
currency risk is immaterial. At the end of the period, the Company had insignificant foreign currency
balances, so the Company did not perform sensitivity analysis for foreign currency.

« Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due
to changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s interest rate risk is primarily related to cash, short-term deposits and borrowings.

The Company manages interest rate risk by analysing market conditions to obtain the most profitable
interest rates while staying within its risk management limits.

The Company did not perform a sensitive analysis on interest rate risk because changes in interest rates at
the reporting date are not insignificant.
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

VIII. OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT'S POLICY OF THE COMPANY (continued)

« Price risk
+Share price risk

Listed and unlisted shares held by the Company are exposed to market risks arising from uncertainty
about the future value of the investment, leading to the provision for diminution in value may increase or
decrease. The Company manages share price risk by setting investment limits. The Board of Management
also reviews and approves investment decisions in shares.

+Real estate price risk

The Company will conduct analysis and present the sensitivity of the impact of share price fluctuations on
the business results when detailed instructions are provided by the regulatory authorities.

The Company has identified the following risks associated with real estate portfolio:

The cost of development projects can increase if there are delays in the planning process. To mitigate this
risk, the Company hires consultants who specialise in specific planning requirements within the project
scope in order to reduce risks that may arise during the planning process.

The fair value of a real estate investment portfolio is exposed to market and buyer fundamentals.

7. GOING-CONCERN ASSUMPTION

During the accounting year, there were no activities or events that had a material effect on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements of the Company
are prepared on the assumption that the Company will continue in business.

@ Annual report 2023
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INFRASTRUCTURE

8. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures are the figures in the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending
on 31 December 2022 by Southern Auditing and Accounting Financial Consulting Services Co., Ltd (AASCS).

Da Nang, 20 March 2024

On behalf of the Board of Management

Prepared by Chief Accountant General Director

DANG THI HUYEN NGUYEN VAN AN

NGUYEN QUANG HUY
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HEAD OFFICE ADDRESS

KMTI+500, SOUTHERN APPROACH ROAD TO HAI VAN TUNNEL,
HCa HIER BACZ WARD, LIEM CHIEL DISTRICT,
DA MANG CITY

TELEFHOME: X236 5750 574
FAX: (256 S5B4E TS
EMAIL INFOEHHY.COMWYMN



